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INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

Forty-four million, two hundred ninety-eight thousand dollars. That is the price that a jury
decided Defendants Oberlin College (“Oberlin College” or the “College”) and Dr. Meredith
Raimondo (“Dean Raimondo,” and collectively with the College, “Defendants™), must pay for
statements that Oberlin College students—not Defendants—made during pelaceful, lawful, and
constitutionally protected protests on issues of public concern. The protests were in response to
the eyewitness reports of extra-judicial use of physical force by a Gibson’s Bakery employee, the
police department’s response at the scene, and customer reports of a pattern of discriminatory
treatment of black people by Gibson’s Bakery employees.

The staggering verdict includes economic damages that are 116 times the business value
Gibson’s Bakery—a small business in a small town—had before the protests (even though it is
still in business today). Despite not asserting a physical injury claim nor presenting medical
testimony, Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson was awarded noneconomic damages of $3 million, which is
12 times the amount recoverable by law. Similarly, Plaintiff David Gibson, who also did not assert
a physical injury claim nor present medical testimony, was awarded noneconomic damages of $4
million, which is over 11 times the amount recoverable by law. This massive verdict on claims of
libel, tortious interference with business relationships, and intentional infliction of emotional
distress (“IIED”)-—which included an independently staggering $33,223,500 punitive damages
award—was the product of a litany of errors that even a proper application of damages caps, which
has not yet occurred, cannot cure:

First, protests often include impassioned, unpopular, and even provocative speech—
speech that may offend members of the surrounding community. To ensure robust protection of

such speech, constitutional law requires courts—not juries—to determine whether statements



made at a protest involving issues of public concern are protected. This Court properly determined
that chants and oral statements expressing subjective viewpoints on an issue of public importance
constituted constitutionally protected opinion speech. Those same protections shield the very same
statements set forth in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution prepared by Oberlin
College students as an integral part of the protests. This protected speech cannot, as a matter of
law, support the first essential element of a libel claim: a false statement of fact. Defendants are
therefore entitled to judgment as a matter of law on Plaintiffs’ libel claims. Moreover, even if the
viewpoints in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution are not protected, Plaintiffs
presented insufficient evidence at trial to establish other critical elements of their libel claims.

Second, the jury found that Dean Raimondo, but not Oberlin College, tortiously interfered
with Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc.’s purported business relationship with the College’s dining
services agent Bon Appetit Management Company (“Bon Appetit”). Yet, Plaintiffs presented no
evidence to support such a claim. In fact, settled law requires an entry of judgment for Dean
Raimondo because any business relationship that existed was, in actuality, between the College
(not its agent, Bon Appetit) and Gibson’s Bakery, meaning Dean Raimondo—as the College’s
employee with responsibility for supervising student dining services—could not interfere with the
Coilege’s own business relationship. Separately, any such interference was justified.

Third, the IIED verdict for Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson and against
Oberlin College, but not Dean Raimondo, is based on the alleged libel, meaning Plaintiffs’ IIED
claims must fall with their libel claims. The IIED claims also fail for the independent reason that,
during trial, Plaintiffs presented insufficient evidence in support of these claims.

Fourth, even if Plaintiffs met their burden of proof on their libel claims, the jury’s finding

of no constitutional malice during the liability phase of the trial prohibits the award of punitive




damages. And since Plaintiffs presented no evidence of Defendants’ alleged ITED separate from
the alleged libel, the punitive damage awards in their entirety also fail as a matter of law.

Accordingly, for all of the reasons expressed in this motion, Defendants are entitled to
judgment notwithstanding the verdict on each of Plaintiffs” claims and on Plaintiffs’ punitive
damages verdict.'

L Legal standard.

A party can move for judgment notwithstanding the verdict (“JNOV™} at any time within
twenty-eight days of entry of judgment and service of the Civ.R. 58(B) notice. See Civ.R.
50(B)(1). The INOV standard is the same as the directed verdict standard. FEastley v. Volkman,
132 Ohio St.3d 328, 2012-Ohio-2179, 972 N.E.2d 517, § 25. Both assess the legal sufficiency of
the evidence to determine if the plaintiff established “every element of each claim.” Id
Detfendants are entitled to JNOV because, as discussed below, Plaintiffs failed to establish the
elements of their claims, which is their burden as a matter of law.

11. Defendants are entitled to JNOV on Plaintiffs’ libel claims.

Defendants are entitled to JNOV on Plaintiffs’ libel claims for the following reasons:
(i) the challenged statements made by Oberlin students—not Defendants—in the Protest Flyer and
the Student Senate Resolution were not false statements of fact, but rather, protected opinions that
cannot be proven false; (ii) Plaintiffs lacked standing to bring their libel claims based on the assault
statement at issue; (iii) Defendants did not publish the Student Senate Resolution and did not
deliver the Protest Flyer with reason to know that the Flyer contained defamatory material; and
(iv) Defendants did not publish any of the challenged statements with the required degree of fault.

A cause of action for libel, or written defamation, has five elements:

(1) afalse statement of fact was made;

! Defendants are simultaneously filing and submitting an alternative motion for new trial or remittitur.
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(2) the statement was defamatory;
(3) the statement was published by the defendant;
(4) the plaintitf suffered injury as a proximate result of the
publication by the defendant; and
(5) the defendant acted with the requisite degree of fault in
publishing the statement.
Grubb & Assocs. LPA v. Brown, 2018-Ohio-3526, 119 N.E.3d 836, 1 9 (9th Dist.).

Any consideration of whether Plaintiffs can establish a defamation claim must occur
against the backdrop of the constitutional protections afforded by the First Amendment to the
United States Constitution and Article I, Section 11 of the Ohio Constitution. Among other things,
they instruct:

¢ A defamation claim cannot be based on opinions or other statements that cannot be

proven false, see Vail v. The Plain Dealer Publishing Co., 72 Ohio 5t.3d 279, 282, 649
N.E.2d 182 (1995); Milkovich v. Lorain Journal Co., 497 U.S. 1, 19-20 (1990);

» A State may not impose liability for defamation without fault, see New York Times Co.
v, Sullivan, 376 1.8, 254, 279-280 (1964); Gertz v. Robert Welch, Inc., 418 U.S. 323,
347 (1974); Lansdowne v. Beacon Journal Pub. Co., 32 Ohio St.3d 176, 178-179, 512
N.E.2d 979 (1987); and

o Fault is assessed at the time of publication, see New York Times Co., 376 U.S. at 286;
Varanese v. Gall, 35 Ohio St.3d 78, 80, 518 N.E.2d 1177 (1988).

These and other protections give speakers the breathing space needed to express unpopular
opinions—e.g., through expressive conduct like flag burning,?> cross burning,® or carrying
homophobic and anti-government signs at a funeral of a military veteran killed in active duty’—
in the uninhibited “marketplace of ideas” fostered by the First Amendment. That breathing room

is especially critical for student speech, like the speech at issue here. The Supreme Court of the

% See Texas v. Johnson, 491 U.S. 397, 405-06 (1989) (burning an American flag during a protest was
expressive conduct within protection of the First Amendment).

* See Virginia v. Black, 538 U.S. 343, 362-63 (2003) (cross burning may be banned only upon proof of an
intent to intimidate).

* See Snyder v. Phelps, 562 U.S. 443, 458 (201 1) (protesting in a public place on a matter of public concern
is entitled to “special protection™ under the First Amendment).
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United States has recognized that colleges play a central role in the marketplace of ideas: the
“college classroom with its surrounding environs,” the Court has instructed, “is peculiarly ‘the
marketplace of ideas.”” Widmar v. Vincent, 454 1.S. 263, 267 n.5 (1981). As discussed below,
Defendants cannot be held liable for the unpopular opinions expressed by Oberlin students.

A, The Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution contain no false
statements of fact directed at Plaintiffs.

Plaintiffs’ libel claims fail because longstanding legal precedent dictates that the
allegations of racism in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution, which occurred during
a protest urging a boycott, are constitutionally protected opinions that cannot be proven false.
Plaintiffs cannot avoid this result by pointing to allegations of assault in either student publication
because those allegations were not “of and concerning” them and Plaintiffs lacked standing to
assert a libel claim for statements directed at others.

1. Statements that are part of a protest urging a boycott, including
allegations of racism, are constitutionally protected opinions that
cannot be proven false.

Student allegations of racism occurring during protests urging a boycott and asking others
to join are constitutionally protected opinions that cannot be proven false and thus cannot serve as
the basis for a defamation claim under the Qhio or United States Constitutions. See Fail, 72 Ohio
St.3d at 282; Wampler v. Higgins, 93 Ohio St.3d 111, 112 (2001); Milkovich, 497 U.S. at 19
(holding that “a statement on matters of public concern must be provable as false before there can
be liability under state defamation law™).

Whether a statement is protected opinion turns on four factors: (1) the specific language
used; (2) whether the statement is verifiable; (3) the general context of the statement; and (4) the

broader context in which the statement appeared. Vail, 72 Ohio St.3d at 282. If an analysis of

those factors shows that a statement is an opinion, then the statement is protected under the Ohio




Constitution. This Court suggested otherwise in its summary judgment opinion, but that
suggestion misreads Ohio law. (See April 22, 2019 Entry and Ruling on Defendants’ Motions for
Summary Judgment (“4/22/19 Judgment Entry”) at 8.) The Supreme Court of Ohio in Vail
squarely held that the Ohio Constitution “provides a separate and independent guarantee of
protection for opinion.” 72 Ohio St.3d at 281. This is a legal issue for a court, not a factual issue
for a jury. Scottv. News-Herald, 25 Ohio 8t.3d 243, 250 (1986).

As discussed, the trial of the libel claims was limited to two student publications: (1) the
Protest Flyer and (2) the Student Senate Resolution. Despite acknowledging at the summary
judgment stage that the students’ verbal allegations of racism during the November 10-11, 2016
protests were constitutionally protected opinion, (4/22/19 Judgment Entry at 21), this Court held
that putting those same racism allegations in writing made them factual, (id. at 12, 17). That was
error. Whether communicated in writing or orally, the students’ allegations of racism during a
protest as part of an attempt to rally others to boycott Gibson’s Bakery were protected opinion.

To begin, this Court’s line between the students’ chants and the accompanying Protest
Flyer and contemporaneous Student Senate Resolution is fatally flawed. Courts in Ohio and
elsewhere have recognized that protest literature, including calls for a boycott, will be understood
by a reasonable reader as opinionated persuasive advocacy, not objective factual reporting. £.g.,
Jorg v. Cincinnati Black United Front, 153 Ohio App.3d 258, 2003-Ohio-3668, 91 20-23 (letter
calling for boycott of city and alleging that a police officer killed an unarmed man with a marine-
style chokehold would be understood by the reasonable reader as expressing the author’s opinion,
not impartial factual reporting); compare Arrington v. Palmer, 971 P.2d 669, 673 (Colo. Ct. App.
1998) (political flyer is “the type of critical commentary typically filled with political innuendo

and should not be taken at face value or viewed as a statement of fact™). Indeed, protest speech—




including chants, flyers, and signs—has always been a quintessential form of American political
speech that has long been protected by the Supreme Court of the United States. See NAACP v.
Claiborne Hardware Co., 458 U.S. 886, 907-12 (holding that all elements of an NAACP-led
boycott of white merchants—including picketing, speech, and calling on others to join the
boycott—were constitutionally protected measures to bring about “equality and racial justice”
under the First Amendment because “[t]he established elements of speech, assembly, association,
and petition, though not identical, are inseparable.”). Thus, contrary to this Court’s summary
judgment ruling, the broad context of the Protest Flyer’s efforts to “rally the reader to act,” (4/22/19
Judgment Entry at 12), are what make it more likely to be understood as protected opinion, not
less. See Jorg, 2003-Ohio-3668 9 23 (reader of a letter urging a boycott “would have determined
that it was a persuasive piece of advocacy, and not a news article purporting to be objective
reporting”). A protest flyer, in short, is a “type[] of writing” with a “social convention” signaling
that its statements are expressions of opinion. Scoft, 25 Ohio St.3d at 253, citing Ollman v. Evans,
750 F.2d 970, 979 (D.C. Cir. 1984).

Such a convention is confirmed by the context of the challenged statements within the
Protest Flyer itself. Scotz, 25 Ohio St.3d at 252-254. The Protest Flyer begins with an all-caps
and bold-faced exhortation: “DON’T BUY.” (Pls.’ Trial Exhibit 263.%) After the allegedly
libelous statements, the Protest Flyer continues: “Today we urge you to shop elsewhere in light of
a particularly heinous event involving the owners of this establishment and local law
enforcement.” Id. The “average reader viewing the allegedly defamatory words in the context of
the entire [Protest Flyer] would have been hard-pressed to accept [the Oberlin College students®]

statements as impartial reporting” as opposed to advocacy. Jorg, 2003-Chio-3668, §21.

3 Plaintiffs® Trial Exhibit 263 is attached hereto as Exhibit 1,
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This Court suggested that the distinction between the protected oral chanting and the
Protest Flyer is that the latter “contained implications of additional information or factual support
for the statements.” (4/22/19 Judgment Entry at 21.) But that is incorrect factually and is an
inconsequential legal distinction. The Protest Flyer asked those with additional information to
come forward: telling the reader, “[i|f you have any additional information, video, or photo
evidence of this event, please contact” a particular email address. (Pls.” Trial Exhibit 263.) The
context of the allegedly defamatory statements and this Court’s recognition that the oral chants
were protected opinion thus compel a finding that the Protest Flyer also is protected opinion. The
oral chants, after all, included the same statements alleged to be defamatory when appearing in the
Protest Flyer. (See, e.g., Trial Tr., May 21, 2019, at 142:23-25° (Plaintiff David Gibson testifying
that Oberlin College students chanted that Plaintiffs “had a long history of racism”);
https://www.facebook.com/ChronicleTelegram/videos/10155471981413242 (Chronicle-
Telegram video on Facebook of a student, at the 3:20 mark, reading into the bullhorn the following:
“yesterday, three students from the Africana community were assaulted and arrested as a result of
a history of racial profiling and racial discrimination by Gibsons.”).)

The same is true of the Student Senate Resolution published by Oberlin students. That
resolution also urged a boycott (asking students to “immediately cease all support, financial and
otherwise, of Gibson’s Food Market and Bakery®) and, like the Protest Flyer, is protected opinion
for this reason. Jorg, 2003-Ohio-3668, 1 20-23; compare Maddox Defense, Inc. v. GeoData Sys.
Mgmt., Inc., 8th Dist. No. 107559, 2019-Ohio-1778, 4 58 (explaining that “where potentially

defamatory statements are published in a public debate, a heated labor dispute, or in another setting

® Interestingly, David Gibson testified at trial that he had no cause to sue the protestors, despite their chants
of the same language found to be defamatory in the Protest Flyer. (Trial Tr., May 21, 2019, at 154:23-
155:6.) All May 21, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 2.
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in which the audience may anticipate efforts by the parties to persuade others to their positions by
use of epithets, fiery rhetoric or hyperbole, language which generally might be considered as
statements of fact may well assume the character of statements of opinion™), quoting Gregory v.
McDonnell Douglas Corp., 17 Cal.3d 596, 601 (1976).

Extending opinion protection to a student resolution on matters of public interest also
comports with the protection afforded state and federal legislators to speak freely and express
opinions on issues of public interest. See U.S. Constitution, Article I, Section 6, cl. 1 (federal
speech-and-debate clause); Ohio Constitution, Article II, Section 12 (Ohio speech-and-debate
clause); Gravel v. United States, 408 U.S. 606, 616-18 (1972); Costanzo v. Gaul, 62 Ohio St.2d
106, 109-110, 403 N.E.2d 979 (1980). Even outside the boycott context, a student resolution
should be viewed through a similar lens. As noted by the Supreme Court of the United States,
government interference with student speech at a public university risks “chilling . . . individual
thought and expression,” Rosenberger v. Rector & Visitors of Univ. of Virginia, 515 U.S. 819, 835

(1995), which is contrary to the essence of a college environment that is “peculiarly ‘the

marketplace of ideas.”” Widmar, 454 U.S. at 267 n.5. Like a political flyer, a student government

resolution—particularly #kis resolution urging a boycott—is a “type[] of writing” with a “social
convention” signaling that its statements are opinion, Sceff, 25 Ohio St.3d at 253—namely, the
opinion of the students on matters of interest to them.

What is more, trial confirmed the allegedly defamatory statements cannot be verified as
actionable fact. For instance, upon cross-examination, Vicky Gaines, an African-American
woman who Plaintiffs called as a character witness, testified that people can have a different
perspective on whether someone has been subjected to racism:

Q: Mrs. Gaines, you would agree with me that whether someone feels that he or she
has been subjected to racism is a matter of that person’s opinion, correct?



A Correct.
(Trial Tr., May 13, 2019, at 37:11-14.7) Similarly, upon cross-cxamination, Sharon Patmon,

another African-American woman and friend of Plaintiffs, testified as follows:

Q: Mrs. Patmon, you would agree with me that whether someone is a racist is a matter
of opinion, right?
A: Yes.

(Trial Tr., May 10,2019, at 94:18-21.%) These concessions track the holdings of many jurisdictions
that have deemed accusations of racism to be protected opinion. .g., Ayyadurai v. Floor64, Inc.,
270 F.Supp.3d 343, 364-65 (D. Mass. 2017) (statement that those who disagree with an author are
“racist” was protected opinion); Smith v. Sch. Dist. of Philadelphia, 112 F.Supp.2d 417, 429
(E.D.Pa. 2000) (statement that plaintiff is “racist and anti-Semitic,” although “unflattering,
annoying and embarrassing,” is not defamatory as a matter of law because it is “merely non-fact
based rhetoric™), Carto v. Buckley, 649 F.Supp. 502, 508 (S.D.N.Y. 1986) (“There is no one
opinion of what constitutes ‘racial and religious bigotry,” or for that matter what constitutes
‘bigotry’ generally.”); In re Green, 11 P.3d 1078, 1086 (Colo. 2000) (statement that judge was a
“racist and bigot” was protected opinion).

An allegation of racism does not become factual when coupled with terms like “long” (as
in the Protest Flyer) or “a history” (as in the Student Senate Resolution). Since there is no one
opinion of what is racist conduct,” see Carto, 649 F.Supp. at 508, there can be no one opinion of
what is a “long account™ of racist conduct or “a history” of such conduct. Indeed, even in isolation,

terms like “long” or “a history” cannot be quantified and thus cannot be verified. This case shows

7 All May 13, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 3.

§ All May 10, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 4.

? To some, for example, asking a student of color, but not a white student, to remove his or her backpack at
the front of Gibson’s Bakery may indicate that the student of color was racially profiled or discriminated
compared to his or her white counterpart. To others, however, the request to the student of color may
simply suggest that the Bakery enforced its policy of not permitting backpacks in the store haphazardly.
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why. Protestors have accused Plaintiffs of racism at least as far back as April 1990.1° Is almost
30 years sufficient to constitute “long” or “a history”? Or would 5 years, 50 years, or 100 years
suffice? Plaintiffs may have a different opinion of what is “long” or “a history” than protesting
Oberlin students. But that is the point. While one can certainly verify that Plaintiffs were accused
of racism before November 2016, whether they have a “long account™ or “a history” of racism is
not verifiable and thus not factual.

Nor would it matter if allegations of racism could be characterized as “pejorative.”
(4/22/19 Judgment Entry at 9, 15, 16, 19, 20, 21.) That is not—nor has it ever been—the test for
whether a statement is verifiable. State and federal constitutional law instead looks to whether a
“statement lacks a plausible method of verification,” Vai/, 72 Ohio $t.3d at 283, or whether it
“contain[s] a provably false factual connotation,” Milkovich, 497 U.S. at 20. The term
“pejorative,” which simply refers to an expression of contempt,'! has nothing to do with either
inquiry. Thus, even if this Court correctly concluded that allegations of racism are pejorative, such
a characterization does not show that those ailegations were anything other than an expression of
opinion by Oberlin students.

In sum, Plaintiffs’ libel claims fail at the threshold because the Oberlin students’ allegations

of racism were constitutionally protected opinions, not verifiable false statements of fact.

0 See The Oberlin Review, “Protestors accuse Gibson of racism,” April 27, 1990, attached hereto as
Exhibit 5 and publicly available at

http://edm15963.contentdm. oclc.org/cdm/pageflip/coliection/p15963coll9/id/151078/type/compoundobje
ct/show/15105 1/cpdtype/document/pttype/image#page/1/mode/2up.

" Pejorative, Oxford Dictionary of English (2017).
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2. The assault allegations in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate
Resolution were not directed at Plaintiffs, and the racism allegations
were not directed at Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson.

The assault accusations in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution are the only

other allegedly libelous statements. In relevant part, the Protest Flyer provided:

A member of our community was assauited by the owner of this

establishment yesterday. A nineteen y/o young man was
_ apprehended and choked by Allyn.Gibson of Gibson's Food Mart &
_,___m'.-ﬁ'ré'ywng man, who was accompanied by 2 friends was- :
" choked until the 2 forced Allyn to let go. After The youfig man was
. free, Allyn chased him across Collage St. and Into Tappan Square.
| There, Allyn tackled him and restrained him again umtil Obedin pdlics |
amved The 3 wers racially profiled on the scene. They ware arrested

(Pls.” Trial Exhibit 263.) Given that the accusations were made during protests urging a boycott,
the assault accusations would be protected opinion if Plaintiffs had the ability to assert a libel claim
based on them. See supra; Jorg, 2003-Ohio-3668, 14 20-23; Maddox, 2019-Ohio-1778, 4 58. But
Plaintiffs lack the ability to assert a libel claim based on assault accusations directed only at non-
party Allyn D. Gibson—the son and grandson of David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson, respectively.
Two legal doctrines explain why.

First, substantive defamation law instructs that statements are not actionable unless a

113

plaintiff proves those statements are “‘of and concerning’ the plaintiff.” E.g., Great Lakes Capital
Partners Lid. v. Plain Dealer Publishing Co., 8th Dist, No. 91215, 2008-Ohio-6495, 99 48-49.
Second, plaintiffs lack standing to sue for statements not directed at them. See Ebbing v. Stewart,
12th Dist. Butler No. CA2016-05-085, 2016-Ohio-7645, Y 15-16 (“it is clear that Erin is not a

real party in interest to assert such a defamation claim. Neither the television news broadcast nor

the online article mentions Erin by name.”); Kassouf v. White, 8th Dist. Cuyahoga No. 75446,
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2000 WL 235770, at *3 (Mar. 2, 2000) (recognizing that an individual who was not a target of an
alleged defamatory statement has no standing to sue); see also Civ.R. 17(A) (a litigant must be a
real party in interest to properly prosecute a case); BAC Home Loan Serv. v. McFerren, 2013-
Ohio-3228, 6 N.E.3d 51, § 6 (9th Dist.) (“[T]he issue of standing, inasmuch as it is jurisdictional
in nature, may be raised at any time during the pendency of the proceedings.”) (internal quotation
and citation omitted). Both doctrines bar Plaintiffs from asserting their libel claims based on
accusations of assault in the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution, which were directed
only at non-party, Allyn D. Gibson.

The full text of the Protest Flyer malkes clear that the accusation of assault is directed only
at Allyn D. Gibson, not Plaintiffs:

A member of our community was assaulted by the owner of this establishment

yesterday. A nineteen y/o young man was apprehended and choked by Allyn

Gibson of Gibson’s Food Mart & Bakery. The young man, who was accompanied

by 2 friends was choked until the 2 forced Allyn to let go. After the young man

was free, Allyn chased him across College St. and into Tappan Square. There,
Allyn tackled him and restrained him again until Oberlin police arrived.

(Pls.” Trial Exhibit 263) (emphasis added.) This Court acknowledged as much throughout this
litigation. For instance, in the Court’s written ruling on Defendants® Motions for Summary
Judgment, the Court stated: first, that the November 9, 2016 incident involved “three African-
American Oberlin College Students . . . and Allyn D. Gibson”; and second, that “the flyer
indicates that after the initial assault of choking by Allyn, a second assault occurred when Allyn
tackled the young man and restrained him until the police arrived.” (Emphasis added) (4/22/19
Judgment Entry at 1, 9.) Further, during the hearing on Plaintiffs® Partial Motion for Directed
Verdict, Plaintiffs’ counsel stated that “the assault allegations are false . . . plaintiffs have shown

that the only owners of Gibson’s Bakery in November of 2016, were Dave and Grandpa Gibson,”
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to which the Court responded, “in the alleged libelous material, didn’t they clarify that with the
description of Allyn, you know?” (Trial Tr., June 4, 2019, at 26:19-27:2.1%)

Not a single witness testified during trial that they understood that the “Allyn” accused in
the Protest Flyer of assaulting, choking, and chasing a young man into Tappan Square was 90-
vear-old Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson. In contrast, Plaintiffs’ own witnesses understood the
accusation of assault to be referring only to Allyn D. Gibson. For example, Oberlin Police Sgt.
Victor Ortiz testified that the November 9, 2016 incident involved three College students and Allyn
D. Gibson, not David Gibson nor Allyn W. Gibson. (Trial Tr., May 10, 2019, at 160:4-15.)
Further, Michele Gross testified that she understood the accusation of assault to be directed at
Allyn D. Gibson, not Allyn W. Gibson. (Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 111:1-25."%) Significantly,
when Ms. Gross was asked during trial about the statement that “Allyn Gibson assaulted three
black people,” the Court stated the obvious—that the statement is referring to Allyn D. Gibson,
not David or Allyn W. Gibson. (Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 111:9-12: “You say ‘Allyn Gibson,’

and there are two Allyn Gibsons. Might be helpful to the jury to know we’re not talking about

grandpa.”).

Because Plaintiffs did not (and could not) prove that the accusation of assault was directed
at any of them, they failed to establish that the accusation was “of and concerning them.” They
also thus lacked standing to bring a claim based on the alleged defamation of someone else.
Therefore, Plaintiffs cannot establish their libel claims based on any accusation of assault.

For the same reasons, Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson cannot establish a libel
claim based on the racism allegations. The two racism allegations that went to the jury were “of

and concerning” Gibson’s Bakery, not Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson. (See Trial

12 All June 4, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Fxhibit 6.
13 All May 14, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 7.
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Tr., June 6, 2019, at 64:2-13 (jury charge identifving allegation that “[t]his is a racist
establishment,” and allegation that “Gibson’s has a history of racial profiling and discriminatory
treatment™) (emphasis added).)!* Unidentified individuals may not sue for alleged defamation of
a business with which they are affiliated. E.g., Three Amigos SJL Rest., Inc. v. CBS News Inc., 65
N.E.3d 35, 37-38 (N.Y. 2016} (affirming dismissal of defamation claims asserted by individual
plaintiffs where “defendants’ broadcast referred only to the club and failed to include sufficient
particulars of identification in order to be actionable by an individual”). Because the racism
allegations were only “of and concerning™ Gibson’s Bakery itself, Plaintiffs David Gibson and
Allyn W, Gibson cannot establish a libel claim based on those allegations.

B. Plaintiffs failed to present sufficient evidence of publication.

1. Plaintiffs introduced insufficient evidence to show that Defendants
published the Student Senate Resolution.

Plaintiffs’ libel claims based on the Student Senate Resolution also fail because they did
not prove that Defendants published it. This Court stated at the summary judgment phase that
“liability to respond in damages for the publication of defamation must be predicated on a positive
act.” (Emphasis added) (4/22/19 Judgment Entry ét 6) (internal citation omitted). “Nonfeasance,”
this Court explained, “is not a predicate for liability” and “[m]ere knowledge” of what someone
else does “is insufficient to support liability.” (Emphasis added} Id.

First, Plaintiffs presented no evidence that Oberlin College or Dean Raimondo authored,
prepared, or even knew about the text of the Student Senate Resolution before the Student Senate
independently circulated it to the student body. Dean Raimondo and former Oberlin College

President Marvin Krislov both confirmed that they did not help draft the Student Senate Resolution

“ All June 6, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 8.
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and only became aware of it when a member of the Student Senate sent them a copy after the
Student Senate already passed it and emailed it to the entire student body. (Trial Tr., May
28,2019, at 19:4-21:13'5; Trial Tr., May 29, 2019, at 111:11-112:24'€; Trial Tr., May 13, 2019, at
56:19-23; see Defs.” Trial Exhibit A-3.!") Plaintiffs presented no evidence suggesting otherwise.

Second, Plaintiffs presented no evidence of any “positive act” by Defendants in connection

with the placement of the Student Senate Resolution on the Senate’s locked bulletin board located
in the basement of Wilder Hall. In fact, Plaintiffs presented no evidence that Defendants even
knew the Student Senate Resolution was posted there. See Cooke v. United Dairy Farmers, Inc.,
10th Dist. Butler No. 02AP-781, 2003-Ohio-3118, 9 25 (“Mere knowledge of the acts of another
is insufficient to support liability.”). Rather, both Dean Raimondo and former President Marvin
Krislov testified that they had no knowledge whatsoever that the Student Senate Resolution was
posted on the Senate’s locked bulletin board in Wilder Hall. (Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 8:21-25;
Trial Tr., May 28, 2019, at 21:14-24; Trial Tr., May 29, 2019, at 129:9-13.)

Plaintiffs theorized that merely because the Student Senate Resolution was in Wilder Hall,
Defendants therefore are liable for it. Attorney Lee Plakas summarized Plaintiffs’ theory of
Defendants’ apparent “positive act”;

With regard to the Student Senate Resolution, if people are using your equipment,

your facilities, and using that equipment, facilities or power to defame or hurt

anyone, then you have the power to say, you can’t use our e-mail system for
defamatory conduct.

(Triat Tr., June 5, 2019, at 87:15-19.'*) But making facilities or equipment available is not proof

of publishing. See 3 Restatement of Law 2d, Torts, Section 581, Comment b (1977) (explaining

15 All May 28, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 9.
16 All May 29, 2019 Trial Transeript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 10.
17 Defendants’ Trial Exhibit A-3 is attached hereto as Exhibit 11.

18 All June 5, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 12.
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that “one who merely makes available to another equipment or facilities that he may use himself
for general communications purposes” is not even a deliverer or transmitter of defamatory
material); Keeton, Dobbs, Keeton & Owen, Prosser and Keeton on the Law of Torts, Section 113,
804 (5th ed. 1984) (“Those who supply equipment to others who use the equipment so supplied
for publication of defamatory matter are not publishers.”); see also Lunney v. Prodigy Servs. Co.,
723 N.E.2d 539, 542 (1999) (holding that internet service provider is “not a publisher of the e-mail
transmitted through its system by a thlird party’”). That is particularly true for email systems, the
provider of which is not a publisher as a matter of controlling federal law. See 47 U.S.C. 230(c)(1)
(specifying that “[n]o provider or user of an interactive computer service shall be treated as the
publisher or speaker of any information provided by another information content provider.”).'?
What is more, one’s authority to remove something—or withdraw access—is not a
“positive act” that can give rise to liability. See Scort v. Hull, 22 Ohio App.2d 141, 144-145, 259
N.E.2d 160 (3rd Dist. 1970) (finding that “failing to remove” graffiti was not a “positive act” for
which liability may be imposed). And, importantly, there was no evidence that the College
administration even possessed the authority or ability to remove content from the Senate’s bulletin
board, which was locked and reserved sclely for Senate use. Plaintiffs thus cannot establish
publication based on a failure to remove the Resolution from the bulletin board in Wilder Hall,
where Oberlin College students—not Defendants—placed it.
Third, even if mere nonfeasance were actionable (as discussed, it is not), Plaintiffs still
could not establish their libel claims based on the Student Senate Resolution because no third-
party witness testified that he or she actually read the Student Senate Resolution in Wilder Hall.

Ohio law is clear: a plaintiff must identify a third party (i.e., not the pl'aintiff himself) who read

19 Oberlin College’s email system is an interactive computer service protected by federal law. See 47 U.S.C.
230(1)(2); Delfino v. Agilent Technologies, Inc., 52 Cal.Rptr.3d 376, 389-390 (Cal.Ct.App.2006).
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the allegedly libelous statement and understood its defamatory meaning. See Hahn v. Kotter, 43
Ohio St.2d 237, 243 (1975) (defamation requires a plaintiff to establish “a publication to a third
person for which the defendant is responsible, [and] the recipient’s understanding of the
defamatory meaning.”). The lack of any evidence that someone read the Student Senate
Resolution in Wilder Hall dooms Plaintiffs’ libel claims even if Defendants could be held liable
for failing to remove it.

Importantly, publication cannot be inferred from the Student Senate Resolution being
posted in Wilder Hall. The decision in Kinney v. Kroger Co., 146 Ohio App.3d 691, 2001-Ohio-
3974, 9 27 (10th Dist.) is instructive on this point. There, the court held that a photocopy of the
plaintiff’s bad check that was posted for several months near a cash register in a populat grocery
store chain did not constitute publication, even though “members of the public might have seen
it”?® As with the photocopy at issue in Kinney, Plaintiffs did not present any evidence that an
identifiable third party read and understood the Resolution. Plaintiffs’ position here that
“members of the public might have seen” the Student Senate Resolution in Wilder Hall (i.e.,
circumstantial evidence) is not enough.

Accordingly, because Defendants did not publish the Student Senate Resolution, Plaintiffs

cannot establish their libel claims based on the Student Senate Resolution.

W See also, e.g., Quamme v. Lancaster-Fairfield Comm. Hosp., 5th Dist. Fairfield No. 94-CA-33, 1995 WL
156276, at ¥2 (Feb. 27, 1995) (“The plaintiff must also allege publication of the statement to an identifiable
third party.”); Wyrick v. Westover Retirement Comm., 12th Dist. Butler No. 88-06-086, 1980 WL 21229, at
*2 (Mar. 13, 1989) (in a slander claim, “[t]he trial court was not required to assume that a third party heard
this statement simply because there were persons present in the dining hall when the statements were made.
Quite the contrary, absent some evidence indicating that a third person did indeed hear the statement, there
is no publication and therefore no actual defamation.”); McPeek v. Leetonia lialian-Am. Club, 174 Ohio
App.3d 380, 2007-Ohio-7218, 882 N.E.2d 450, § 14 (7th Dist.) (“Appellant has failed to provide proof that
any written statement was published to any third party. . . . Appellant stated in his deposition that he had
no knowledge that anyone, other than himself, had seen or read the notice of suspension.”).
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2. Plaintiffs failed to show that Defendants delivered the Protest Flyer
with reason to know that it was false.

Plaintiffs also cannot establish the publication element with respect to the Protest Flyer.
Since the Protest Flyer was written by Oberlin students, Plaintiffs could not prove publication
simply by showing that Dean Raimondo delivered a copy of the Protest Flyer to another person.
See 3 Restatement of the Law 2d, Torts, Section 581, Comment b (1977); Keeton, Dobbs, Keeton
& Owen, Prosser and Keeton on the Law of Torts, Section 113, 810-811 (5th ed. 1984). Plaintiffs
also had to prove that Dean Raimondo knew or had reason to know of the existence of defamatory
content in the Protest Flyer when she handed it to Jason Hawk. 3 Restatement of Law 2d, Torts,
Section 581, Comment ¢; Keeton, Dobbs, Keeton & Owen, Section 113, 811; accord Cubby, Inc.
v. CompuServe, Inc., 776 F.Supp. 135, 139 (S8.DNY. 199.1) (explaining that “vendors and
distributors of defamatory publications are not liable if they neither know nor have reason to know
of the defamation.™).

In this context, “reason to know” means proof that the defendant has information from
which a person of reasonable intelligence would infer that the writing contained defamatory
material. 3 Restatement of Law 2d, Torts, Section 581, Comment ¢; see also 1 Restatement of the
Law 2d, Torts, Section 12(1) (1965). This is different than a “should know” standard and imposes
no duty on the defendant to ascertain whether defamatory material exists in the writing.
1 Restatement of Law 2d, Section 12, Comment a.

Here, Plaintiffs did not present sufficient evidence to show that Dean Raimondo either
knew or had reason to know of defamatory content in the Protest Flyer. Dean Raimondo testified
that she only had a copy of the Protest Flyer for about two minutes before handing it to Jason

Hawk, and that she was unable to read the Protest Flyer during that time, let alone ascertain
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whether references to racism in the boycott literature were either factual or true.?! (Trial Tr., May
28, 2019, at 17:10-18:1.) A reasonable person’s understanding of the law would suggest that the
content of the Protest Flyer represented the personal opinion of the author. As discussed, supra
Section I1.A.1, the controlling legal authority dictates that the content was not a false statement of
fact that could be verified.

Plaintiffs resort to after-the-fact emails, text messages, and opinions from members of the
Oberlin community to suggest Defendants should have known that Plaintiffs were not racist.
Indeed, in his opening and closing statements during the punitiv.e damages phase of trial, Attorney
Lee Plakas published a Power Point to the jury identifying every such email, text message, and
opinion.”> But none of these emails, text messages, and personal opinions address what Dean
Raimondo had reason to know when she delivered a copy of the Protest Flyer to Jason Hawk on
November 10, 2016. See 1 Restatement of Law 2d, Section 12, Comment a.

Nor would it matter if Defendants made available equipment or facilities for students to
use to publish the Protest Flyer. As discussed above, this sort of assistance does not even qualify
as delivering or transmitting defamatory material, much less publishing it. See 3 Restatement,
Section 581, Comment b; Keeton, Dobbs, Keeton & Owen, Section 113, 804,

Since Plaintiffs cannot show that Defendants delivered the Protest Flyer with reason to
know of any defamatory material, their libel claims with respect to the Protest Flyer fail as a matter

of law.

?1 Plaintiffs presented testimony from Clarence (“Trey”) James—a Bakery employee—that he witnessed
Dean Raimondo holding a stack of Protest Flyers on November 10, 2016 and that she handed about half of
the stack to a student. (Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 178:22-179:7.) Notwithstanding Defendants’ attacks on
Mr. James’ credibility, such activity fails to satisfy the publication element of libel, as discussed above.

22 The relevant Power Point slides are attached hereto as Exhibit 13.
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C. Plaintiffs failed to present sufficient evidence that Defendants acted with the
constitutionally required degree of fauli.

Defendants are separately entitled to JNOV on Plaintiffs’ libel claims because the jury
determined Defendants did not libel Plaintiffs—who are public or limited-purpose public figures—
with actual malice. At the very least, there was insufficient evidence that Defendants libeled
Plaintiffs with negligence.

1. Plaintiffs are public figures or limited-purpose public figures, and the
jury’s finding that Defendants did not commit libel with actual malice
dooms Plaintiffs’ libel claims.

The jury’s finding at the liability phase of trial that Defendants did not libel Plaintiffs with
constitutional actual malice is yet another independent reason for which Defendants are entitled to
JNOV on Plaintiffs’® libel claims. Plaintiffs’ status as public or limited-purpose public figures
makes the lack of constitutional actual malice dispositive.

Both public figures and limited-purpose public figures “must show by clear and convincing
evidence that the statements were made with actual malice, that is, with knowledge that the
statements were false or with reckless disregard of whether they were false or not.” (Emphasis
added) Daubenmire v. Sommers, 156 Ohio App.3d 322, 2004-Ohio-914, 805 N.E.2d 571, § 90
(12th Dist.), citing New York Times Co. v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254, 279-280 (1964). A plaintiff is
a public figure if he or she has “general fame or notoriety in the community.” Gertz v. Robert
Welch, Inc., 418 U.S. 323, 352 (1974). And a plaintiff becomes a limited-purpose public figure
when he “voluntarily injects himself or is drawn into a particular public controversy, thereby
becoming a public figure for a limited range of issues.” (Emphasis added) Gilbert v. WNIR 100

FM, 142 Ohio App.3d 725, 738, 756 N.E.2d 1263 (9th Dist. 2001); see also Daubenmire, 2004-

Ohio-914, at 4 89 (one is a limited-purpose public figure if there is a public controversy, the
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plaintiff played a sufficiently central role in the controversy, and the alleged defamation was
germane to the plaintiff’s involvement in that controversy).

Here, Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc. is a public figure because it has general fame in Oberlin,
Ohio. As Plaintiffs touted during trial, Gibson’s Bakery has been in business for over 100 years;
and during this time, it has achieved fame in the Oberlin community. As a result, the Court should
find that Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc. itself is a public figure. Gertz, 418 U.S. at 351-352,

At the very least, however, all three Plaintiffs are limited-purpose public figures because
they voluntarily injected themselves and were drawn into a public controversy—regarding the
treatment of black customers—during and after the November 9, 2016 incident when a Bakery
employee, Allyn D. Gibson, carried out the Bakery’s policy of chasing and detaining suspected
shoplifters. The police arrived within minutes, took statements from Bakery employees only, and
then arrested the three black students. Police body cam footage shows a recognition by Plaintiff
David Gibson that the incident drew him and his store into a public controversy: just moments
after the incident took place, David Gibson muttered “[the students] are going to trash us.”??
In fact, shortly afier the police left the Bakery on November 9, 2016, students warned David
Gibson that they would protest the way the Bakery handled the student suspected of shoplifting
and attempting to purchase wine with a fake 1}, Plaintiffs also welcomed the public’s ardent
support via a Facebook page entitled “Gibson’s Bakery Support Page” that resulted in counter

protestors coming to the Bakery’s defense within days of the November 9, 2016 incident.

Importantly, this public controversy over the Bakery’s treatment of black customers existed well

3 The Oberlin Police body cam video is publicly available on YouTube at
https://www.youtube.com/watch?ime_continue=922&v=M7n8f8sL.TDE. The relevant portion of the
video begins at the 15:20 mark.

22




before the ensuing protests, and controversy over how the Bakery treats its patrons dates back to
at least the 1990s. See supra footnote 10.

The media frenzy that followed shows the magnitude of the controversy. During the 21-
months of this litigation, countless media outlets have published interviews, reports, and opipion
picces related to this lawsuit, with the full cooperation of Plaintiffs.* Indeed, the leading local
newspaper, the Chronicle-Telegram, sent a reporter every single day throughout trial to report
daily on the trial proceedings. Even Plaintiffs’ lead counsel, Lee Plakas, told the jury that this case
was the subject of substantial media scrutiny, with reporting and opinion pieces published in
outlets such as the The New York Times, The Washington Post, Fox News, CNN, and The Wall
Street Journal, among others. (Trial Tr., June 12, 2019, at 14:10-16.%) Attorney Plakas even
described to the jury their role in this controversial case—that they will forevermore “be known
as the Gibson Bakery jury or a Gibson Bakery juror.” (Trial Tr., June 13, 2019, at 53:13-16.%9)
This extensive media coverage would not exist, nor would the jurors be forever associated with
this lawsuit, unless this case were in fact about a “particular public controversy,” in which
Plaintiffs both voluntarily injected themselves—through their chase and detain policy, public
outreach to supporters, and outreach to news media outlets—and into which Plaintiffs were drawn.

(Emphasis added) Gilbert, 142 Ohio App.3d at 738. Plaintiffs are, at a minimum, limited-purpose

public figures.

?* The Court prohibited Defendants from discovering Plaintiffs’ counsel’s communications with the news
media, though ordered Plaintiffs to identify to Defendants each of the media outlets with which Plaintiffs’
counsel communicated. See April 18, 2018 Entry and Order. In a letter to Defendants fellowing the Court’s
order, Plaintiffs’ counsel stated that they had been in communication with the following media outlets:
Legal Insurrection blog; Associated Press; The Oberlin News Tribune; The Chronicle-Telegram; and The
Oberlin Review.

2 All June 12, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 14.

26 All June 13, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 15.
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At summary judgment, this Court should have found Plaintiffs to be limited-purpose public
figures. It did not, which was error. The Court should now correct that error and find that Plaintiffs
are limited-purpose public figures, which requires dismissal of their libel claims. On June 7, 2019,

the jury specified on their verdict forms that Defendants did not act with actual malice:

t
[

B. Did David R. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence th i
at Ob
wilh actual malice in Jibeling him? & crlin College acted

l Please circle one:  YES or
j ""3 / i 7 4 - / / ﬂ

(Executed Jury Interrogatory #1 — David Gibson’s Libel Claim Agamst Oberlin College Y

B. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by clear snd convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with actual malice in libeling him?

Please circle one:  YES or
| Hoionw: w8 >y

(Executed Jury Interrogatory #1 - Allyn W. Gibson’s Libel Cla1m Agams‘[ Oberlm College )

i

B. Did Gibson Bros. Inc. prove by clear and convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted |
with actual malice in defaming it? .

€ Please circl or

(Executed Jury Interrogatory #1 — Gibson Bros., Inc.’s Libel Claim Against Oberlin College.)

As stated above, Plaintiffs—as public or limited-purpose public figures—were required to
show that Defendants acted with actual malice to prevail on their libel claims. Accordingly,
because Plaintiffs failed to meet this burden during the liability phase of trial, the Court should

enter judgment for Defendants on Plaintiffs’ libel claims,

27 All of the jury’s executed interrogatories for the liability phase of trial are attached hereto as Exhibit 16.
The jury similarly answered “NO” in each of the libel interrogatories regarding Dean Raimondo.
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2. Plaintiffs’ libel claims also fail under a constitutional negligence
standard of fault.

Even if Plaintiffs were not public or limited-purpose public figures, and even if Defendants
were a publisher of one or both of the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution, the First
Amendment and Ohio law still require Plaintiffs to prove by clear and convincing evidence that
Defendants failed to act reasonably in attempting to discover the truth or falsity of the Protest Flyer
and the Student Senate Resolution. See Lawmsdowne v. Beacon Journal Pub. Co., 32 Ohio St.3d
176, 180-181 (1987). Plaintiffs did not meet that burden at trial.

As to the Student Senate Resolution, Plaintifts could not show that Defendants failed to act
reasonably in attempting to discover its truth or falsity because it is undisputed that Defendants
first became aware of the Student Senate Resolution after the Oberlin College Student Senate
published the Resolution to the entire student body. See supra Section 11.B.1. Indeed, there is
no evidence that Defendants even knew a copy of the Student Senate Resolution was hanging in
the Student Senate’s locked bulletin board in the basement of Wilder Hall. /4 Under the First

Amendment, fault is assessed at the time of publication. New York Times Co. v. Sullivan, 376

U.S. 254, 286 (1964) (statement irrelevant where it did “not indicate malice at the time of the
publication™); Varanese v. Gall, 35 Ohio St.3d 78, 80, 518 N.E.2d 1177 (1988) (“[A]ctual malice
is to be measured as of the time of publication.”). Because Defendants were unaware of the
Student Senate Resolution when it was published, they could not have acted unreasonably in
attempting to discover its truth or falsity, even if the allegations of racism were verifiable {(which,
as explained supra in Section ILA.1, they were not). Accordingly, Plaintiffs’ libel claims based
on the Student Senate Resolution fail even under a negligence standard.

The timing of publication also dooms Plaintitfs’ efforts to establish fault as to the Protest

Flyer, even under the fault standard that would apply to the primary publisher of that Flyer (which
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Defendants were not). As discussed, Dean Raimondo was unable to read the Protest Flyer before
she delivered it to Jason Hawk. See supra Section I1.B.2. And after-the-fact emails, text messages,
and personal opinions from members of the Oberlin community were unknown to Dean Raimondo
at the time she delivered the Protest Flyer to Jason Hawk. 7d.

Indeed, emails, text messages, and any other conduct that post-dates Dean Raimondo’s
alleged publication of the Protest Flyer are wholly irrelevant to the constitutional fault analysis—
i.e., whether Defendants acted unreasonably in attempting to discover the truth or falsity of the
Protest Flyer at the time of publication. First, as discussed, courts find it “self-evident that
information acquired after the publication of defamatory material cannot be relevant to the
publisher’s state of mind . . . at the time of publication.” (Emphasis added) Herbert v. Lando,
781 F.2d 298, 306 (2d Cir. 1986) (holding that evidence unavailable to publisher could not show
that publisher acted with actual malice at the time of publication); compare Bose Corp. v.
Consumers Union of U.S., Inc., 466 U.S. 485, 512 (1984) (later efforts by publisher to rationalize
earlier mistake do not show an awareness of inaccuracy at the time of publication). Second, a
plaintiff cannot circumvent the required fault standard “by pooling all of the information arguably
within the knowledge of various employees and imputing all of that knowiedge to the corporate
defendant . . ..” Reed v. Northwestern Pub. Co., 530 N.E.2d 474, 484 (I1l. 1988). Thus, even if
they were not public or limited-purpose public figures, the First Amendment would require
Plaintiffs to prove, at the very least, that Dean Raimondo herself acted unreasonably in attempting
to discover the truth or falsity of the Protest Flyer in the two minutes she had it before handing it
to Jason Hawk.

But they were unable to make even that showing. Dean Raimondo did not know (nor could

she have known) of the community members’ opinions, let alone the witnesses’ trial testimony,
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when she allegedly handed the Protest Flyer to another on November 10, 2016. Put differently, a
reasonable person under like circumstances—i.e., monitoring a protest—would not be able to
ascertain these community members’ opinions in the two minutes before the Protest Flyer was
handed to Jason Hawk. And because whether someone is racist is a matter of opinion, Dean
Raimondo would not be able to verify the truth of the Protest Flyer even if she had more than two
minutes to do so. Simply put, there were no reasonable means by which Dean Raimondo could
have discovered the truth or falsity of the Protest Flyer. In fact, Dean Raimondo testified during
trial—over two years after the November 2016 protests—that she still has not formed an opinion
as to the truth of the allegations in the Protest Flyer. {See Trial Tr., May 13, 2019, at 43:24-44:6,
47:4-6, 47:23-25.) The Court should therefore enter judgment for Defendants on Plaintiffs’ libel
claims.

III. Dean Raimondo is entitled to JNOV on Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc.’s tortious
interference with business relationships claim.

Dean Raimondo is entitled to INOV on Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc.’s tortious interference
claim because (i) the business relationship at issue was between the College and Gibson’s Bakery,
and Dean Raimondo—as an employee of the College——cannot interfere with the College’s
relationships; and (ii) any purported interference was justified.

A, Dean Raimondo cannot be liable, as a matter of law, for interfering with the
College’s business relationship with Gibson’s Bakery.

Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc. claimed that Defendants Oberlin College and Dean Raimondo
interfered with its business relationship with Bon Appetit. Bon Appetit, however, is an agent of
Oberlin College that purchases food for and on behalf of Oberlin College. While the jury’s

verdict for Oberlin College on this claim is consistent with settled law holding that a party cannot
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tortiously interfere with its own business relationship, the verdict against Dean Raimondo is not.®

The same legal principles that insulate Oberlin College from liability for tortious interference also
bar the claim against Dean Raimondo. As such, the Court should enter judgment for Dean
Raimondo on Gibson Bros., Inc.’s tortious interference claim.

The law is clear. Tortious interference must be by someone who is not a party to the
contract or relationship at issue. Boyd v. Archdiocese of Cincinnati, 2d Dist. Montgomery No.
25950, 2015-Ohio-1394, 4 31, citing Condon v. Body, Vickers & Daniels, 99 Ohio App.3d 12, 22,
649 N.E.2d 1259 (8th Dist. 1994).” Two points about this rule are critical here. First, any contract
or relationship entered into by an agent is a contract or relationship of the principal because, as a
matter of law, “[o]ne of the most important features of the agency relationship is that the principal
itself becomes a party to contracts that are made on its behalf by the agent.” (Emphasis in original)
Willoughby Hills Dev. & Distribution, Inc. v. Testa, 120 N.E.3d 836, 2018-Ohio-4488,  27; see
also Cincinnati Golf Mgt., Inc. v. Testa, 132 Ohio 5t.3d 299, 2012-Ohio-2846, § 23, citing 2
Restatement of the Law 3d, Agency, Sections 6.01, 6.02, and 6.03 (2006). Second, a principal’s
employee cannot interfere with a principal’s contract or relationship because, as a matter of law,
the employee is a party to the contract or relationship. See, e.g., Condon, 99 Ohio App.3d at 22
(holding that company employee is “not a third party subject to liability for tortiously interfering
with a contract to which the Firm was a party”). These two points doom Gibson Bros., Inc.’s claim

against Dean Raimondo.

28 Importantly, the Parties entered into a stipulation during trial, whereby Dean Raimondo acted on behalf
of Oberlin College at all relevant times. (See Trial Tr., June 6, 2019, at 41:17-24.)

B See also, e.g., Dolan v. Glouster, 173 Ohio App.3d 617, 2007-Ohio-6275, 879 N.E.3d 838, { 35 (4th
Dist.), citing Castie Hill Holdings, LLC v. AI Hut, Inc., 8th Dist. Cuyahoga No. 86442, 2006-Ohio-1353,
7 47 (“A [party] cannot tortiously interfere with [its] own business relationship.”); Allstate Insurance Co.
v. Papanek, S.D.Ohio No. 3:15-cv-240, 2018 WL 3537140, at *13 (July 23, 2018) (applying Ohio law)
(“[T]o state a claim for tortious interference, the alleged wrongdoer must be a ‘third-party to the alleged
business relationship.™).
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First, trial testimony showed that Bon Appetit acted as an agent of Oberlin College and on
behalf of Oberlin College. Plaintiffs’ own witness, Michele Gross—the Director of Dining and
Operations for Oberlin College during the relevant period at issue—explained this agency
relationship:

Q: ... [Y]ou have an understanding of the relationship between Bon Appetit
and Oberlin College, correct?

Yes.

In fact, that was a relationship that you were managing, correct?

Correct.

Is there a written agreement between the parties?

Yes.

And under that agreement, do you understand that Bon Appetit became
Oberlin College’s dining services agent in approximately the year 20007
Correct.

s RERERE

(Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 96:7-20.)
Ms. Gross also testified that the Management Renewal Agreement, which she read into the
record, established an express agency relationship between Bon Appetit and Oberlin College:

Q: I’d like for you to read paragraph 1.2 into the record and to the jury, please.

A: ‘Agency relationship. Bon Appetit shall act as an agent for Oberlin in the
management of the food service operation at the following locations:
Stevenson Hall, Baskin Hall, Lord-Saunders Hall, Wilder Hall and such
other locations as mutually agreed to by the parties. Bon Appetit shall
purchase food and supplies in Bon Appetit’s name and shall pay the
invoices. As principal, Oberlin may supervise Bon Appetit’s daily operation
of the food service operations, including working conditions for the food
service employees and safety, sanitation and maintenance of the premises.’

Q: All right. So is this document what you understand to be definitive of what
the relationship between Bon Appetit and Oberlin College was?

A: Yes.

kkk

As you understood the relationship between Oberlin College and Bon
Appetit --

Yes.

-~ Oberlin College was the principal?

Right.

Bon Appetit was the agent?

R R
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I guess, yes.

All right. So the agent does what the principal requires?

Within reason, yes, I'd say.

So if Oberlin College wanted only chocolate cake, the agent would go get
only chocolate cake, correct?

A I guess that’s true.

e

(Jd. at 97:20-98:11, 98:22-99:10; see Management Renewal Agreement, Pls.’” Trial Exhibit 367.2%)

Thereafter, Ms. Gross testified that Oberlin College, as the principal, pays for all of the
food products purchased by its agent, Bon Appetit, from Gibson’s Bakery:

Q: Now, anything that is bought by Bon Appetit at Gibson’s Bakery or

anywhere else, Oberlin College is obligated to pay for, correct?

A: Correct. We reimburse them.

Q: Right. So the principal in the relationship was required to pay anything that
the agent bought?

A: Correct.

(Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 103:20-104:1.)

Finally, Ms. Gross testifted that, to her knowledge, the only relationship that Bon Appetit
had with Gibson’s Bakery was for the benefit of Oberlin College—or, put differently, Bon Appetit
did not purchase food items from Gibson’s Bakery for any entity or person other than Oberlin
College:

Q: Other than the relationship that Bon Appetit has with Gibson’s Bakery for the
benefit of Oberlin College, you are aware of no relationship that Bon Appetit has
with Gibson’s Bakery?

Al I’m not aware of one.

(Id. at 164:22-165:1.)
Plaintiffs presented no evidence otherwise. And the express agency relationship described

above makes Plaintiffs’ authorities inapposite. E.g., Cincinnati Golf Mgt., 2012-Ohio-2846, 4 25

(no agency relationship existed because “the contract between the parties expressly disclaims

30 Plaintiffs® Trial Exhibit 367 is attached hereto as Exhibit 17.
30




agency™); Willoughby Hills Dev., 2018-Ohio-4488, 929 (no agency relationship existed because
contract specified that contractor was “not authorized to act as an agent”™).

Indeed, even Plaintiffs’ counsel repeatedly referred to the business relationship at issue as
one between Gibson’s Bakery and Oberlin College, and not as one between Gibson’s Bakery and
Bon Appetit:

e During cross-examination of Dean Raimondo, Attorney Plakas asked whether she

“canceled the one-hundred-year-old business relationship with the Gibsons.” (Trial
Tr., May 14, 2019, at 72:2-4.)

» During direct examination of David Gibson, Attorney Plakas asked Mr. Gibson about
the “century-long business relationship” and about the “over hundred-year
relationship.” (Trial Tr., May 21, 2019, at 180:24, 207:2-3.)

e Attorney Plakas also said during the direct examination of David Gibson the following:
“This relationship in serving Oberlin College, we’ve heard, goes back a century.” (/d.
at 212:14-15))

e During cross-examination of College Vice President for Communications, Ben Jones,
Attorney Plakas asked if Mr. Jones thought it was okay “for the college to initiate or
support a boycott which terminates a relationship with a hundred-year-old loyal
business partner.” (Trial Tr., May 15, 2019, at 62:19-22.3")

o And finally, during his closing argument at the liability phase of trial, Attorney Plakas
said “[i]s that a real reason to blow up a 134-year old business relationship?” (Trial Tr.,
June 5, 2019, at 22:21-23.)*

These admissions confirm that the business relationship at issue was the one that lasted for about
a century between Gibson’s Bakery and the College. See, e.g., Hake v. Wiedemarnm Brewing Co.,
23 Ohio St.2d 65, 68, 262 N.E.2d 703 (1970) (explaining that a lawyer’s statements during trial
may be judicial admissions). This fact is further highlighted by the fact that Bon Appetit has only

served as the College’s dining services agent for less than two decades. In the year 2000, Bon

3L All May 15, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 18.

# In the same vein, Plaintiffs’ counsel’s publicly distributed Frequently Asked Questions (“FAQs™) ask
*Id]id Oberlin College interfere with a 100-year business relationship . . . 7’ See FAQs at Table of Contents,
publicly available at http://www.kwgd.com/uploads/faqs-re-gibson-s-bakery-v.pdf.
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Appetit replaced Marriott, which served the College as its dining services agent for 15 to 20 years
prior to Bon Appetit. (Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 77:23-78:3.) Put differently, regardless which
entity served as the College’s dining services agent—Bon Appetit, Marriott, or otherwise—the
business relationship was between the College and Gibson’s Bakery.

Because Bon Appetit was an agent of Oberlin College and acted on behalf of Oberlin
College, all of Bon Appetit’s actions—and relationships—are imputed to Oberlin College. In other
words, when Bon Appetit conducted business and purchased food from Gibson’s Bakery, legally,
it was as though Oberlin College made those purchases itself. For this reason, the claim against
Dean Raimondo is barred. As discussed above, an employee cannot tortiously interfere with her
principal’s business relationships because, as a matter of law, she is part of those relationships.
See Condon, 99 Ohio App.3d at 22. Dean Raimondo, as the Oberlin College employee responsible
for overseeing campus dining services, thus cannot tortiously interfere with any business
relationship the College may have—including its relationship with Gibson’s Bakery. The Court
should therefore enter judgment in favor of Dean Raimondo on this claim.

B. Even if there were a business relationship between Bon Appetit and Gibson’s
Bakery, the temporary suspension of orders was justified.

Even if a defendant’s alleged interference causes damages to be suffered, “that interference
does not constitute a tort if the interference is justified.” Fred Siegel Co., LP.A. v. Arter &
Hadden, 85 Ohio St.3d 171, 176, 707 N.E.2d 853 (1998). Here, Defendants’ alleged interference
was justified for numerous reasons. First, Bon Appetit is the agent of the College, meaning the
College could instruct Bon Appetit to do as it requests. See supra. Second, neither the College
nor Bon Appetit were required to continue placing orders for food products from Gibson’s Bakery.
(See Trial Tr., May 14, 2019, at 104:2-12, 105:22-25.) Third, Defendants’ decision to temporarily

suspend orders was the result of legitimate business and safety concerns and the Bakery suing
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Defendants. (See Trial Tr., May 28, 2019, at 115:8-16; Defs.” Trial Exhibit A-2%%; Trial Tr., May
29,2019, at 141:21-142:5; Pls.” Trial Exhibit 217.°%)
For this independent reason, the Court should enter judgment for Dean Raimondo.

IV.  Oberlin College is entitled to JNOV on David Gibson’s and Allyn W. Gibson’s ITED
claims.

The Court also should enter judgment for Oberlin College on Plaintiffs David and Allyn
W. Gibson’s intentional infliction of emotional distress (“IIED”) claim. When asserting an ITED
claim, a plaintiff must prove the following elements:

(1) the defendant intended to cause emotional distress, or knew or should have

known his actions would result in serious emotional distress; (2) the defendant’s

conduct was so extreme and outrageous that it went beyond all possible bounds of

decency, and can be considered completely intolerable in a civilized community;

(3) the defendant’s actions proximately caused psychic injury to the plaintiff; and

(4) the plaintiff suffered serious mental anguish of the nature no reasonable [person]|

could be expected to endure.
Teodecki v. Litchfield Twp., 2015-Ohio-2309, 38 N.E.3d 355, 128 (9th Dist.). The jury correctly
found for Dean Raimondo on Plaintiffs’ I[IED claim, so no conduct by Dean Raimondo may be
considered when determining whether Plaintiffs presented sufficient evidence to establish an IIED
claim against Oberlin College. Because Plaintiffs failed to present sufficient evidence on at least
the second and fourth elements to establish a claim against Oberlin College, the Court should enter

a judgment in favor of Oberlin College on Plaintiffs’ IIED claim.

A Plaintiffs did not identify any extreme and outrageous conduct by Oberlin
College that is utterly intolerable in a civilized society.

Plaintiffs’ derivative IIED claim was based on Oberlin College’s allegedly libelous conduct
(i.e., its alleged publication of the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution). As a threshold

matter, this derivative claim fails because Plaintiffs’ libel claims fail as a matter of law. See supra

¥ Defendants’ Trial Exhibit A-2 is attached hereto as Exhibit 19.
3 Plaintiffs’ Trial Exhibit 217 is attached hereto as Exhibit 20.
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Section II; Prior v. Mukaskey, No. 3:08CV994, 2008 WL 5076821, at *3 (N.D. Ohio Nov. 21,
2008), quoting Ferreri v. Plain Dealer Publ’g Co., 142 Ohio App.3d 629, 644, 756 N.E.2d 712
(2001) (“[w]hen a plaintiff bases a claim for [[IED] on allegedly defamatory statements, dismissal
of the defamation claim requires dismissal of the emotional distress claim.”); Teodecki, 2015-
Ohio-2309, at § 29, 31 (affirming trial court decision to grant summary judgment because IIED
claim was derivative of breach of contract claim). Because there is no underlying liability for libel,
there can be no derivative liability for IIED.

Yet even if their [IED claim were not purely derivative, Plaintiffs introduced insufficient
evidence of “extreme and outrageous conduct,” which must be “so outrageous in character, and so
extreme in degree, as to go beyond all possible bounds of decency, and to be regarded as atrocious,
and utterly intolerable in a civilized community.” Howkins v. Walsh Jesuit High School, 9th Dist.
Summit No. 26438, 2013-Ohio-917, § 30. Importantly, conduct that is merely tortious, malicious,
or criminal is insufficient to establish this tort, even when such conduct would justify an award of
punitive damages for another tort. Reamsnyder v. Jaskolsky, 10 Ohio St. 3d 150, 153, 462 N.E.2d
392 (1984); see Brown v. Denny, 72 Ohio App.3d 417, 423, 594 N.E.2d 1008 (1991} (“Only the
most extreme wrongs, which do gross violence to the norms of a civilized society, will rise to the
level of outrageous conduct.”), Thus,

[L)iability clearly does not extend to mere insults, indignities, threats, annoyances,

petty oppressions, or other trivialities. The rough edges of our society are still in

need of a good filing down, and in the meantime plaintiffs must necessarily be

expected and required to be hardened to a certain amount of rough language, and

to occasional acts that are definitely inconsiderate and unkind. There is no occasion

for the law to intervene in every case where someone’s feelings are hurt. There

must still be freedom to express an unflattering opinion . . . .

Yeager v. Local Union 20, Teamsters, Chauffers, Warehousemen, & Helpers of Am., 6 Ohio St.3d

369, 375, 453 N.E.2d 666 (1983). At least one Ohio appellate court has held that, while accusing
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another of racism may be construed as “childish and unprofessional, it does not amount to
extreme and outrageous conduct.” (Emphasis added) Lennon v. Cuyahoga Cnty. Juvenile Court,
8th Dist. Cuyahoga No. 86651, 2006-Chio-2587, § 23.

Adhering to this high standard is crucial when, as here, an IIED claim is based on speech.
First Amendment protections forbid a “highly malleable standard” for outrageousness, which
would impermissibly “allow a jury to impose liability on the basis of the jurors’ tastes or views,
or perhaps on the basis of their dislike of a particular expression.” Suyder v. Phelps, 562 1.S. 443,
458 (2011)* (internal quotation omitted). In this regard, courts must be cautiously aware that
juries are “unlikely to be neutral with respect to the content of the speech,” which could pose “a
real danger of becoming an instrument for the suppression of vehement, caustic, and sometimes
unpleasant expression.” fd. “[S$]uch a risk is unacceptable,” as “in public debate we must tolerate
insulting, and even outrageous, speech in order to provide adequate breathing space to the
freedoms protected by the First Amendment.” Id

Here, Plaintiffs failed to present sufficient evidence to transform the alleged publication of
the Protest Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution into “extreme and outrageous conduct.” And
even if Plaintiffs could rely here on the College’s temporary suspension of orders from Gibson’s

Bakery that the jury found was proper, Plaintiffs presented insufficient evidence to transform that

* The facts in Snyder v. Phelps are important for analogy purposes here. In Snyder, the defendants were
members of the Westboro Baptist Church, which notoriously “has picketed military funerals to
communicate its belief that God hates the United States for its tolerance of homosexuality.” Snyder at
syllabus. In the Snyder lawsuit, numerous members of the Westboro Baptist Church “traveled to Maryland
to picket the funeral of Marine Lance Corporal Matthew Snyder, who was killed in Iraq in the line of duty.”
Id The defendants “peacefully displayed their signs,” which included hateful and repugnant statements,
such as “Thank God for Dead Soldiers,” “Fags Doom Nations,” “America is Doomed,” “Priests Rape
Boys,” and “You’re Going to Hell.” /d. As here, a jury held the Westboro Baptist Church defendants liable
for IIED for millions of dollars of compensatory and punitive damages. /d. Yet, the Supreme Court of the
United States overturned the jury’s verdict, holding that the freedoms under the First Amendment protected
defendants’ from tort liability for their vulgar speech. Id
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reasoned decision into “extreme and outrageous conduct.” Further, Plaintiffs cannot rely on
internal emails and text messages between College employees, as Plaintiffs first became aware of
these emails and text messages after they filed their lawsuit and as a result of discovery. (See
Trial Tr., May 23, 2019, at 62:22-64:15.3%) Regardless of whether Plaintiffs’ IIED claims are
purely derivative, the claims fail because Plaintiffs presented insufficient evidence that anyone at
Oberlin College engaged in conduct that could exceed the towering threshold of “extreme and
outrageous.”

B. Plaintiffs did not present sufficient evidence of any serious mental anguish.

Plaintifts’ IIED claims against Oberlin College also fail because Plaintiffs introduced
insufficient evidence to establish the fourth element of their claims. The term “serious emotional
distress” only applies to an “emotional injury that is both severe and debilitating, causing a
reasonable person, normally constituted, to be unable to cope adequately with the mental distress
engendered by the circumstances of the case.” (Emphasis added) Haefka v. W.W. Extended Care,
9th Dist. Lorain No. 01CA007863, 2001 WL 1509200, at *3 (Nov. 28, 2001). “[A] court may
decide whether . . . the emotional distress is serious as a matter of law.” Union Federal Sav. Bank
v. Hale, 9th Dist. Summit Nos, 16209, 16211, 1993 WL 488399, at *5 (Nov. 17, 1993), citing
Paughv. Hanks, 6 Ohio St.3d 72, 74 (1983).

As a threshold matter, the Court’s May 31, 2018 Order undercuts Plaintiffs’ claim. There,
the Court ruled that—following an in camera review of Plaintiffs’ medical records—none of those
records are “causally or historically” related to Plaintiffs’ [IED claim so as to be discoverable by
Defendants. (Order dated May 31, 2018.) In particular, the Court’s ruling stated as follows:

Pursuant to this court’s order dated April 18, 2018, the court has reviewed in camera

the medical records provided by Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn Gibson for the
relevant five year period. The court has reviewed the medical records for any

¥ All May 23, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 21.
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information which would causally or historically relate to the plaintiffs’ claims
for intentional infliction of emotional distress.

Upon review thereof the court finds that none of the records before it relate to the
plaintiffs’ claims for intentional infliction of emotional distress such that would
exempt them from the physician/patient privilege. Finding that none of these
records are discoverable, the defendants’ motion to compel signed medical
authorizations is hereby denied.

(Emphasis added) ({d.} Thus, Plaintiffs were required, but failed, to overcome this high hurdle of
seeking to prove a “severe and debilitating” emotional injury without any medical evidence.

Not surprisingly then, Plaintiffs did not present any evidence of a “severe and debilitating”
emotional injury. For example, Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson testified that his mental health is the
same now as it was before the fall. (Trial Tr., May 16, 2019, at 45:1-19.3") Similarly, Lorna
Gibson—the wife of Plaintiff David Gibson and daughter-in-law of Allyn W. Gibson—testified
that, as to Allyn W. Gibson’s mental state, he is “doing well now.” (Trial Tr., May 15, 2019, at
157:2-12.) Further, Lorna Gibson testified that, following the protests, David Gibson socialized
less with friends, ate less, and felt ashamed and embarrassed. (Jd. at 149:16-151:7.) But this—and
any other similar testimony—is not sufficient evidence that David Gibson suffered from a “severe
and debilitating” emotional injury. Compare Thibodeaux v. B E & K Constr. Co., 4th Dist. Ross
No. 04CA2761, 2005-Ohio-66, 9§ 31 (evidence of stress, humiliation, embarrassment, loss of self-
esteem, a lowered resistance causing physical illness, and missing work was insufficient to
constitute a “severe and debilitating” emotional injury); Powell v. Grant Med. Ctr., 148 Ohio
App.3d 1,2002-Ohio-443, 771 N.E.2d 874, § 17 (10th Dist.) (fecling shocked, upset, angry, guilty,
sad, empty, lost, grief, uncertainty, and inability to eat and sleep, and experiencing nightmares was
insufficient to constitute a “severe and debilitating” emotional injury); Oswald v. Fresh

Mark/Sugardale, Inc., 5th Dist. Stark No. CA-8906, 1992 WL 330282, at *4 (Nov. 9, 1992)

37 All May 16, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 22.
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(Plaintiff’s nervous condition, inability to eat or sleep for several months, and inability to function
normally with his family was not “severe and debilitating”).

For this reason, too, the Court should enter judgment for Oberlin College on Plaintiffs’
IIED claim.
V. Defendants are entitled to JNOV on Plaintiffs’ punitive damages verdict.

A. The jury’s finding at the liability phase of trial that Defendants did not act

with constitutional actual malice bars any claim for punitive damages hased
on the alleged libel.

No punitive damages could be awarded against Defendants based on any alleged libel
because the jury found at the liability phase of trial that Defendants did not act with constitutional
actual malice.*® This Court ruled before trial that the alleged defamatory statements in the Protest
Flyer and the Student Senate Resolution involved matters of public concern. (See 4/22/19
Judgment Entry at 12: “Here, though Plaintiffs are private figures, the nature of the controversy —
allegations of racial profiling and discrimination — are matters of public concern.”) As aresult,
Plaintiffs could not recover presumed or punitive damages unless they proved by clear and
convincing evidence that Defendants committed libel with constitutional actual malice. Gilbert v.
WNIR IOO FM, 142 Ohio App.3d 725, 744, 756 N.E.2d 1263 (9th Dist. 2001).%

Here, the jury determined during the liability phase of trial that Defendants did not libel

Plaintiffs with constitutional actual malice. The Court gave the jury two interrogatories of

# By constitutional actual malice, Defendants mean that Plaintiffs “must show that the defamatory
statement was made with actual malice—that is, with knowledge that it was false or with reckless disregard
of whether it was false ornot.” Bertschv. Comm. Workers of Am., Local 4302, 101 Ohio App.3d 186, 190,
655 N.E.2d 243 (9th Dist.), citing New York Times Co. v. Sullivan, 376 U.S. 254, 279-280 (1964).

¥ Accord, e.g., Philadelphia Newspapers, Inc. v. Hepps, 475 U.S. 767, 774775 (1986); Gertz v. Robert
Welch, nc., 418 1.8. 323, 349-350 (1974);, Gosden v. Louis, 116 Ohio App.3d 195, 213, 687 N.E.2d 481
{9th Dist. 1996); Woods v. Capital University, 10th Dist. Franklin No. 09AP-166., 2009-Ohio-5672, ¥ 35;
KEchols v. Lawion, 913 F.3d 1313, 1321 (11th Cir. 2019); Chandok v. Klessig, 632 F.3d 803, 814 (2d Cir.
2011); Brokers' Choice of America, Inc. v. NBC Universal, nc., 861 F.3d 1081, 1109 (10th Cir. 2017);
Moore v. Vislosky, 240 Fed. Appx. 457, 465 (3d Cir. 2007);, Lewinski's, Inc. v. Wal-Murt Stores, Inc., 127
F.3d 122, 132 (1st Cir. 1997).
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relevance. The first asked whether Plaintiffs proved by clear and convincing evidence that
Defendants libeled Plaintiffs with *“actual malice,” which the jury instructions defined as
“mak[ing] a false statement either with knowledge that it is false or with reckless disregard of
whether it is false or not.”” (Jury Instruction p. 10.)** A “YES” would have ended the inquiry as
to libel. A “NO” required the jury to answer a second question—whether Plaintiffs proved by
clear and convincing evidence that Defendants negligently libeled Plaintiffs. As to all three
Plaintiffs, the jury answered the first question “NO” and the second question “YES.” For instance:

B. Did David R. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence th :
L4 ’ t b r
with actual mafice in libeling him? g e that Oberlin College acted

Please circle one:  YES or @
— ) . " * A

C. Did David R. Gibson prove by cleac and convincing evidence that Obexl; _
with negligence in libeling Him? g nce that Oberlin College acted

WP

Please cirele one: (?{SD ar NO

(Executed Jury Interrogatory #1 — David R. Gibson’s Libel Claim Against Oberlin College.) These

findings not only should have ended the jury’s consideration of constitutional actual malice, but

40 Thus, the “actual malice” that the jury was required to consider was constitutional actual malice, as
defined by the U.S. Supreme Court, the Ninth District Court of Appeals, and numerous other state and
federal appellate courts. See supra footnotes 38-39. Plaintifts never objected to the Court’s definition of
constitutional actual malice. Nor did Plaintiffs object to the Court including constitutional actual malice in
its jury instructions or in the jury interrogatories during the liability phase of trial. In fact, in Plaintiffs’
proposed jury imterrogatories filed on April 25, 2019—before trial and well after the Court ordered that trial
be bifurcated—Plaintiffs submitted an interrogatory asking whether Defendants libeled Plaintiffs with
constitutional actual malice. See Pls.” Proposed Jury Interrogatories, filed April 25, 2019 (Jury
Interrogatory No. 3 — Libel). Moreover, in their Response in Opposition to Defendants’ Motion for Directed
Verdict, Plaintiffs dedicated five pages to identifying the evidence they presented during the liability phase
of trial in an attempt to show Defendants libeled Plaintiffs with constitutional actual malice. See Pls.’
Response in Opp. to Defs.” Motion for Directed Verdict, filed May 24, 2019, at 34-38. The jury, of course,
found otherwise. The important point, though, is that all along, Plaintiffs knew and acted as if they had to
prove constitutional actual malice at the liability phase of trial.
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they also entitle Defendants to judgment as a matter of law on any claim for punitive damages
based on the alleged libel.

The Court—over Defendants’ objections and motion for reconsideration—inexplicably
permitted Plaintiffs’ libel claims to proceed to the punitive damages phase of trial and, in doing
so, allowed the jury to consider—for a second time —whether Defendants committed libel with
constitutional actual malice. (Trial Tr., June 11, 2019, at 9:16-10:4.*") This second-bite-at-the-
apple was improper and a nullity. No Civil Rule allows a jury to consider the same issue twice.
Moreover, the right to trial by jury-—enshrined in Section 5, Article I of the Ohic Constitution—
expressly forbids it. “That right to jury trial includes the right to have a single issue decided one
time by a single jury.” (Emphasis added) Greenhaw v. Lubbock Cty. Beverage Assn., 721 F.2d
1019, 1025 (5th Cir. 1983), overruled on other grounds by Internatl. Woodworkers of Am., AFL-
CIO v. Champion Internatl. Corp., 790 F.2d 1174 (5th Cir. 1986); see also Arbino v. Johnson &
Johnson, 116 Ohio St.3d 468, 2007-Ohio-6948, § 135 (Cupp, J., concurring) (explaining that
federal decisions interpreting the Seventh Amendment are “strongly persuasive” on the scope of
the right to trial by jury). Thus, once the jury found Defendants did not act with constitutional
actual malice at the liability phase of trial, all inquiries on that issue had to stop as a matter of
constitutional law.

However, even if Plaintiffs’ libel claims were rightfully permitted to proceed to the
punitive damages phase of trial (they were not), Plaintiffs did not present sufficient evidence that
Defendants libeled Plaintiffs with constitutional actual malice. As indicated supra in Section
I1.B.2, Attorney Lee Plakas outlined all of the supposed evidence of constitutional actual malice

in a Power Point presented during the punitive damages phase of trial. See supra footnote 22. As

41 All June 11, 2019 Trial Transcript excerpts cited herein are attached hereto as Exhibit 23.
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seen in his Power Point, all of the evidence upon which Plaintiffs relied to prove constitutional
actual malice post-dated Defendants’ alleged “publication” of the Protest Flyer and the Student
Senate Resolution, See Varanese v. Gall, 35 Ohio St.3d 78, 80, 518 N.E.2d 1177 (1988) (“[A]ctual
malice is to be measured as of the time of publication.”) Because of this temporal flaw, this
evidence is insufficient for a finding of constitutional actual malice—Tlet alone for a finding that
Defendants negligently libeled Plaintiffs. See supra Section 11.C.2.

Accordingly, the jury’s second finding on constitutional actual malice is a nullity and
Defendants are entitled to a judgment in their favor on any claim for punitive damages based on
Plaintiffs’ libel claims.

B. Plaintiffs could not recover punitive damages against Oberlin College for
their derivative IIED claims.

As discussed supra in Section IV.A, Plaintiffs David and Allyn W. Gibson’s IIED claims
against Oberlin College are purely derivative of their libel claims. Thus, because Plaintiffs’ libel
claims should not have proceeded to the punitive damages phase of trial, there is no independent
basis—and certainly insufficient evidence of common law actual malice—for a punitive damages
award against Oberlin College on the ITED claim.** Further, to the extent Plaintiffs argue that their
ITIED claim is also derivative of Gibson Bros., In¢.’s tortious interference claim, the jury did not
find Oberlin College liable for, nor did it award punitive damages against Dean Raimondo on, this
claim. Accordingly, Oberlin College is entitled to judgment on any claim for punitive damages

against it based on Plaintiffs’ [IED claims.

42 In other words, since the IIED claim cannot survive without the libel claim, Plaintiffs’ inability to recover
punitive damages on their libel claims likewise precludes the recovery of punitive damages on their IIED
claims. Compare Smith v. Sandusky Newspapers, Inc., No. 3:17CV1135, 2018 WL 3046537, at *5 (N.D.
Ohio June 20, 2018) (“When a plaintiff bases a claim for [IIED} on] allegedly defamatory statements,
dismissal of the defamation claim requires the dismissal of the emotional distress claim.”) {quotation and
citation omitted).
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VI. Defendants are separately entitled to JNOV as to the $4 million in punitive damages
awarded for David Gibson’s and Allyn W. Gibson’s I1ED claims.

In its June 27, 2019 Judgmenf Entry, the Court improperly capped Plaintiffs’ punitive
damages award under R.C. 2315.21(D)(2)(a) at twice the uncapped compensatory damages award,
rather than twice the capped compensatory award.*’ If the Court persists in applying the punitive
damages cap to the uncapped compensatory award, the Court will separately err by permitting
Plaintiffs David Gibson and Allyn W. Gibson to recover punitive damages for both their libel and
IIED claims.** These two claims are derivative of one another and constitute different theories by
which Plaintiffs sought to recover for the same allegedly libelous statements.

A plaintiff may recover compensatory damages for multiple torts “governed by a single
animus,” or motivation, but the Supreme Court of Ohio has held that “defendants may only be
punished once by a single award of punitive damages. Recoveries for multiple claims for punitive
damages, contained within separately pleaded tort theories, may not be combined, or stacked, when
such multiple tort claims arise from the same animus.” Digital & Analog Design Corp. v. North
Supply Co., 44 Ohio St.3d 36, 45, 540 N.E.2d 1358 (1989); see also Intrater v. Van Cauwenberghe,
8th Dist. Cuyahoga No. 78259, 2001 WL 1558573, at *6 (Dec. 6, 2001) (affirming trial court’s
reduction of punitive damages award by one-half when it determined that two claims from which
the jury awarded $125,000 cach in punitive damages arose from one animus).

The Court’s jury interrogatories for punitive damages for Plaintiffs David and Allyn W.

Gibson did not require the jury to allocate those damages by claim. Even so, the Court improperly

# Defendants addressed this error in their Motion for Reconsideration of Judgment Entry, which was filed
on July 8, 2019.

# Even if the Court were to apply the punitive damages cap to the capped compensatory damages award, a
new trial would still be warranted because the jury was not required to allocate economic damages per claim
for each Plaintiff. This concern, however, does not apply to the allocation of noneconomic damages, which
are capped per plaintiff under R.C. 2315.18(B)(2).
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awarded punitive damages for both the libel and 1IED claims based on the jury’s after-the-fact
allocation of compensatory damages, which in and of itself constitutes an error. See Motion for
New Trial, Section L.B. The jury allocated its compensatory damages per claim as follows:

David R. Gibson

Libel: $4,800,000

1ED: $1.000.000

Total: $5,800,000
Allyn W. Gibson

Libel: $2,000,000

1ED: $1.,000.000

Total: $3.,000,000

(Jury Interrogatory Nos. | and 2 for Apportionment of Compensatory Damages for Allyn W.
Gibson and David R. Gibson.) Then, in its June 27, 2019 Judgment Entry, the Court entered
judgment for punitive damages for David Gibson in the amount of $11,600,000 and for Allyn W,
Gibson in the amount of $6,000,000. Both awards improperly “combined or stacked” punitive
damages for the claims of libel and IIED, even though the claims sprung from the same animus or
conduct.” See e.g., Digital & Analog Design Corp., 44 Ohio St.3d at 45. To eliminate this
improper stacking, pursuant to Civ.R. 50, the punitive damages awards for David Gibson and
Allyn W. Gibson must each by reduced by $2 million, which represents two times the jury’s
allocation of $1 million in compensatory damages for the IIED claims as to each of these Plaintiffs.

CONCLUSION

Tor the foregoing reasons, Defendants respectfully request that the Court enter judgment
for Defendants on Plaintiffs’ libel, tortious interference, and IIED claims, and Plaintiffs’ punitive

damages verdict.

# If the Court had awarded punitive damages only for the libel claims, it would have awarded $9.6 million
in punitive damages to David Gibson and $4 million in punitive damages to Allyn W. Gibson.
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LONG AGCOUNT of RACIAL
PROFILING and DISCRIMINATION.
Today we urge you to shop elsewhere
in light of a particularly heinous event
involving the owners of this
establishment and local law
enforcement.

PLEASE STAND WITH US

This is a RACISTestablishment with a

A member of our community was assaulted by the owner of this
establishmentyesterday. A nipeteen y/o young man was
apprehended end choked by Allyn.Gibson of Gibsen's Food Mart &
Ba fyoung man, who was accompanied by 2 friends was'
choked until the 2 forced Allyn to let go. After The yourg man was
free, Allyn chased him across Collage St. and irto Tappan Square.
Thers, Altyn tackled him and restrained him again umil Oberlin pdlice
arrived. The 3 were racially profiled on the scene. They were arrested
without being questioned, asked their names, or read their rights. 2
ware released shortly afterand charged with assault. The young man is
being held in Lorain County Jail, charged with robbery. No bail until
his arraighment this Friday 8:30 AM, 65 S Main.

If you have been victimized by this establishmeht in arfy capacity, we
ask you to stand with us in support of our community member. N
T ey

i you have any additional information, video or photo evidence of
this event, please contact : emailaroni@gmail.com

. N .
—‘If T 4 EXHIBIT

- ' 263
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STATE OF OHIO, )
) 5S:
COUNTY OF LORAIN, )
IN THE COURT OF
GIBSON BROS., INC., ET AL.,
PLAINTIFFS,
VS.

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL.,

DEFENDANTS.

COMMON PLEAS

) NO. 17CV193761

VOLUME X

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF

PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE

ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON TUESDAY, MAY 21, 2019, BEFCRE

THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI,

COURT.

PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID
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A. Okay .
Q. We heard that the protests started on
November 10th. Were you out of town for a camping trip
with vour son on that date?
A. Yes, I was.
Q. Tell us how you became aware that you and your
father and your business were the subject of a protest
and defamation back home.
A. We had just gotten down -- essentially just
reached our designation in Tennessee, and I was starting
to receive phone calls. First phone call came from
Trey, Trey James, who actually is an employee of ours.
And he notified me that people were beginning tec form
around the outside of the store and that it appeared
that several people were showing up and they were
protesting.

From that point, I had several phone calls from
some city council members and other miscellaneous people
from town notifying me of what was geoing on, and it was
getting more and more tense.

Q. Did the callers tell you in sum or substance
what was being said or written aboubt you?

A, They did. They said that the people were
chanting and yvelling and claiming that we were racists

and had a long history of racism. It -- they were quite
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A. I did.
Q. And with regard to the first resolution, the
first resolve, which is the third from the bottom, tell
us what impact that had on you when you read that, and I
quote, "The students of Oberlin College immediately
resolved that the students of Oberlin College
immediately cease all suppcert, financial and otherwise,
of Gibson's Food Marketland Bakery.™
A. Well, again, we knew that was going to be
devastating to us. I mean, to lose an entire portion of
the market, that hurt us deeply.
0. And then the next to the last "resolved,™ where
it says, "Resolved that the students of Oberlin College
call on President Marvin Krislov, Dean of Students
Meredith Raimondo and all other administrators and the
general faculty to condemn by written promulgation the
treatment of students of color by Gibson's Food Market
and Bakery," could you tell us what you felt when you
saw the students were calling on the president, the vice
president, the administrators and all of the faculty to
condemn you by written promulgation? Tell us what went
through your mind at that time.
A. Well, with this moving forward in this manner, I
didn't know how we were going to get through this, this

problem. Again, I felt that if it was just students
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involved with this, I would have been able to talk teo

students and be able to deal with it and would have been
able to go back and forth. Once it became the college,
Meredith Raimondo, who is the advisor, and the
defamation of this, I knew it was going to hurt us
drastically.

Q. And with regard to the last portion of the
resolution where they called on the college to condemn
by written response, by written promulgation, did you
then, in the ensuing days, see any formal written
response from the college as had been requested by the
students?

A. Yes, I did. I saw a response that was signed by
Meredith Raimondo and President Krislov.

Q. And let's go to Exhibit Number 67, please. And
you can tell us whether or not this is the response to
which you referred.

A. Yas, it is.

Q- And what is the date at the top, recognizing
that the students called on the administration for a

response on November 10th? What date, for the record?

A. It's dated Friday, November 1llth.
Q. Okay. And let's read into the rececrd -- I would
like your response in terms of the reacticn. It starts,

"This has been a difficult few days for our community,
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A, There's no question.

Q. Did previously what you've described as Meredith
Raimondo's giving the flyer to reporter who published
this in the newspaper, did that have anything to do with
yvour feeling of intimidaticn?

A. It did as well.

Q. And can you tell us what part the Student Senate
Resolution played and the administration's response to
the Student Senate Resolution?

A. Well, the Student Senate Resolution, again, was
so defaming and the fact that the college stepped right
in to support it, it just -- it was devastating. It was
so intimidating that, again, that was intimidating to us
as well. There were so many aspects that were
intimidating to go and have a second meeting and trust
that something was going to be done.

Q. And by that time, was there still any response
Lo your request for some sort of retraction or
clarification from the college as to you actually not
having a long history of racial prefiling and racism?

A. No, there wasn't.

C. And was there any further explanations from the
college or Bon Appétit as to the sudden cancellation of
your century-long business relaticonship?

A, No.
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upon everything you've observed and learned and
experienced, and in light of this over hundred-year
relationship, why did Oberlin Ccllege deo this from your
own observation?

A. That's a good question. I tried to get my head
around this for some time, why they would do this to us.
I think the college, as of recent, has lost their way,
there's no question in my mind. We -- I look at this
and I realize that the college wanted me to not
prosecute these students. They wanted me to set up a
system where we didn't prosecute first-time offenders.
I know there's many other issues.

I believe there was deflection where they wanted
to -- they were at the process during this that they
were being accused, Marvin Krislov specifically, of
racism by sﬁudents in their college. I believe that
they used us to deflect that, to send it to us while
they went through this process. They have many demands.
Marvin Krislov simply did not respond to those demands
and just pushed it off. I think we were used to make it
so that would go away.

I think there's multiple reasons that are
involved with this, and I think that just -- just came
together. TI saw the statements when they smear our

brand, they talked about the Gibsons have many
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and seeking new markets and new customers to continue
the existence of Gibson's Bakery?
A. Yes, we are.
0. So finally, let's take the last few minutes
here. Let's circle back tce Lhe beginning. Let's pull
up Exhibit 306. Tell the ladies and gentlemen of the
jury what that 1is.
A That's part of a picture, and the extended
picture actually cut off, to far left on this picture
would have been my grandfather and I believe my great
uncle, his brother were in the picture. He's got a
cousin that's in this picture as well. But it's one of
the fleets of the old delivery system of the business.
Q. This relationship in serving Oberlin College,
we've heard, goes back a century. Let's pull up 332.
Currently, does Oberlin College still, on its official
website —- if we could click on -- I didn't click on it
today, but very recently. If we would click on the
website of Oberlin College, right in the middle under
their section "Mission and values," can you tell us what
that picture represents?

And Beth, are we able to get a clearer picture?

MS. BURNS: No, that's the way the photo is
taken.

Q. So what is in the middle of that picture with
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CROSS-EXAMINATION OF VICKY GAINES

BY MR. DOYLE:

Q. Good morning, Mrs. Gaines. How are vyou?
A. Gecod morning.
Q. I'm Wil Doyle., We met almost a year ago now at

your deposition.

A, Uh-huh.

0. I'm one of the attorneys for Oberlin College,

and Dean Raimondo. I just have a few follow-up

questions for you based on Mr. McHugh's questioning.
Mrs. Gaines, vou would agree with me that

whether someone feels that he or she has been subjected

to racism 13 a matter of that person's opinion, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And some people might disagree that the Gibsons

aren't racist, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. And on the -- you testified a moment ago thal

you went into the store that day, correct?

A, Uh-huh.

Q. You did not see David Gibson in Gibson's Bakery

when you went in that afternoon, correct?

A I didn't see anycne. There was only one

employee there, and I asked specifically if Lorna was

there.
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truth. Sc she should be given the option to say, "I
don't know."™ He's asking her, is 1t false or isn't it
false.

THE COURT: I've got your objection.

ME. PLAKAS: And my response 1s, this is
cross—-examination. She is the vice president, dean of
students at the cellege. 1f she doesn't know, she will
tell us. But --

MR. PANZA: For you to direct her --

MR. PLAKAS: For you to prompt her, then that's
improper. I mean, I'm sure that -- you know, I think we
better let this play out and see what happens.

MR. PANZA: I object.

THE COURT: Very good. I'll overrule the

ocbjection.

{The sidebar discussiocon ended.)
* Kk *k

BY MR. PLAKAS:
Q. Continuing. Vice President Raimondo, you've
been thinking about this situation and been aware of it
for the last almost two-and-a-half years, right?
A, Yes.
Q. Okay. 8o isn't it a fair and simple gquestion,

if I ask you, do you agree that the flyer that you gave
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to Jason Hawk -- and it was being distributed by the
dozens or hundreds or thousands -- isn't it a fair
question to ask you, do you agree that that flver made
false statements about Allyn W. Or Grandpa Gibson? Do
you agree or disagres with that?
A, T don't know.
0. Okay. So that we're certain -- and that's your
position after two-and-a-half years; is that right?
AL Yes, sir.
Q. I have a copy of this to make sure I get it
right. So this copy is just like this. And if T may
approach the witness, Your Honor.

I'm going to write in here, "I don’t know?" Is
that what you want me to write? You don't know the

answer to this gquestion?

A. My answer was, "I don't know."
Q. I'm going to write, with your permission, "I
don't know." Did I do that correctly, is that an

accurate statement of your position?
A That's what I said, "I don't know."
0. May I impose on you just to give us your
initials, please?
MR. PANZA: Obiection.
THE COURT: That's her answer. I think it's on

the record. I don't think it's necessary that she
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with regard to Allyn Gibson. Another party in the case
is David Gibson. Would you please pull up TF -- the
next one -- 2. Same question.

Do you agree that the flyer, Exhibit 263, made
false statements about David Gibson?
A I don't know.
Q. Okay. May I have your permissiocn to just

accelerate this? May I sign it or —-

A. If you prefer, sure.

Q. It's your preference, ma'am.
AL No, it's okay. Thank you.
Q. T can sign it --

THE COURT: Counsel, have her put her initials
next to it.

MR. PLAKAS: And actually, just to be more
efficient, I've got a couple more and I'll just make one
trip there, if that's all right, Your Honor,

THE COURT: That would be fine.

MR. PLAKAS: Good.

Q. Would you please pull up TE-87
As you read the flyer —-- you saw that the flyer
made references to Gibscon's Bakery. So let me ask you

this. Do you agree that the flyer made false statemenks
about Gibson's Bakery?

A. I don't know.
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A, Student union?

Q. Yeah, student union. Student center. And with
regard to that, that Exhibit 35, I'm sure you are well
familiar with it, but right in the fourth paragraph, 1if
wa can pop that out, the first sentence in the fourth
paragraph. And it says, "Gibson's has a history of
racial profiling and discriminatory treatment of
students and residents alike."™ You knew that was in

there, right?

A. Once I had seen the resclution, yes.
Q. Sure. And that resolution was, again, as you
know, issued within 24 hours -- within a day of the

arrests at Gibson's, correct?

A It was issued, T believe, on the evening of
Neovember 10th.

Q. Okay. And it was issued in a mass mailing to
the Oberlin community, right, as it says at the top?
A. I'm not sure how Lhe students distributed it.
Q. Okay. But you know it was distributed widely,
don't you?

A. I really don't know. Thal was nob a
distribution list that I was on. So I only saw it after
the fact when a student shared it with me.

0. The student senate has the ability, the

capability, when they issue a resolution, to
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A, Never.
Q. and from your experiences, does Gibson's Bakery
or the Gibson family have a long history of racial
profiling and discrimination?
Al No, they dc not.
MS. AYOUB: No further questions, Your Hcnor,
THE COURT: Any cross-examination?
MR. DOYLE: Yes, Your Honor, a few things. One
moment: .

CROSS-EXAMINATION SHARON PATMON

BY MK. DOYLE:

0. Good morning, Mrs. Patmon. How are you?
AL I'm doing very well, thank you.
0. My name is Wil Doyle; 1'm an attocrney

representing the defendants Oberlin College and Dean

Meredith Raimondo. I have a few follow-up questions

based on what Ms. Ayoub just discussed with you.
Mrs. Patmcn, you would agree with me that

whether someone is a racist is a matter of opinion,

right?
A. Yes,
Q. Like, for example, it's possible that someone

may noft share your ocpinion that David Gibson is not
racist, correct?

b, That's correct.
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would have been like putting gasoline on a fire. So I
thought about it a few minutes.

I have a persconal relationship with Adrian
Bautista, who is the dean at the college. He and I used
to cocach our boys basgketbhall team together. E&o I had
his number. I called him and I teold him, I says, "Hey,
if we can't get this under control, I'm going Lo end up
calling the county riot team in."

We had -- the county had just been deing some
training leading up to the, I think it was, the
Republican National Convention or Democratic National
Convention in Cleveland. We had put a riot team
together, and it was available for county use. So 1 was
actually considering making some phone calls and putting
a team on standby.

So I made a phone call to Adrian Bautista. T
didn't actually see him down there. It wasn't long
after that where I saw some of the college students move
over across the street to Tappan Square. It was still
-- it was still just a mob kind of mentality. Was there
a lot of yelling and screaming, flyers being thrown
about. There were people not associated with the
protests getting flyers shoved in their face, curse
words, allegations of, you know, the Gibsons being

racists being thrown around.
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A. Not friends. I mean, I don't go over for
dinner., I've known them since I started working at
Oberlin.

Q. and I wanted to clarify, vou had talked akout

the situation you saw involving Allyn Gibson and three
Oberlin students --

A, Yes.

Q. -- when Mr. Plakas was questioning you. And I
just wanted to clarify who the Allyn Gibson was you were
referencing. That's Allyn D. Gibson, the younger son of
David Gibsons, correct?

A Yes.

Q. It's not Allyn Gibscon sitting in the courtroom
today, correct?

A. Right.

O. You referenced the three students who were

arrested that evening of November 2th?

A, Yes.

Q. Jonathan Aladin, Cecelia Whettston, and Endia
Lawrence?

Al Yes.

Q. And are you aware that the three students pled

not guilty when they were arraigned?
A. That's customary.

Q. Are you aware that about a year later, in August




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

178

CERTIFICATHE
The State of Ohio, )

) S88:
County of Lorain, )

I, Cathlene M. Camp, Official Court Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohig, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
May 10, 2019.

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name this

11th day of May, 2019.

s W G

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Courkt Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Flocor
Eivria, OH 44035

(440) 328-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020




EXHIBIT 3



THE OBERLIN REVIEW

Yreagw (Y “egiveet 1D

ey A 0 W

Police chief says Starr
lied about instructions

Jomes Roped e wowid tell the truth by b ddn

By jweh | mememy
e Mgy

 Bwrtyr e Paki o 0 hed itar oo
et Tueslay fan a ooy B ua
dcoppmibing &+ ol o hwn g R Ap-!
11 enememrgnt o Pracades |
Fndeah S Won e e W
e e

T o bty g bian Neee
] gt vt vl by v piny -
. X F R K E ¥ _FJ [
Al i | Awgi mwyis WPy, sS4 DR
o i puge aEndeey lanast

e .anjiivug Gp oo (Yees P
iwypmenmy T IPO) e \wany Seastitndunei

) Aviah el
Yap®T Wieimn

rrwme wrrerwkeg wr bpre EIW

S LMAER R wone gt

. mmmEk G w balgoi. e Pe s
Y

Tea mphatl w1 gl Yl Cw wgwre
v mongr du wedts o swm vy Vo
T kiegr iy el Butmd:
D vie ) K Bt fewy . Syt
usn s Tli{gs A i Proalion

ot gt e ek v AThe W
oAl An vy ey’ vew SuR rees
omr s gl e am Ay b e
Semlipnis buid bumrotwsnied s ‘w51
o s e i

T miae wor sy Aa ki sar
wmfed B AW STBA] W e

LAELr

W pan

Tep Propin suiny Bul Sedisl (PGPS B Sl e oy S DRy Aues
fee ANEL pup ¥ IBW e 2 B e bl b0 nRERY

Classes boycotted for forum on April 13 events

Fogm ivafiy o Sopuse s sppgesas lor Ou pdlSaiaay on
dgud ' ey e -~wtmpeied b Ay
s Tuabre Teiyeay ( cibmincirr

Vapteing Y1 Hfesaer ad
Thrr remamwrd Wi w & ~we= 3 bopivd Beme bem
I N SRS R SIS S PR P Y PR YT TR N )

R e R N il L I I BRI R A ragfEdl b ee

Comela T maamd F b Feul B ruw aeec 12 o e Alm b A Vo ruw: s Bt 30

redr o B okt eAt Mbyn fam EE e eBETE g €T e

g ®= cal s Yy IR m wmbgn wm gy
X e Fepy e ar . ) . ¥ . e

pled Nid % e L PPL TR A e Frica b wer b - g PRENTS
Ty s vmeh e pa # Lo Y T T I WP Y ] PR E ¥ T

L LI T v

i weaters nhu b aprrereid bt law @

P I N R
B ARSI KETEEY 4 BB LY S M RERYT # e Py alimt | A | asmdtn

iy P- oy =
ey wgvle vhed s o e
by Sugh A

iy I Svwyem perwrveed v -
we Pwe 2% Paiad 0 o dargt
iatby n mes Frdess ok
hwpiceres he 15ET et oaw o
b abn- FEYY T I E Y
BT =W LAY Y IS T LA
LTI T R B R

Lol 1L N T N S A [ 28 3

LR B

i 4 e "o owd BN P
R e F W et f
s’ T minabiis 1. a S
o rrgwm yaewys g P che
B oa AT ek T
BB el 4 B - R

I R e N L
T fo e rasny  WH o ae
P A T N A

L LI lr maf

ey BETCHTY page b,

Protesters accuse
Gibson of racism

By Jontous | hoven s
Mat e
T EX T [ Y ks o

o B W W adhraar @
[ *7T L Y T PPN PR TEY IR
i..'.l algel 1 wwEery el
t Yoy

W opv e B pENra P
TN LI B AT TEY ¥ PR
lowbnrw alps o Pl brws
#lrgs mankiar ww whel oc
Oisire Ao b gty wm vu)dm e
Ef v A R < e AR
Tu rietr ¥a bt @ o mas
[ETTVL B AL IR P
g e gried e P
R T L

P R ad T L S 1 ] [
. b kY ooy .-
L L B o4 - - -
[ 3 ]

Lk TR T P e e
el army o Ml (G o b
AN &céd Sups  Ragel ids  (FaF
oty dewmgin B mnfe e de
i mdnt & = Likeyg gV
WP & @l ®FF gl phIE mee
a:) vredsy Smve wBoay  en!
Swy wer- aw pabos] B g
e WEPEN S FCI LR LT Mg
[y AT saak

oW fhas b e Mt
v dh wogln aad ow ) odmils
T Fhibgr o Bavlieg i #5

L R I T I P P PR
(] N o depe
Wea g A =%+ sard
a ) v wi
' - L BB R e ]
LA Y - W ca

s TRLEICARL gage




IR YL BT ST 3 SRS Y

Protesters boycott

: e e .
tasipatd TP IOE T v
[8 ] e o - -
a ! La . e T b .
SR R & Siow omy Ao
T T
L TR TR
-t Gaw g w K1 wur

> ab ?ﬂ.()('l»'(‘ DL O B TR

B g aefy ATF. F W )
re Lot s b b owh b i Frov
L [P
- e 4 Y e mos
D] ® b e
el FErhig & F0 wab
Preb, L L P T 2

ER TE A e b

o .

WETET
LRI | Aurm gl
Ty akg e, o b iewe
T e Sarge A e g,
‘et THS AT o)

R r

L T
i o mE ged PRV w

wEi b B WA FaR o ’
b MR s

wux ww tlaw

- R AT e
[ - ¥

iy

- NEWS

bakery

L B S A T
T
il Wy e e

Lon X5 1 et

LR Y~ T
—rey
- by . g B

WH W e e mWe o R o
e rem T Mo
Proe e b dmomen Lmoec

P RS TR VI W
R L. B
[ S e N
e A5 Ngmam

R oL
miE 4 ek
s mpre v b omaws mowe GEp oW
w3 om e PIRRE

[

:jones claims Starr lied

Lot ount YN poge '

LTI " e
MY b Wl P s @

13 PEPTY LY} I I P
N )

g ma e mlde b e e e

BT T T R e L]
N . L e P L g

o M EWEYCTEE W JITFRRAL .t

[ P T
T g g

O el L v e e
vibaa o ML wir ot b 4 amiaes ~ro o it fumbd Ve Mo wgrioam
S N YT W Py PRy R P T VR TR Rt e R e bayy der e e

=t kl i i

e v e

v e e b sl e et Penl 4 oy s
nis w4 W oEY » Bm AMTLrr F fiEe m by Al Bl o e c R Lol R
ot = P o e ) g B PR Cdetd e il W
b

A Mg gt Bk e M v Y 8 UAD dmid e lems e T

g da adn gt S el b WY b 1f]
v pwe by wised T oSS erad
A e M PLsAN v % W b wroas
ko -iplsd e Na bpes
& ool Wt A0 ot Bl
o et vl vt S errm o FAR wlrg M

DROP
THE
CHARGES

i, W o

Traimg-m Tws - F

*d- rts wlin
fnapine beoge
My Spadvye

aln A fb e fe et
e L B b ol

R oo PRI LT RSN VIR )
g of | Fooma, B O e s s

IRT AN IR S ]
LY A

L RN

LY L IR

Y [ FONE" I
d s

n 5 N

1 ! g

o‘ '-1’4: L

VR |

KTALL!

lae 18 REE TR T
4 HIMEE o kT B vt Siem o Delary

The Carlyle Shopﬂ

L ARV SESCRNE, I PERE T S W4 FRL

owos & Rwboeerr \‘(Vu-! ot e
it hioemd
!

g " %en L T o J

R

OPEN TD THE PURLIC

. KUM-KUM
. BHAVNANI

“Shaping the Future”
Friday Mey 4,2 0p.m
Finnwy Chape!

Sy pd Sy A vl o (e Clphe of 1300
i PFRGRA e W { ORI AN Wi T

'SENIOR ASSEMBLY

\ Avon i e Zovrvihiw

-

P Froome simar Gn1m o 0 s mowe
#lhy rig b 2 U pmp mwiew o ¥rEeE

[ESN #r cmera b By 1o

My D

. i s A b c— e




EXHIBIT 6



Page 1
STATE OF OHIOQ, )

COUNTY OF LORAIN. ; o
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
GIBSON BROS., INC., ET AL., )
PLAINTIFFS, )
V5. ) NC. 17CV19376l1

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS . )

VOLUME XVII
A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE
ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON TUESDAY, JUNE 4, 2019, BEFCRE
THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID

COURT.
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James and others. These Oberlin residents universally
testified that the plaintiffs are not racist and do not
have a history of racial profiling or discrimination.
And that testimony is not limited to just Oberlin
residents.

Vict@r Ortiz and Lieutenant Michael McCloskey of
the Oberlin Police Department testified that in their
experience, dealing with shoplifters at Gibson's Bakery,
they never witnessed any racial profiling. And even
Oberlin College employees, like Ferdinand Protzman and
Greta Williams, and Leslie or Leeann Lubinski admitted
prior to November of 2016, there was not even a hint,
and they had not even heard, of racism or racial
profiling at Gibson's Bakery.

Now, conversely, defendants did not provide any
evidence that has any tendency to prove the truth of the
racism allegations in the flyer or the Student Senate
Resolution.

Similarly, plaintiffs produced substantial
evidence showing that the assault allegations are false.
First, through testimony and documents, plaintiffs have
shown that the only owners of Gibson's Bakery in
November of 2016, were Dave and Grandpa Gibson. And
second —--

THE COURT: Didn't they -- didn't they, in the

26
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alleged libelous material, didn't they clarify that with

the description of Allyn, you know?

MS. AYOUB: Well, they went on to say that Allyn

choked and Allyn did this. As we know, there are two
Allyns in this case, and the only Allyn who is an owner
of Gibson's Bakery, which what the flyer says, is
Grandpa Gibson.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. AYOUB: And Dave had alsc testified that
neither he neor his father had committed any assault on
November 9th, 2016. And that's confirmed by the
criminal convictions of the three students who were
arrested on November 9th, 2016, where they pled guilty
to the aggravated trespass and the attempted theft.
Plus, Dave and Grandpa Gibson were not charged,
arrested, prosecuted, or convicted of any crime on
November 9th, 2016. And.

On the other hand, defendants did not produce

any evidence whatsoever that had any tendency to prove

the truth of the assault allegations from the flyer. No

one has stood up and said, Grandpa Gibson, Allyn Gibson
assaulted someone on that day. Therefore, plaintiffs
are entitled to the directed verdict on the falsity
element of their libel claim and on defendants’

affirmative defense of truth.

27
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up the Student Senate Resoluticn, Lthat's Exhibit 35.
and we know that that wes issued immediately -~ I'm
sorry, I'll let you get there.

And this 1s a Student Senate Resolution where it
indicated that the Gibksons, paragraph 4, if we could pop
that out, where it says, "The Gibsons have a history of
racial profiling and discriminatory treatment of
students and residents alike." With regard to that
Student Senate Resolution -- and you actually talked
with the two leaders to which you sent the e-mail,
Exhibit 91, that we just saw. You actually interacted
with those students over the Student Senate Resolution.
They presented that tco you, didn't they?

Al after it had been completed and sent out to
other students.

Q. Sure. And of course, we have already
established that during that entire time up to the
present time, you're the official faculty advisor to the
student senate, correct?

AL Yeg, I am their advisor.

Q. Okay. 8o this Sktudent Senate Resolution that
was telling everyone that the Gibsons have a history of
racial profiling and discriminatory treatment, this was
posted in the student union, Wilder Hall, right?

A. I learned that abocut a year later, vyes.

——— e epymE s mm e
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students, that you supported the defamation of the
Gibsons by this small extreme group, vou canceled the
one-hundred-year-old business relationship with the
Gibsons, and you did those things to appease the
students who were critical of the lack of response by
the college regarding their concerns about the college

not treating minorities properly; isn't that a true

statement?
A. That statement is abksolutely false.
Q. Okay.

MR. PLRKAS: Thank you, I have nothing further.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: You can step aside from the witness
chair.

Whe are you calling next?

MR. ONEST: Your Honor, Michele Gross.

TEE COURT: Counsel, let's approach befcre yeou

call this witness.

(A sidebar discussion was had as follows.)
* ok ok
THE COURT: S0 is this another witness just at
the prokLest?
MR. ONEST: No. She was the director of dining

services., She's the one who ran all the dining




10

11

12

13

14

15

la

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

departments ever make crders for food?

A. Yes. We did catering.
Q. And how would that process work?
A, We had a catering department, so the department

would contact the emplecyees in that department and place
their order and then the focd would be made in the
kitchen,

0. And earlier vyou menticned Bon Appetit. Could
you tell the jury, what exactly is Bon Appétit?

A. Ben Appétit is a food management companly. SO
they are hired to help you manage dining operations.

Q. And are they separate —-- are they a separate
company from the college?

A. Yes,

Q. And as director of dining services, would you bhe
interacting with Bon Appétit managers?

A Yegs, regularly.

Q. And did you have any sort of special

relationship, a title between you and Bon Appétit?

A. My position was defined as the contract liaison.
Q. Between Oberlin College and Bon Appétit?

A Correct,

Q. And whalb -- how long was Bon Appélilk providing

services to Oberlin College?

A. About 20 years. They came in 2001.




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

23

24

25

78

Q. And did they replace ancther company?

A. Yeah. We had Marriott for probably 15 tec 20
years before that.

C. And with regard to getting food and goods for
dining services, who would be responsible for actually
going out and getting those goods from vendors?

A. Bon Appétit.

Q. and who would actually be responsible for paying

those vendors for those goods?

A.V Bon Appétit.

0. Do you know the Gibsons?

A. Yes, 1 do.

0. And how do you know the Gibsonsg?

A. Just casually, from living in town all these
years.

Q. Did you ever have to interact with any of‘the
Gibsons as -- within your empleoyment. at Oberlin
College?

Jig I would occasionally run into them. I sometimes

would see Mr. Gibscn, Sr. delivering to Stevenson, ocne
of the dining halls.

Q. That would be Mr. Allyn W. Gibson sittihg in
here in the courtroom?

A Correct.

0. Did he personally make deliveries to Cherlin?
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between Cherlin College and Gibson's Bakery went back
far longer than?

A, I think it did, yes.

Q. Do you have any understanding of how long it
went back?

A. Just as long as I can remember.

Q. That's fine. Can you —- you have an
understanding of the relationship between Bon Appeétit
and Oberlin College, correct?

A, Yes.

Q. In fact, that was a relationship that you were
managing, correct?

A. Correct.

Q. Is there a written agreement between the
parties?

A Yes.

36

Q. And under that agreement, do you understand that

Bon Appétit became Oberlin College's dining services
agent in approximately the year 20007
A. Correct.

MR, MATTHEW NAKCN: Theresa, you could put up

Exhibit 367? Plaintiffe Exhibit 367. T understand this

is a small document.
May I approach and give the witness a copy?

Q. I'm going to hand you a copy of what has been
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Plaintiffs' Exhibit 367. And I know the print on page 1
is very small. But really what I want to do is, you
will see at the very top of the page 1t says "Bon
Appetit fee proposal for 2015 to 2019"7

A. Correct.

0. All right. And this would have heen the
relationship that you were operating under with Bon
Appétit in 2016 from ycur last years, your last time
with the college, correct?

A. We were still under that fee structure, yes.
0. Okay. If you flip one page for me to the
management renewal agreement. Do you see that, that's
attached te this?

A Yes.

Q. If you look, please, at paragraph 1.2.

Theresa, can you by chance pull that out a
little further?

And what I1'd like for you to do is, as we're
trying to get this out a little deeper so that the jury
can read it, I'd like for you to read paragraph 1.2 into
the record and to the jury, please.

A, "Agency relationship. Bon Appétit shall ack as
an agent for Oberlin in the management of the food
service operation at the following locations: Stevenson

Hall, Baskin Hall, Lord-Saunders Hall, Wilder Hall and
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such other locations as mutually agreed to by the
parties. Bon Appétit shall purchase food and supplies
in Bon Appétit's name and shall pay the involces. As
principal, Oberlin may supervise Bon Appétit's daily
operation of the food service operations, including
working conditions Ffor the food service employees and
safety, sanitation and maintenance of the premises.”
Q. All right. So is this document what you
understand te be definitive of what the relationship
between Bon Appétit and Oberlin College was?
A. Yes.
Q. All right. And thus, Oberlin College is, as you
understood it, the principal in the relationship, and
Bon Appétit is the college's agent?

MR. ONEST: Objection, Your Honor. Legal
conciusion.

MR. PLAKAS: To the extent this witness
understands.

THE COURT: ¥Yes, I'll let the witness answer.

Overruled.
A. I'm sorry, will you ask it again?
Q. I certainly will, As you understood the

relationship between Oberlin College and Bon Appétit --
A. Yes,

Q. -- Oberlin College was the principal?
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A. Right.

0. Bon Appétit was the agent?

A, I guess, yes.

Q. All right. So the agent does what the principal
requires?

A. Within reason, yes, I1'd say.

Q. So if Oberlin College wanted only chocolate

cake, the agent would go get conly chocolate cake,

correct?
A I guess that's true.
0. A1l right. Will you please turn to page 9 of

the agreement?

MR. MATTHEW NAKON: Your Honor, I'm going to
hand you on2 just because T don't think you are going to
be able Lo read it.

Q. If you would please, under section 7.3,
Liability For Non-Bon Appetit-Approved Vendors. Do you

see that section?

A, Yes.
Q. Would you please read for me Section A7
A. "Oberlin understands that Bon Appétit has

entered into agreements with many vendors and suppliers
of products which give Bon Appétit the right Lo inspect
such vendors and suppliers plans and/or storage

facilities, and requires such vendors and suppliers to
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Q. If I told you it was 20 percent, would you have

any reason to suspect it was different than that?

A. I know that the gecal was for it to continue to
increase.
Q. Okay. And Oberlin College wanted local vendors

used as high as possible, correct?

A. Within the limits, yes, absolutely, on
availability.
Q. To the best of your knowledge, all of the

products that Bon Appétit would have ordered from
Gibson's Bakery were for service at the dining halls at
Cberlin College, correct?

A. What we bought was for the dining halls
primarily, vyes.

Q. And to the best of your knowledge, Gibson's
Bakery had never heen a supplier to any other
institution for which Bon Appétit had provided
management services?

A I am not aware of that.

Q. Now, anything that is bought by Bon Appéetit at
Gibson's Bakery or anywhere else, Oberlin Coliege is
obligated to pay for, correct?

A Correct. We reimburse them.

0. Right. So the principal in the relationship was

required to pay anything that the agent bought?

i
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A, Correct.
Q. As far as you know, there was no cokligation on
Oberlin College to place any order with Gibscon's Bakery,
and the college could stop ordering product any time it
desired, correct?
A, I would assume that's true, yes.
Q. And as far as you know, there was never an
cbligation on Bon Appétit to place any order with
Gibson's Bakery and that Bon Appétit could stop ordering
at any time if it were directed to do so by Oberlin
College, correct?
A Correct.
Q. And you've mentioned a standing order. It is
true that the standing order was subject to change at
the college's will, correct?
A. Correct.
Q. Az far as vyou know, Oberlin College never had a
direcf contract with Gibson's Bakery in any way,
correct?

MR. ONEST: Objection. Legal conclusicn, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: I'll overrule it. Do you know?

THE WITNESS: As far as I know, there was there
no written document.

BY MR. PLAKAS:
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0. Same would be true of Bon Appétit. Bon Appétit
didn't have a contract with Gibson's Bakery, correct?
A, Not that I'm aware of, no.
Q. and there has never been any term, oral or
otherwise, as you understand it, that required Cberlin
College to purchase any specific amount of goods from
Gibscn's Bakery, correct?
Al There -- as far as I kncw, there was nc
obligation, no,
Q. So that if the college wanted product, the
college ordered product through Bon Appetit, and that
product wag paid for?
A. Right.
Q. If the college wanted to stop ordering product,
it could stop ordering product?
A. Yes.
Q. Same with Bon Appétit. If Bon Appétit wanted to
order product for the college, it ordered product and
was paid for the product -- and paid for the product,
correckt?
A. Correct.
Q. There was no cbligation on Bon Appétit, that you
vnderstand, to continue to order product from Gibson's
Bakery?

A. Correct.
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Q. Thank you. ['11l go back. I'll reread you my
guestion. Did 0livia Scott and Emma advise you at the
recycler meeting about an incident at Gibson's that had
occurred the previous day and state that Allyn Gibson
assaulted three black people?

A. According to the memo, that is what they said.
T don't have any real recollection of that. I know she
was concerned.

THE COURT: Counsel, just so we're clear. You
say "Allyn Gibson," and there are two Allyn Gibscns.
Might be helpful to the jury to know we're not talking
about grandpa.

MR. MATTHEW NAKON: Exactly. And we're gocing to
he going inte that in detail. Why don't we do that
right now, Your Honor.

BY MR. MATTHEW NAKON:

0. You know the Gihson family, correct?
A. Casually, vyes.
Q. And you understand that Allyn Gibson, the person

that's been referred to as Grandpa Gibson, was not the
person that was --

A Yes.

Q. In fact, it was his grandson, Allyn D. Gibson,
correct, who is not in the courtroom?

A, Correct.
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In November 'l67

0f 20167

Yes,

How long had that relationship existed?
For as long as T can remember.

And did Meredith Raimondo order you to cause

that business relationship to end?

A,

Q.

A.

0.

She asked us to stop ordering, vyes.
Did you it follow that order?
I did follow that order.

Did you feel the termination of that business

relationship was justified?

A
Q.
justify

A.

No.

Did you feel that Gibson's had done anything to
that terminaticn?

I did not believe so, no.

MR. ONEST: I have nothing further, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Any recross on just those issues.
MR. MATTHEW NAKON: One question.

RECROSS-EXAMINATION OF MICHELLE GROSS

BY MR. MATTHEW NAKON:

Q.

Other than the relationship that Bon Appétit has

with Gibson's Bakery for the henefit of CObherlin College,

you are

aware of no relationship that Bon Appétit has

with Gibson's Bakery?
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MR. MATTHEW NAKON: Thank you.

TEE COQURT: Now you may step aside. Thank you.

We will take our afterncon break for 15 minutes.
Remember my admonition not to talk about the case.
FPlease leave your notepad on the kench, and we will be
back in the courtroom at 2:45.

*® ke k

(A recess was had.)
* K E

THE COURT: Next witness, plaintiffs.

MR. PLAKAS: Thank you, Your Honor. If it
please the Court. At this Lime we would like to call
Clarence Trey James.

—_—

Thereupon, the witness, CLARENCE TREY JAMES, was
duly sworn to tell the truth, the whole truth, and
nothing but the truth, and testified as follows:

ok ok

DIRECT EXAMINATION OF CLARENCE TREY JAMKS

BY MR. PLAKAS:

Q. Good afternoon, Mr. James. How are you?
A Fine, thank you.
Q. Good. Will you please introduce yourself to the

ladies and gentlemen of the jury?
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water and restrooms, telling the students where they

could find additional support for their materials, and

including where to make copies. Seemed that she was an

authority in the situation in terms of influencing what

was happening,.

Q.

Okay. When you talk —-- when you relay that she

was giving authority with regard to their materials,

what materials are you talking about?

Al

Well, they were passing out a flyer that was

urging people nobt to shop at Gibson's.

Q.

And how do you know that she was telling people

o make -- where they could make more copies of those

flyers?
A

Q.

I heard her.

And with regard to that flyer -- let's pull it

up for a second. T think that it is 263.

Did you have the opportunity to observe the

flyer that you indicate was being passed around?

A,
Q.
Al

Q.

Yes.
And is Exhibit 263 a copy of that flyer?
Yes, 1t is.

And with regard to that flyer, c¢an you tell us

what your observaticng were with regard to Vice

President Raimondo utilizing or in any way dealing with

that flyer?
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A. Well, throughout, the most specific thing I can
recall is she had a stack of them. It looked like it
might have been half a stack of a paper ream. And while
she was tTalking through the bullhorn, she actually
handed it, about half of that stack, to another student
who was standing next to her, who walked off and started
passing out the flyers,

Q. From your observation, were there a lot of

flyers being passed out?

A. Yes.
Q. Aand did you see, in addition to seeing doctor --
excuse me -- Vice President Raimondo taking that half a

ream, ©r whatever, that stack of flyers and giving them
to a student who then passed them out, did you see haer
do anything else with those flyers?

A. Yeah, she did. There was a table hehind her and
she had things behind her, so she turned and put some
down and picked some up and handed some to ancother kid,
and handed them several times.

Q. Are you telling the jury she was actually
helping to distribute the flyers?

A, No. She was passing them to other students who
wag passing out the flyers.

0. That was -- I understand. Wow, did you consider

that helping to distribute the flyers by giving them to
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interrogatories, but the stipulation, they kind of go
hand in hand on that.

THE COURT: Do you want to place that on the
record?

MR. MCHUGH: I believe we e-mailed that to
counsel last night. T helieve we do have agreement.

MS. CROCKER: We do.

MR. MCHUGH: So the proposed stipulation --

MR. DOYLE: I'm sorry.

MS. CROCKER: So sorry.

MR. DOYLE: Would it make more sense to chat off
the record? It's very minor.

THE COURT: Sure. Chat off the record.

* k&

{Discussion had off the record.)
k&

MR. MCHUGH: So this is the stipulation that
we've reached. The parties have agreed te the follawing
stipulation: Oberlin College agrees that it will be
vicariously and Jjointly and severally liabkle from any
verdict and/or judgment entered in any plaintiff's favor
against the defendant, Meredith Raimondo, regardless of
whether a separate verdict and/or judgment is entered
against Oberlin College.

THE COURT: All right. And that doesn't need to
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plaintiffs up to public hatred, contempt, or scorn.

Furthermore, the court has also found that the
statement contained within the flyer that "This is a
racist establishment with a long account of racial
profiling and discrimination" and the statement
contained within the student senate resolution that
"Gibson's has a history of racial profiling and
discriminatory treatment of students and residents
alike," if false, are libelcus per se, meaning they are
cf such a nature that it is presumed they tend to
degrade or disgrace plaintiffs, or hold plaintiffs up to
public hatred, contempt, or scern because they tend to
injure plaintiffs in their trade or profession.

Even though these statements have been found to
be libelous per se, plaintiffs must still prove all of
the elements of their libel claim.

Libel Damages

Tf you find that any plaintiff proved by clear
and convincing evidence that one or more defendants
libeled them with actual malice, it is assumed that
plaintiffs' reputation was injured, and ycu may award
the plaintiffs an amount of money you decide is
reasonable and fair for the plaintiffs' injuries
directly caused by the defendants' libel.

If you find that any pileintiff proved by clear

64
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Q. wWhat happened to the flyer in your pocket?

A After we discussed photographs, the man said,
"Well, what's going on here?" And I said, "I don't
know. I can't speak for the protesters, but I was just
handed a flyer and if you'd like it, I believe that it
has an explanation in it." And I toock the flyer out of

my pocket and offered it to him.

Q. And did he take it?
A. He did take it.
Q. Now, from the time the flyer was handed to you

until the time that you handed it to this stranger, what
was the amount of time that passed?

A Less than two minutes. I was moving across
Tappan Square the entire time.

Q. In that two-minute time span, did you have the
oppeortunity to read the flyer?

A. No, I did not.

Q. So during that particular time span, you did not
know what was in the flyer, therefore you did not know
whether or not what was contained in the flyer was true
or false; is that correct?

A, That's correct. I glanced at the flyer when I
first got it, you know, saw the large title that said,
"Don't Buy," and maybe the first sentence that said it

was a racist establishment, and then I had to stop

17
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looking because I didn't want to run into anybody.

Q. Now, after you handed the flyer to the stranger,
did you at any time, on November 10th, have a copy of
the flyer in your possession?

A. No. That was the only copy that I ever had on

November 10th,

Q. Now, were you at the protests on November 11th?
A. Yes, I was.
Q. At any time on November 1llth, did you have a

copy of a flyer in your possession?
A. No, I did not.
Q. There has been testimony from an individual,
sworn testimony from an employee of Gibson's Bakery, a
man by the name of Trey James, that he observed you with
a stack of flyers in your hand, passing them out. Is
that testimony true?
A. No, it is not true.

MR. PANZA: Would you please bring up
mxhibit 357 Thank you.
Q. You were asked about Exhibit 35 during your
cross—examination, were you not?
A, Yes, I was.
Q. And you recall this has come to be known as the
Cherlin student resolution, correct?

A, Yes, that's right.

18
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Q. You are an advisor to the student senate, are
you not?
A, That's correct.
o. Did you counsel any member of the senate in
regards to the creation of Plaintiffs' Exhibit 3572
A. No, I did not.
Q. When was the first time you received or viewed a
copy of the student resclution; do you recall?
A. I believe it was a bit after 11:00 p.m. on
November 10th, when I received an e-mail that had the
resolution attached.

MR. PANZA: 1'd like to blow up the language,
the last half of the resclutiocn, please.
0. Dean Raimondo, are you familiar with the
language contained in the student resolution marked as
Plaintiffs' Exhibit 3572
A. Yes, I am.
Q. Did you at any time assist in the preparation of

that language®
A. No, I did not.

MR. PANZA: Ccould T have Exhibit A-3, please?
Q. Your testimony 1is that you received a copy of
this resolution on the evening of November 10th, first
day of the protests?

A. That's correct.

19
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Q. Handing you what's been marked as Defendants'
Exhikbit A-3.

MR. PANZA: Could you bring that up,
please? Could you blow up the first half of 1it?
Q. Who is K. Dunbar?
A. Kameron Dunbar at the time was a student
senator, so an elected member of the student senate.
0. Could you identify this particular exhibit for
the jury, please?
A. Sure. 8So this is the e-mail that I received
that evening. As you can see, it's 11:15 p.m. and it is
an e-mail that Kam sent to President Krislov and to me,
letting us know that student senate had passed a
resolution and attaching the text of it.
Q. So you received a copy of the resclution for the

first time on November 10th at 11:15 p.m.; 1s that

correct?
A. That's correct.
Q. There's a bottom half to this particular e-mail.

Would vyou blow up the bottom half, please?
Could you tell us what this bottom half
represents, please?
A. It appears to be an e-mail from student senate
to the student e-mail distribution list. So this is a

ListServ that will send an e-mail to all students, and

20
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it appears to be student senate informing student body
that they had passed the resolution.

0. So if I'm reading this e-mail correctly, at
11:11, four minutes before you received a copy of the
resolution, the student sends it out to the entire
student body?

That's correct.

Twenty-eight hundred students?

Yes, that's correct.

That's before it's ever in your possession?

» o ¥ oo P

Right, that's correct. I was not subscribed to
the student list, so I didn't receive this e-mail that
was at the bottom.

Q. You have heard testimony that a copy of this
resclution was placed in the student union, I believe
it's called Wilder Hall?

A. That's correct.

0. Did you have any knowledge that this particular
raesolution was hanging in Wilder Hall on or around
November, December, Januvary 201672

A. No, I did not at that time,

Q. When was the first you learned that a copy of
the resolution was hanging in Wilder Hall?

A. In November 2017.

Q. Now, do you know where the resolution was

21
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Oberlin who made open threats of violence against
members of this community on all sides of the dispute.
The legal process is the only authority that could
determine whether unlawful behavior occcurred, and the
college honors the value of fairness and due process
that this system strives to achieve.”
Q. The second paragraph?
A. "Shortly after the incident, the college
temporarily suspended its standing baked goods corder
with Gibson's in an effort to de-escalate a complicated
and very tense situation involving our campus community,
our downtown businesses, local residents, and law
enforcement. Since the initial incident, the college
has communicated actively with all parties in an effort
to contribute to a restorative resoluticon for all
involved."

"To that end, following discussions with
Mr. Gibson and local community and spiritual leaders,
the college has chosen to resume its business
relationship with Gibson's as a good faith effort in
hopes of positive resolution for everyone affected, as
our community explores concerns and questions about how
we live, learn and thrive together.”

"We understand from our conversations with

Mr. Gibson that his family and employees are committed

115
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businesses were okay and talk to the other business
owners and explain whatever, you know, she could do
about what was happening and also try to reassure people
that we were trying to be supportive of the situation
for the businesses in the downtown.
Q. I want to now move Lo a subject that the jury
has heard a great deal about, and that's the Student
Senate Resclution. Are you familiar with that,
President Krisiov?
A. Yes,
0. When did you first become familiar or see or
even know about the Student Senate Resolution?
A. Well, I got a late-night e-mail, and I cannot
remember as I sit here whether I was awake to read it or
I read it first thing in the morning. I just can't
remember that.
Q. Okay. Let's actually pull up that e-mail, if we
can, please, which is Exhibit A-3. And let's blow up
the first part of that, please.

And can you identify Ffor us who the e-mail is
from and who it's directed to?
A. So it's from a student named Kameron Dunbar, who
was a student senator, and he, along with Thobeka Mnisi,
who was also a student, were charged with being the

student senate liaison to the president's office.
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0. And this e-mail was sent to you and Dean
Raimondo on Thursday, November 10th; is that right?
A, Yes, at 11:15 p.m.
0. And it has an attachment. Can you read what it
says nexlL Lo the phrase, or the word "attachments™?
A. Oh, the "FYI"?
Q. Actually, just right there below the forward.
Can you read that?
A. It says, "Attachment, Senate Resclution
11-10-2016."
Q. Okay. What does the message from Mr, Dunbar
actually say?
A. It says, "FYI, senate passed this resolution
tonight."
Q. Then 1t says, "Best, Kam"?
A, "Best, Kam."
Q. Was this the first notice that you had that the

student senate had passed a resolution?
A. Yes.
Q. Did you have any knowledge that the student

senate was even meeting Lo discuss a resolution?

A. No.,
Q. Did you ever see a draft of this resolution?
A. No.

Q. And then attached to this deocument is the

112
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the Student Senate Resolution
A. No.

Q. Okay. And let's pull
And that is a picture

showcase at Wilder Hall. And

Page

sce, President Krislov,

in Wilder Hall?
up Exhibit 299, please.
that purportedly shows a

sc pricr to the lawsuit

being filed, have you ever seen this picture?

A. I don't think so.
0. Okay. And again,
to the lawsuit,

Student Senate Resclution was

your testimony is that prior

you had no awareness whatsoever that the

posted in Wilder Hall?

MR. PLAKAS: Objection, leading.
A. I did not.
THE COQURT: He's already answered.
A. I did not.
Q. Would you turn your attention to Exhibit L-32,
please?
A. Yes.
Q. Okay. And that -- that e-mail reflects an

exchange that you had with David Gibson,

A. Yeas.
Q. Would you take a lcok

summarize it for the Jury?

correct?

at the e-mail and just

A, Summarize this exhibit?

0. Yes. So it starts at

the very bottom and you

128
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matter?
A.

Q.

A.

Page 141

November 15th. So it was before the meeting we
Was Tita Reed reporting to you about this
Yes.

Okay. And what did she write?

She said, " E spoke to Dave Gibson this afternoon

about the phone call he received regarding an

institutional boycott. He said he received a call from

Campus Dining but couldn't identify the caller. I let

him know that no such policy exists. He's relieved, so

a call from Walsh right now will be welcomed.™

Q.

Thank you. So let's move forward in time a

little bit and talk about the dining hall services just

a little bit more. You've already described the three

lines of business connecting Gibson's Bakery to Oberlin

College

Did Oberlin College at some point in time

temporarily suspend ordering focd for its dining halls

from Gibson's Bakery?

A.
Q.
College

A.

Yes.
And what's your understanding as to why Oberlin
did that?

Well, before that, Meredith had decided that --

had determined that the fcod would not be eaten and so

she had purchased it, but she donated it. And that's
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when sometime after that I found out there had been this
practice of ordering. Meredith, based on her
discussions with students, determined that the students
wouldn't eat the food, and so the question for us is,
why would you pay for food that people won't eat?

Q. And what's vyour best recollection -- I know
you've been gone from Oberlin for a while. What's your
best recollection for the period of time during which
Oberlin College hit the pause button and stopped
ordering food for the dining halls?

A. So that would have been, I don't know, a few
days after the -- about a week or so after the incident,
maybe a little less than a week after the incident. It
continued for the rest of that semester, which ended in
mid-December.

Q. And you mentioned earlier about Obile Dollars and
the Ladies and Gentlemen have heard about the Obie
Dollars. Was Lhat ever suspended or curtailed by
Oberlin College?

A, No.

Q. And the Ladies and Gentlemen are alsc familiar
with orders that were sometimes placed by departments
for speclal events, speclal programs. Was that ever
suspended or terminated at any time by Oberlin

College?
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CERTIUPICATE
The State of OChio, )

Y S8S:
County of Lerain. )

I, Cathlene M. Camp, Qfficial Court Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
May 29, 2019.

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have subscribed my name this

30th day of May, Z2019.

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Elyria, OH 44035

(440} 329-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

kdunbar@oberlin.edu

Thursday, November 10, 2016 11:15 PM

Marvin Krislov; Meredith Raimondo

Fwd;

Senate Resolution 11.10.2016.pdf; Untitled attachment 00468.htm

FYI, Senate passed this resolution tomight

Best,

Kam

Kameron R, Dunbar
Oberlin College | Politics

kdunbar(@oberlin.edu | 313.585.5350

Sent from a mobile device. Please excuse brevity and errors.

Begin forwarded message:

From: Oberlin Student Senate <senate(@doberlin.edu>
Date: November 10, 2016 at 11:11:49 PM EST
To: studentlist <studentlist@oberlin. edu>

Reply-To: Oberlin Student Senate <senate@oberlin.edu>

Hello Students,

In light of the events that occurred today, Senate would like to address the student body
regarding our stance moving forward. Students engaged in a peaceful protest outside of
Gibson's Bakery and Market in response to an act of violence towards Black students.
This is part of an effort working towards making significant change as part of an
important national justice movement, These protests will not stop today, nor will this
movement. Affirming that Black lives matter in American society is a battle we stand for,
and will contend for. We want to respect the people who live in this community of all
identities, but severely maintain that the base for social justice movements and civil
rights starts with students, and we will continue to fight with you.

Please read the attached resolution.

In Solidarity,
Your Senators

CONFIDENTIAL

OBERLIN_00204395
A3 - Page 1



Student Senate meets every Sunday at 7pm in Wilder 215. All students are welcomed
and encouraged to attend plenary sessions. If you have questions, pose them at the
plenary sessions, or contact Senate by email.

Senators host regular group office hours from gpm-10pm Monday-Thursday in
Azariah's. Individual Senators also offer their own office hours at different times
throughout the week.

Looking for a particular Senator? Check out the Senate directory here.

If you are interested in applying for a seat on a committee, please
email senate@oberlin.edu.

Join us on Facebook

Senate's Web Site: http://www.oberlin.edu/senate

CONFIDENTIAL CBERLIN_00204396
A3 -Page 2



CONFIDENTIAL

OBERLIN 28N

COLLEGE & CONSERVATORY SENATE

November H, 20106
Lacar Oberlin Crmmuonity,

Ir is wirh grear repret that we serte b you expressing, decp abhoerence reavards vinlence against
studenis. Olherlin s postranger oeaces of hatred, igetry, and e-Black viedence, A srewards of
justice, we are called moacknowledge, repudiare, and actively refect vicolence inall Farms, especally as
it fecrs our own,

Yesterday evening, reports of an incadent inyribving employees of Gibsen’s Food Marker and Bakery
and current Okerhn College students began o crculare, Atrer further reviesw woday, consisting ot
conversatons wilh stadens mvolyed, staements trom watnesses, and o thorough readnge of the
police report, we lind i impeoreant 1 share a fow key Faets,

A Black student was chased and assaulted ar Cnhson’s afrer being accused of seeabing, Several other
students, atempiing to prevent the assaulted studeny from sustaiming further inmury, were areested
ad held by the Obwerlin Police Departoent, T the midst ol all of this, Gibsen's employees were
never decined and were given preferennal teeatment by police otfficers.

Gibson's Tuas o history of ractal preoliling and diseeiminuiory treatment of stadents and residents
alike, Charged as representatives of the Assocated Stadents of Oberlin Collepe, we hayve puassed the
follenving reseduinm: ‘

WHEREAS. Oberlin Collepe Students repubudy engaee and support the coamimcree of the Cay ol
Cberling and

WHEREAS, Uherlin Cellepe Students stand boldly against racsalvaed violeoce i the Unired Stares,
abroad, and w1 our own communty: and

WHEREAS, Gibson's Food Market and Bakery has made their vrier lack of sesper For community
members of culor stnkingly visible: theretiore be o

RESOLVED rhat the Studenis of Oberlin College immedtately cease all suppott, firunetd it
pthenwise, of Gilon's Food Marker and Bakeryt and De if fuether

RESOLVED that the students of Olberlin College call vn Presidens Marvm Kresless, Doy of
Students Meredith Rasmendo, all olher adminisicarors and the general faealty fo eandemn by wiitien
promuletoon the seeatment o students of color by Gibson's Food Market and Bakery; and be wr
turrher

RESOLVED that the students oof Oberlin Ceollege tuether wosrh rowird erenting o community in
which all students are respected, nat met with bate due oo e colae ol thedr skan,

y

[

OBERLIN_00204397

A3 -Page 3
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STATE OF OHIO,

Page 1

)
) 55

COUNTY OF LORAIN. )

GIBSON BROS.,

V5.

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
INC., ET AL., )
PLAINTIFFS, )

) NC. 17CVv18376l

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS . )

VOLUME XIX

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE

ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON WEDNESDAY, JUNE 5, 2019, BEFORE

THE HONORAELE

COURT.

JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID
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and making sure no products went to the dining

halls? ©On 22, and we saw this, he said that "There was
a fear that the students, that the angry students would
be dumping food or throwing food on the floor and then
stomping on it." And I couldn't believe he said that in
a courtroom. As now the chief of staff for the college
saying, we blew up 134-year old business relationship
because we were fearful the students were going to throw
food and stcomp on it.

And then when I asked him at 23, I said, you
know, "That sounds like a nursery school." And he said,
"Yeah, that's what nursery school c¢children do, they
throw food on the flocr sometimes, yeah."

And the interesting thing to me is, with all the
students and all the student relationships and their
relationship with student senate, was there one student
that came in here and said, yeah, we were ready Lo throw
food on the cafeteria floor and stomp on it, and we went
in there and warned our administrators that we were
going to do it?

So I'm not sure. That still baffles me. Is
that a real reascon to blow up a 134-year old business
relationship? And if only again, 1f only there had been
a commitment to be the adults in the room, to guide the

students -- on 2% -- what if instead of saying oh, geez,

22
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the last thing, they wouldn't even write a letter that
confirmed that David Gibson and his family and Allyn
Gibson were not white supremacists.

Now, that's why it's important to understand the
attitudes. And we understand why they did 1t, because
they didn't want to offend their customer base. Thab's
their business plan. Their business plan must be to
attract a certain type of student or employee or
administrator and let them do whatever they darn well
please, regardless of the conseguences or the collateral
damage.

The element of defamation, look for the words
"2id and aketted." I've already touched on that, but
it's important.

With regard to the Student Senate Rescluticon, if
people are using your equipment, your facilities, and
using that equipment, facilities or power to defame or
hurt anyone, then you have the power to say, you can't
use our e-mail system for defamatory conduct. If you
look at policies, they warn the students to avoid
libelous defamatgory conduct. But they turn -- they
turned away. Why? Because they had other pressures,
other things going on that caused them to appease their
custcmer base.

You know, it's not only the big things. It's

87
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CERTIFICATE
The State of Ohio, )

) S5S:
County of Lorain. )

I, Cathlene M. Camp, Official Courbt Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
June 5, 2019,

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have subscribed my name this

5th day of June, 2019.

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Flyria, OH 44035

(440) 329-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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STATE OF OHIO,

COUNTY OF LORAIN. )

GIBSON BROS.,

VS.

)

) SS:

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
INC., ET AL., )
PLAINTIEFS, )

) NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS. )

VOLUME XXIII

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE

ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON WEDNESDAY, JUNE 12, 2018,

BEFORE THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF

SAID COURT.

Page
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shouldn't be a burden on the Gibsons. You determine how
much 1t is. That's totally his discretion.

So with these issues -- and we've talked about
deterrence and importance and discouragement. Why? At
the end of the last case, last portion of the case, 1
said -—- I asked you, I think you asked yourself, "Why
should you care about the Gibsons?" And in this
portion, I'm going te ask you, "Why should the rest of
the country care?"

And we Lalked about a national tipping point.
And 1if indeed, when you are finally able to read
newspapers and read articles and read the internet and
watch TV, if indeed there was interest and if indeed you
come across stories in the New York Times or the
Washington Post or FPox News or CNN or Wall Street
Journal, if indeed something like that would happen,
whatever the media source it is, why do you think they
would have been and are 30 interested? And I would
submilk to you that it's because words have indeed become
weapons. And what's happening in ocur society as a
result of words becoming weapons and the internet and
defamation and people attacking each other, and the
atmosphere, all of us have lived long enough Lo
recognize, that s=something is happening in terms of the

atmosphere in our country, and our anger and our words
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CERTIFICATE
The State of Ohig, )

y SS:
County of Lorain. )

I, Cathlene M. Camp, Official Courk Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
June 12, 2019.

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, T have subscribed my name this

13th day of June, 2019.

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Elyria, OH 44035

(440) 329-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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STATE OF OHIO, )
) S5
COUNTY OF LORAIN. b
IN THE COURT OF
GIBSON BROS., INC., ET AL.,
PLAINTIFFS,
VS.

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL.,

DEFENDANTS.

VOLUME

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF

COMMON PLEAS

) NO. 17CV193761

XXIV

PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE

ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON THURSDAY, JUNE 13, 2019, BEFORE

THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI,

COURT.

PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID

Page 1
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know what, they're begging for it. We're not doing the
students any favors by letting them act like nursery
school students and threaten tantrums or throw tantrums.
Everyone needs discipline and guidance.

In that regard, to give you the power to do
something, that's a forever thing. And to be frank, I'm
envious of your position. I honor, I respect it. But
you forevermore, in this case, will know that you
executed, I hope, a power that helps our entire country,
students everywhere.

It is a tipping point. You will learn that
soon. I know you had blinders on. You had to by order
of the Court. You will learn that scon. But
forevermore, depending upon your verdict, you will be
known as the Gibson Bakery jury or a Gibson Bakery
Juror, and you can talk or give interviews or do
whatever you feel that 1s appropriate in the future.

But to have that badge, to have that mantle, that is
fate, because none of us get that opportunity to
actually do good things that are lasting that will
affect literally our entire country. TIt's a tipping
point. You have the power to tip it in the right
direction.

So finally, with regard to how this affects all

of us. You've heard too many words from me too long,

53
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CERTIFICATTHE
The State of Ohio, )

) S5:
County of Lorain. )

I, Cathlene M. Camp, QOfficial Court Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
June 13, 2019.

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have subscribed my name this

13th day of June, 201i9.

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Elyria, OH 44035

(440) 329-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC.,, ¢t al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

¥s.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CON SERVATORY,
etal.,

Defendants,

JURY INTERROGATORY #1 —~ ALLYN W. GIBSON LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Obeglin College
libeled him?

Please circle one: or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A), skip parts (B) and (C) and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part {A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) below. In order to have found Oberlin College libeled Allyn W. Gibson, you must answer
“YES” to EITHER part {B) or part (C) but not both.




B. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by clear and convineing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with actual malice in l1be11ng him?

Please circle one: YES or m

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (B) — skip part {C) and sign the general verdict
form that follows this Interrogatory for Allyn W, Gibson.

C. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with negligence in libeling him?

Please circle one: or NO

Ot MOre JUICLS answere {0 part s1gn the general verdict form that follows
- this Interrogatory for Allyn W. Gibson.



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., ¢f al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
vs.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
et al,

: Defendants,

GENERAL VERDICT - LIBEL CLATM OF PLAINTIFF ALLYN W. GIBSON
AGAINST DEFENDANT OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson, and against Oberlin
College, on Allyn W. Gibson’s libel claim.,

e, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College and against Allyn
W Gibson on Allyn W. Gibson’s libel claim against Oberlin College

Please proceed to the next Inferrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,
, CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

V8.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
et al.,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #2—- ALLYN W. GIBSON’S LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith Rajmondo
libeled him?

Please circle one: YES or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A}, skip parts (B) and (C) and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimondo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) below. In order to have found Meredith Raimondo libeled Allyn W. Gibson, you must
answer “YES” to EITHER part (B) or part (C) but not both.




B. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with actual malice in libeling him?

Please circle one: YES or @

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NQO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (B), skip part (C) and then sign the general
-verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Allyn W. Gibson.

C. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with negligence in libeling him?

Please circle one: @ or NO

If six (6) or more jurots answered “YES” to part (C), sign the general verdict form that follows
this Interrogatory for Allyn W. Gibson.



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC., ef 4.,
Plaintiffs,

Vs,

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASE NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

etal,
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT - LIBEL CLAIM OF PLAINTIFF ALLYN W. GIBSON
AGAINST DEFENDANT MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson, and against

Meredith Raimondo, on All

W. Gibson’s libel claim.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo and against
Allyn W. Gibson on Allyn W. Gibson’s libel claim.

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., ¢f dl,

CASENQ. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

va.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
et al,,

Defendants,

JURY INTERROGATORY #3
ALLYN W. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Oberlin College
intentionally caused him serious emotional distress?

Please circle one: ¢ YES or NO

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interrogatory (A), sign the general verdict
that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College,

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B)
below.



B. Was Oberlin College’s intentional infliction of emotional distress a direct and proximate
cause of any damages to Allyn W. Gibson?

Please circle one; @ or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “YES” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Allyn W, Gibson.



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
Va,

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT -ALLYN W. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson, on his claim for
intentional infliction of emotional disiress against QOberlin College.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College on Allyn W,
Gibson’s claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress.

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

Vs,
OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATOQRY,

et al,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #4
ALLYN W. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
CLAIM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. Did Allyn W. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith Raimondo
intentionally caused him serious emotional distress?

Please circle one: YES or . I_JO

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interrogatory (A), skip part (B) and sign
the general verdict for Meredith Raimondo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B)
below. ‘

10




B. Was Meredith Raimondo’s intentional infliction of emotional distress a direct and
proximate cause of damages to Allyn W, Gibson?

Please circle one: YES or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimondo.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “YES” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Allyn W. Gibson.

1



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL PIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
CASE NQ. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
VS,

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT —~ALLYN W, GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS CLAIM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Allyn W. Gibson, on his claim for
inteational infliction of emotional distress against Meredith Raimondo.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo on Allyn W,
Gibson’s claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress. » .~

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

o vs
OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN | JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al,

Defendants.

COMPENSATORY DAMAGES FOR ALLYN W. GIBSON

Please specify the amount of damages, past and future, you are awarding to Plaintiff Allyn W.

Gibson:
Total Compensatory Damages: $ ,\V// ) j_/jﬂ{, //ﬂ: /ﬂ

Amount of total compensatory damages that represents past economic loss:

s {

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents past non-economic loss:

$ /Jib{ﬁ@ ﬂ/)ﬂ; 0@

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents future economic loss:

s 0

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents future non-economic loss:

/) 6//; 1000

13
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
. CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., ez al,

CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

¥S.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #1 - DAVID R. GIBSON LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did David R. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Obetlin College
libeled him?

Please citcle one: or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A), skip parts (B) and (C) and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) below. In order to have found Oberlin College libeled David R. Gibson, you must answer
“YES” to EITHER part (B) or part (C) but not both,



B. Did David R. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with actual malice in libeling him?

Please circle one: YES or

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (B) — skip part (C) and sign the general verdict
form that follows this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson.

C. Did David R, Gibson prove by clear and convineing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with negligence in libeling him?

Please circle one; or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (C) sign the general verdict form that follows
this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., ¢t af,,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

V§.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants,

GENERAL VERDICT - LIBEL CLAIM OF PLAINTIFF DAVID R. GIBSON AGAINST
DEFENDANT OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff David R. Gibson, and against Oberlin
College, on David R. Gibson’s libel ¢laim.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College and against David
R. Gibson on David R. Gibson’s libel claim against Oberlin College

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
CASENO, 17CV193761
Plaintiffs, '
vs.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
et al.,

JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI

Defendants,

JURY INTERROGATORY #2— DAVID R. GIBSON'S LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. Did David R. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith Raitnondo
libeled him?

Please circle one: or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A), skip parts (B), and (C), and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interro gatoty for Meredith Raimondo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) or (C) below. In order to have found Meredith Raimondo libeled David R. Gibson, you must
answer “YES” to EITHER pert (B) or part (C) but not both,



B. Did David R, Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with actual malice in libeling him?

Please circle one:  YES or N0 )

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six {6) or more jurors answered “YES” 1o part (B), skip part (C) and then sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson.

C. Did David R. Gibson prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with negligence in libeling him?

Please circle one: YES or NO

If six (6) or more jurots answered “YES” to part (C), sign the general verdict form that follows
this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., et 2L,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
Vs,

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOFN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT — LIBEL CLAIM OF PLAINTIFF DAVID R, GIBSON AGAINST
DEFENDANT MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff David R. Gibson, and against
Meredith Raimondo, on David R. Gibson’s libel claim.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo and against
David R. Gibson on David R, Gibson's [ibel claim.,

Please proceed {o the next Interrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
CASENO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

V3.
OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBEFRLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE, AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #3
DAVID R. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did David R. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Obetlin College
intentionally caused him serious emotional distress?

Please circle one: or NO

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interro gatory (A), sign the general verdict
that follows this Intetrogatory for Oberlin College.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B)
below. '




B. Was Oberlin College’s intentional infliction of emotional distress a direct and proximate
cause of any damages to David R. Gibson?

Please circle one: (;;{ES ' or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “YES” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson. ‘




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,

Plaintiffs,

Vs,

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASE NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al.,
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT -DAVID R. GIBSON'S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff David R. Gibson, on his clalm for

intentional infliction of emotional distress against Oberlin College.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College on David R.
Gibson’s claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress.

Plense proceed to the next Interrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC.,, et al.,

CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

Vs,
OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al.,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #4
DAVID R. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF EMOTIONAL DISTRESS
CLAIM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A, Did David R. Gibson prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith Raimondo
intentionally caused him serious emotional distress?

Please circle one:  YES or “

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interrogatory (A), skip part (B) and sign
the general verdict for Meredith Raimondo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B)
below.
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B. Was Meredith Raimondo’s intentional infliction of emotional distress a direct and
proximate cause of damages to David R, Gibson?

Please circle one: YES or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimondo.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “YES” to part (B) sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for David R. Gibson.

11



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
VS,

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants,

GENERAL VERDICT -DAVID R. GIBSON’S INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS CLAIM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff David R. Gibson, on his claim for
intentional infliction of emotional distress against Meredith Raimondo.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo on David R.
Gibson’s claim for intentional infliction of emotional distress.

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC.,, et al,
CASBE NO. 17CV193761
Plantiffs,

V8.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal, .

Defendants.

COMPENSATORY DAMAGES FOR DAVID R. GIBSON

Please specify the amount of damages, past and future, you are awarding to Plaintiff Pavid R.
Gibsomn.

Total Compensatory Damages: § 5 !, J 00 ’; UOO ‘ DO
Amount of fotal compensatory damages that represents past economic loss:

s 0

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents past non-economic loss;

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents future economic loss:

Amount of the total compensatory damages that represents future non-economic 1oss:

$ Q;Df)ﬂg OOD DD
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

" GIBSON BROS, INC., ef al,,
CASE NO. 17CV193761

Plaintiffs,
Vs,

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #1 -~ GIBSON BROS., INC. LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did Gibson Bros. Inc. prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Oberlin College
libeled it?

Please circle one: ’ or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A), skip parts (B) and (C) and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If six {6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) below. In order to have found Oberlin College libeled Gibson Btos. Inc., you must answet
“YES” to EITHER part (B) or part (C) but not both.




B. Did Gibson Bros. Inc. prove by clear and convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with actual malice in defaming it?

Please circle ne: YES

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (B) — skip part (C) and sign the general verdict
form that follows this Intetrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc.

C. Did Gibson Bros. Inc. prove by clear and convincing evidence that Oberlin College acted
with negligence in defaming it?

Please citcle one: ' or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (C) sign the general verdict that follows this
interrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc.



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,
Plaintiffs,

V5.

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASE NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

etal,
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT - LIBEL CLATM OF PLAINTIFF GIBSON BRQOS., INC.
AGAINST DEFENDANT OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc., and against

Oberlin College, on Gibson Bros., Inc.’s libel claim.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College and against Gibson
Bros., Inc. on Gibson Bros., Inc,’s libel claim against Oberlin College

Please proceed to the next Interrogatary.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., ef al.,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

Vs,
OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R, MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #2— GIBSON BROS., INC.’S LIBEL CLAIM AGAINST
MEREDITH RATMONDO

A. Did Gibson Bros., Inc. prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith
Raimondo libeled it?

Please circle ore: YES or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (A), skip parts (B) and (C), and sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimoendo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), only those jurors shall participate in part
(B) below. In order to have found Meredith Raimondo libeled Gibson Bros., Inc., you must
answer “YES” to EITHER part (B) or part (C) but not both.




B. Did Gibson Bros., Inc. prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with actual malice in libeling it?

Pleasg circle one: S or NO |

If six (6) or more jurors answered “NO” to part (B), proceed to part (C).

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (B), skip part (C), and then sign the general
verdict form that follows this Interrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc,

C. Did Gibson Bros., Inc. prove by clear and convincing evidence that Meredith Raimondo
acted with negligence in defaming it?

Please circle one: \ or NO

If six (6) or more jurors answered *YES” to part (C), sign the general verdict form that follows
this Interrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
Plaintiffs,

V8.

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASENO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

etal., o
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT - LIBEL CLAIM OF PLAINTIFF GIBSON BROS.,, INC,
AGAINST DEFENDANT MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc., and against

Meredith Raimondo, on Gibson Bros., Inc.’s libel claim,

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo and against
Gibson Bros., Inc. on Gibson Bros., Inc.’s libel claim.

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

vs.
OBERLIN COLLEGE zka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al,

Defendants.

JURY INTERROGATORY #3
GIBSON BROS., INC.’S INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE WITH BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIP CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. Did Gibson Bros., Inc. prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Oberlin College
intentionally interfered with its business relationship with Bon Appetit Management
Company?

Please circle one: YES or @

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interrogatory (A), sign the general verdict
that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If six (6) or more jurots answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B)
below.



B. Was Oberlin College’s intentional interference with Gibson Bros., Inc.’s business

relationship with Bon Appetit a direct and proximate cause of damage to Gibson Bros.,
Inc.?

Please circle one: YES or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Oberlin College.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part {A) have answered “YES” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc.




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,,
Plaintiffs,

V8.

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASE NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOIN R, MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al.,
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT ~GIBSON BROS., INC.’S INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE
WITH BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP CLAIM AGAINST OBERLIN COLLEGE

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc., on its claim for
intentional interference with business relationship against Oberlin College

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Oberlin College on Gibson Bros.,

Inc.’s claim for intentional interference with business relationship.

Please proceed to the next Interrogatory




IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

GIBSON BROS, INC,, et al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,

V8.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
et al,

Defendants.

: JURY INTERROGATORY #4
GIBSON BROS., INC.’S INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE WITH BUSINESS
RELATIONSHIP CLATM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. Did Gibson Bros., Inc. prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Meredith
Raimondo intentionally interfered with its business relationship with Bon Appetit
Management Company?

Please circle one: or NO

If six (6) or more of the jurors have answered “NO” to Interrogatory (A), skip part (B) and sign
the general verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimondo.

If six (6) or more jurors answered “YES” to part (A), those jurors shall participate in part (B}
below.

10




B. Was Meredith Raimondo’s intentional interference with Gibson Bros., Inc.’s business
relationship with Bon Appetit Management Company a direct and proximate cause of
damage to Gibson Bros., Inc.?

Please circle one: or NO

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “NO” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Meredith Raimondo.

If the jurors that answered “YES” to part (A) have answered “YES” to part (B), sign the general
verdict that follows this Interrogatory for Gibson Bros., Inc.

11



IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSON BROS, INC., et al.,
Plaintiffs,

\ER

LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO
CIVIL DIVISION

CASENO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI

COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,

et al,
Defendants.

GENERAL VERDICT —GIBSON BROS., INC.’S INTENTIONAL INTERFERENCE
WITH BUSINESS RELATIONSHIP CLAIM AGAINST MEREDITH RAIMONDO

A. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Plaintiff Gibson Bros., Inc., on its claim for
intentional interference with business relationship against Meredith Raimondo.

B. We, the jury, do hereby find for the Defendant Meredith Raimondo on Gibson
Bros., Inc.’s claim for intentional interference with business relationship.

Please procead to the next Interrogatory
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IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
LORAIN COUNTY, OHIO

CIVIL DIVISION
GIBSON BROS, INC., et al,
CASE NO. 17CV193761
Plaintiffs,
V8.

OBERLIN COLLEGE aka OBERLIN JUDGE JOHN R. MIRALDI
COLLEGE AND CONSERVATORY,
etal,

Defendants.

COMPENSATORY DAMAGES FOR GIBSON BROS., INC.

Please specify the amount of damages, past and future, you are awarding to Plaintiff Gibson
Bros., Inc.:

Total Compensatory Damages: $ 0.7/ ) 0771;,;, ff 1/

Amount of total compensatory damages that represents past economic loss:

Amount of the tofal compensatory damages that represents future economic loss:

s/, 45,510 40
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MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
RENEWAL 2034-20C&

This Management Agreement {"Agreemant”) Renewal is entered into as of and for .luly 1, 2004, by and between Oberiin College, an Qhio not for
profil corperation ("Oberlin®), and Compass Group USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation by and through its Bon Appetit Division ("Bon Appétit)
{collectively the "Parties"), who agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
PURPOSE OF THE AGREEMENT

1.1 Purpose of Agreement. The Agreement sets forth the terms and conditions upon which Oberlin retains Bon Appétit ko manage and
operate Food Service for Oberin's students, faculty, etaff, employees and invited guests at its campus in Oberlin, Ohio (the “Premises”).

12 Agency Relationship. Bon Appétit shall act as agent for Oberlin in the management of the Food Service operation at the following
locations: Stevenson Hall, Dascomb Hall, Lord Saunders Hall, Wilder Hall and such cther locations as mutually agreed to by the Parties.
Bon Appétit shall purchase food and supplies in Bon Appétit's name and shall pay the inveices. As principal, Qberlin may supsrvise Bon
Appétit's daily operation of the Food Service Operations, including woerking conditions for Food Service Employees and safety, sanitation
and maintenance of the Premises.

14 Regulatlons and Access. Neither this Agreement nor Bon Appétit's occupancy of the Premisés shall constifute a lease or license
of all or a portion of the Premises to Bon Appélit. Oberlin may make reasonable regulations with regard fo the use and occupancy of the
Premises with which Bon Appétlt will comply as scon as possible after written nolice. Oberlin authorized representatives shall have access
to all food service areas at all imes.

ARTIGLE Il
TERM AND EXCLUSIVITY
24 Term and Terminalion.
A Term of Renewal Agreement This Renewal Agreament is for a term of tive (5) year commenclng on July, 1. 2004, and

shall continue from year to year ihereafter, unless terminated by either party es provided in this Agresment,

B. Tennination for Cause. f either Party breaches a provision hereof {"Cause™}, the non-breaching party shall give the other
party writien notice of such Cause. If the Cause is remedied within twenty (20) days after such notice is recelved, the notice shall
be null and vold. If such Cause is not remedied within the specific period, the party giving notice shall have the right to terminate
this Agreemant upon expiration of such remedy period by delivering a second notice 1o the breaching party, in which avent this
Agresment shall lerminate upon receipt of such second written notice by the breaching party. The rights of termination referred to
in this Agreement are not intended to be exclusive and are in addition to any other righis or remedias available to either party at
law or in equity. )

C. - Termination without Causg. Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time without cause upon ninety (80) days’
prior written nolice 1o the other party wilh the specific termingtion date.

2.2 Exclusive. Qbaerlin grants Bon Appstit the exclusive right to perform Foed Services on or from the Premises during the term of this
Agreement. The grani to Bon Appétit shall not prahibit Oberin from engaging third parties using their own personnel and equipment to
provide services to catered functions and spacial events, in locations not specifically assigned to Bon Appétit Without limiting the
generallty of the faregoing, notwithstanding any provisfon lo the conlrary contained In this Agreement, and subject lo the ferms and
conditions contained in Section 7.3, Oberlin may contract directly with local vendors, distributors and restaurants for the retail sale or
consignment of goods and food stuffs in any convenisnce store located on the Premises, including, without imitation, ethnic foods from
local elhnic restaurants and bakery goods from local bakers.
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ARTICLE I
SERVICES TD BE PERFORMED

31 Servige and Locations. Bon Appélit shall provide Food Service a the following Locations:
Stevenson Hall
Dascamb Hall
Lord Saunders Hall
Wilder Hall

3z Types of Food Services.

(A) Resident Dining & Retail Program.,

(i) During the time periods set farth in Section 3.2 (D}, Bon Appétit shall provide Food Services to Oberlin students on a
‘cafeteria style” basts in accordance with the meal plan programs aet forth on Schgdule A, attached hereto (the “Scheduls
A Resident Dining & Retail Program”). Bon Appétit shall serve meals in connection with the Resident Dining & Retail
Program at the dining halls and during the hours of eperation set forth on Schodle 2. attached haralo (the *Schedule B:
Hours of Operation™). and Bon Appétit shall conduct all preparation and ¢leaning actlvities necessary for the Resident
Dining & Refail Program during the times set forth on Seh: <1’ G, attached horeto (the “Schedule C: Opening/Closing
Scheduls™).

(i} As per of the Resident Dining & Retall Program, Bon Appétit shall offer the major and mini specials set forth on
Schent'y D, attached hereto {the "Schedule D Major & Mini-Special Schedule"). The Major & Mini-Speclal Schedule shall
contain at lsast eight (8) major menu specials per academic year and one (1) mini-special promotion each week.

(B) Retail Sales. As parl of the Resident Dining & Retail Program and during the times set forth In Section 3.2 (D}, Bon Appéfit
shall provide Food Services to Oberlin students on a retail basis consistent with the selections and prices set forth on Scheduln E,
attached hereto (the “Schedule E: Retail Selections”). Bon Appétit shall offer the retall portion of the Resident Dining & Retail
Program fo students, employees and invitees of Oberlin during the Hours of Operation.

{C) Catering Program Durlng ths time periods set forth in Section 3.2 (D) and to the extent requested by Oberdin (which request
shall specify the times, location, numbear and types af meals to be sarved), Bon Appétit shall provide catered faod servica at the
Premises or olher facililies located within a two (2) mite radius of the PremIises, consistant with the menu options and prices set

forth on Schad )57, attached herato (the “Scheduls F: Catering Service”), Prices for specist events will depend upon the menu,
décor and time and manner of services and shall be established by agresment of the parties at the time the services are
requested.

{D) Time Periods. Solely to the extent providad in the Budget, Bon Appétit shall provide the Food Services during:

(). - the academlc year comprising appraximately ten {10} months starting in August and ending in May (the "Academic
Yeart);

(il - Oberlin's two {2} week commencement program held during May {the “Commencement Activities"), and,

(iliy Dberlin's ten (10) week surnmer conference program commencing In June and ending in August (the *Summer
Conference™): the Academic Year, Commancement Activities and Summer Conference are herginafier collectively referred

to as a “Fiscal Year”).

33 Changes to Menus and Prices. As part of the budgeting process described in Section 6.4, for each fiscal year during the term of
this Agreement, Bon Appétit shall set forth in the Proposed Budget any suggested changas to the menus or prices charged In connection
with the Food Service or set forth in the schedules 1o this Agreement. Oberlin shall approve or disapprove of such charges within the

Approval Notice (as defined herein}.

34 Special Diets. Bon Appetit shall supply any medically required special diets for resident dining patrons when prescribed and
approved in writing by a medical doctor and Obenlin.
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35 Standards.

{A) Sanitsry Standards. Bon Appétit shall provide the Food Services in accordance with the sanitary, safety and food handling
standards set forth on £::..-dule G, altached herefo {the “Schedule G: Sanitary & Safety Standards”). Bon Appétlt and Oberlin
agree to work logether to set standards and develop programs for ¢campus wide recyeling and composting.

{B) Program Standards.

(i) All food served by Bon Appétit during the Academic Year in connection with the Resident Dining & Retail Program
shall be served in accordance with the Resident Dining & Retail Program sarving standards saet forth on Schiedriia H
aftached hereto (the "Schedule H: Academic Year Serving Standards”). Bon Appétit and Oberlin will annually evaluate the

program,

(i} All food served by Bon Appétit during the Summaer Conference shall ba served in accordanse with the serving
standards set forth on Sc’udh = |, attached hereto (the “Schedule | Summer Conference Serving Standards™. -

(il Bon Appetit will be responsible for conducting regulér Program Reviews according to the Schegu! .. J, attached
hereto (the "Schedule J: Program Review Standards").

{C) Without limiting the generality of the foregoing:

0] Compllance with the Law. Bon Appétit shall operate the Food Services in accordance with all applicable federal,
atate, caunty and municipal laws, ordinances, regulations and rules,

(i} Licenses and Permits. Bon Appétit shall obtain and maintain all necessary licenses and permits to operate the
Food Services, and Oberlin shall cooperata, with Bon Appélit's efforts to obtain such licanses and parmites, provided,

hawever, Oberlin shall obtain and maintain any necessary iquor licenses or permits, and;

{jii) Bon Appétit shall provide evaluatians, training and staff support for these Oberlin employees supervised by Bon
Appé&tt in connection with the Food Services, each to the extent setforth on Schy:uie K, attached hereto (the "Schedule
K: Staff Standards"). All such training materials wili be developed in coordination with and reviewed by the Oberlin's Office

of Human Resources.

36 Ingpections.
0] Quarterly. Oberlin and Bon Appétit shall jointly schedule and conduct Quarterly Cleanliness and Sanitation
Inspections of the Premises by Location to insure that the “College Standards” (copies of which have besn provided to Bon
Appelit), are mainlained.

{ii} Health Depariment Inspections. Bon Appétit will notify Residential Life and Services whenever the Loraln County
Health Inspsctor is on campus so that a member of the staff can (If available) participate in the inspection procass. Bon
Appéilt shall provide copies of any Health Depariment Inspection Reports immedialely after receipt of said repert. Oberlin
and/or Bon Appétit shall make all necessary comections, within the scope of their respective responsibilities as defined

under this Agreement

A
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ARTICLE IV
EMPLOYEES

4.1 Bon Appétit Managem enl Emplovess.

(A) Bon Appétit shall provide sufficient numbers of qualified management employses to provide the Food Services and to
adequately supervize all Food Service employse, including, without limitation, a competent and qualified Dietitian.

{B) Oberlin will participate in the hiring and annuel evaluation process of the managemant and administrative cffice
employees.

42 Oberiin Nonmanagement Emplovess. Except for administrative office staff, all non-management and hourly supervisory Food
Service employees shall be employees of Oberlin. Bon Appetit's managers shall supervise such employees, provided, however, that

Oberlin shall be responsible for its obligations described in Section 4.4,

4.3 Oberlin Student Emplovees. Sublect to Bon Appetits approval, Oberlin may assign certain sfudents to the Food Service
Operations in furtherance of Oberlin's policy fe provide on-campus empbyment opporunities for students. Motwithstanding such

assignment, studant employees shall remain employees of Oberlin.

4.4 Poreonnel Expenses and Obligations. Each party hereto shall be solely responsible for all personnel aclions and all claims arising g
out of injuries occurring on ihe job regarding employees on its respective payroll. Each party shall withhold all applicable federal, state and 3
local smployment taxes and payroll insurance with respect to its employees, insurance premiuma, contributions fo beneflt and deferred ;
compensatian plans, licensing fess and worker's compengation costs and shall filz all required documents and forms.

45 Mariagement Employiment Commitment. For the duration of this Agreement, Oberlin shall not, directly or indirectly, without Bon
Appétil 's writtan consent, hire ar contract, with any person for Food Service who is, or was within the preceding six-month period, a
management employoe of Bon Appefit connected in any mariner with the operation of Oberlin's Food Service.

4.6 Nondiscrimination. Neither party shall discriminate because of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, disability, or status as
a Vietnam veteran, as definad and prohibited by applicable govemmental law, in the recruliment, sclection, training, utilization, promotion,
termination, or other employment related activities conceming Food Service employess. In addition, each parly affims that it is an equal
opportunity and affirmatlve action employer and shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations including, but
not limited to, Executive Order 11246 as amended by 11376 and 12086; 12138; 11625; 11758; 12073; the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; the Vietnam Era Vaterans Rezdjustment Assistance Act of 1975; Civil Rights Act of 1964; Equal Pay Act of 1963; Age
Discrimination in Employment Act of 1967; Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986: Public Law 95-507; The Americans With
Disabiliies Act; and any addilions or amendments thereto.

4.7 Staff Relatiops_Wages and Beneflts. Bon Appelit shall be responsible for the wages and benefits of all of its employses at i
Oberlin. Bon Appetit shall provide Oberlin with affirmative evidence of its full and absolute compliance with any and all federal and state :

fair and minimum wage |aws. i
|

4.8 Unions. Bon Appetit agrees that it will not engage in any union avoldance activities whils aperating Oberlin's Food Service,
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ARTICLE YV
INVENTORIES, PREMISES. EQUIPMENT AND MAINTENANCE

8.1 Pramises and Equipment. Bon Appéiit and Oberfin jointly have inventoried Oberlin's Food Service Equipment. Upon termination of
this Agreement, Bon Appétil shall present such inventory of equipment to Cberlin.

52 Condition of Premisss and Food Service Equipment Oberfin ghall maintain in gaod condition the Premises and Food Service
Equipment providsed by Oberlin for use In the Food Service Operation io ensure materlal compliance with applicable laws concerning
building conditions, sanitation, safaty and health (including, without limitation, GSHA regulations); provided, however, Bon Appétit shall -
promptly defiver lo Oberlin any written notice received by Bon Appétit conceming any violation of applicable law with respect to sanftation,
safety or health cenditions (including OSHA violations) relating to the Food Service Operations. Bon Appétit shall take reasonable and
proper care of the Premises and equipment under its custody and control and will uge them in a manner which will not cause viclatipns of

applicable laws.

53 Sanlitation. The responsibilities of the parties with respecl o the usual and customary cleaning and sanitation of tha Premiges shall
be as follows:

A. Bon Appetit's Responsibilities. Bon Appétit shall be responsible for housekeeping and sanitation in food preparation,
customer traffic areas, storage and serving areas, and Bon Appétit shall maintaln such areas in a clean, attractive and sanitary
condition and in accordance with all applicable laws and regulations and Scheduie G Sanitary & Sxfely Stondardz. Bon Appetit
shall clean flvors and tops of tables and chairs in the dining area and clean up any spillage or breakage occurring during serving
periods, and transpor refuse to designated refuse collection areas.

B. Oberlin's Responsibilities. Oberlin shall ba responsibla for housekeeping and sanftation In all areas of the Premises not
required 1o be malntained by Bon Appétit pursuant to Seclion 5.3(A), Including, without limitation, carpets and all windows, walls
{above shoulder height), cellings, ceiling fixtures, drapes, fixtures, air ducts and hood vent systeme {per local ordinance). Oberlin
shall provide and maintain adequate fire extinguishing equipment for the Premlses, pest cantrol and shail be respensible for
remaval of refuse from refuse collection areas.

5.4 Maintenznce. Oberln shall, at Oberlin's expense, provide maintenance personnel and outside maintenance services, parts and
supplisa required to properly maintain the Premises and Oberdin-owned Food Service Equipment,

5.5 Inventories of Fpod and Supplies. Bon Appétit has purchased existing useable inventories of food, beverages and supplies at
involce cost. Bort Appetit shall purchase and maintain reascnabte inventeriss of foodslufis and operational supplies for the Feod Service
Operations. Obarlin ghall pay for these purchases to the extent included in the Budget. Upon termination of the Agreement, Oberlin shall
either purchase or cause the successor operator to purchase, Bon Appétit's useabls Inventorias of focd, beverages and supplies at invcice

cost.

5.6 Inventory Smallwaras. Bon Appétit and Obedin joinily have inventoried all Smallwares owned by Oberlin. Bon Appétit shall
mainiain the Inventory levals approved by Oberlin by ordering Smallwares as needed, in accordance with the standards set forth on
Skacirat | attached hereto (the “Schedule L: Smallwares Standards®} Oberlin shall pay for these purchases ta the extent included in the

Budget.
5.7 Utilltles. Oberlin shall be responsibla for the cost of utllities consumed in the Food Service Operation.

CONFIDENTIAL OBERLIN_0C009821



ARTICLE VI
FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS

6.1 Management Fee for Resident Dining For its services in connection with the Resident Dining & Retail Program, Catering Service
and Oberlin sponsored functions during the Academic Year, Bon Appétit shall be entilied to the following payments:

Payment of Personnel Management Fee and Administration Fee (logether, the “Fees”) based on the following schedule:

Academic Year Management Fee
T004-05 4% 247,000
005-06 $ 247,000
2008-07 $ 247,000
2007-08 . $ 247,000
2008-09 247,070

6.2 Maragement Fee For Commencement For Its sarvices In connection with the Oberlin sponsored functions during the
Commencement Aclivities, Bon Appstit shall be entitled to the following payments;

Payment of a Professlonal Management Fee and Adminstration Fes {logether, the "Fees” basad on the following schedule:

Commencement Management Fee
2004-05 $8,000
2005-05 $8,00C
2006-07 58,000
2007-0% 78,000
2C08-09 58,000

8.3  Management Fee For Summer Conference. For its services in connection with Oberlin sponsored functions durmg the Summer
Conference, Bon Appétit shall be enfitled to the followmg payments:

Payment of Personnel Management Fee to Ban Appetit based on the following schedule:

Summer Conference Management Fes i
20C4-05 $ 20,000 1
2005-78¢ $ 20,090 '
20G86-07 §20,600
2007-08 % 20,000
2008-09 < 20,000

8.4 Budaeted rating Expenses.
A Dperating Expenses. Operating expenses, including bul not limited to the following:
{i) The cost of food, beverages, operational supplies and materials;

(i Personnel Expenses

{iii} Other direct costs arising from Bon Appétit's performance of the Agreement, including but not limited to: office
supplies and postage, general liability, uniforms, linens and laundry, paper goods and disposables, catering expenses,
printing and marketing materals, Insurance, licenses and permils, armored car service, banking charges and intaresi,
taxes, flowers and decorations, repairs and maintenance.

(iv} Administrative expensas, commiseione from subcontractors, purchase credits, expanse reimbursaments or other
sources of profit should be identified.

(B} Annual Budget Qperating Expenses.

)] Subject to the tarms contained in Section 6.5(C), Oberlin shail have no obligation to reimburse Bon Appétit for any
Operating Expenses that in the aggregale excead the Budgstad Operating Expenses (as defined below). To establish
Budgeted Operating Expenses for each Fiscal Year during the Term of this Agreament, Bon Appefit shall prepare and
deliver to Oberlin, prior to January 1 of each Fiscal Year during the Term of this Agreement, a written proposed operating
budget depicting all costs and expenses, by localion, and all associatad prices and menus, expected 1o be incurred or
offered by Bon Appétitin cannection with the Food Service Operation during the upcoming Fiscal Year (the “Proposed

Budget”).
Bon Appétit will not be held responsible for unanticipated variances, since some varfables might have been missed or
misjudged which could cause some cosis to exceed budget. Bon Appétit will work diligently, however, to achieve the

desired bottom line for Oberlin and will manage this process through biweskly financial reviews comparing performance to
budget. Each flscal year for Dining Services shall end on the last day of Bon Appétit's June accounting month.
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(i) Oberlin shall deliver written nollce to Bon Appétit approving or disapproving any cost or expense contained in such
Proposed Budgat (an "Approval Notice"), and those items spproved by Oberiin shall be included in the budget for the
upcoming Fiscal Year (the *Approved Budget™). Any ¢ost or expense approved by Oberfin in an Approval Notice shall be
deemed g “Budgeted Operating Expense” and shall be included in the Approved Budgel. Oberlin and Bon Appétil shail
jointly datemine, in good faith, whether any disputed cost or expense included in the Proposed Budget shall be a
Budgeted Operating Expense and included in the Appraved Budget.

<) Changss to Annual Budget Operating Expenses. During the Flscal Year pertaming to the Approved Budget, should

Oberlin or Bon Appétit dealre to add or delets or otherwise modify an tem or expense lo or from the Approved Budget, and thereby
include or delete such item or expense as a Budgeted Operating Expense, the requesting party shall deliver written notice to the
non-requesling party, and the non-requesting party shall either approve or disapprave such reguest within (hirty (30) days after
receipt of such request. In the evant such request is approved by the non-requesting party, the approved item or expense shall be
added to or deleted from the then current Approved Budget, as the case may be, and edded or deleted as a Budgeted Operaling
Expansa, as the case may ba. Noiwithstanding the terms contained in the immediately preceding two sentences, during an
emergency situation either party shall have the right to request the nen-requesting parly’s prior verbal consent fo add or delete an
iten or expense lo or frem the Approved Budget, in which evenl, not later than seven (7) days after such verbal request, the
requesting party shall deliver fo the non-requesling party written notice of such verbal request, whereupen the non-requasting party

shall promptly deliver to the requesting party written notice of its response thereto.

B.5 Billing. Bon Appétit shall malntain all books and records associated with the Foad Service Operation in accordance with generally
accepted accouniing principles, consistently applied. No later than thirty (30) days after the end of each Accounting Period during the lerm
of this Agreemeant, Bon Appétit shall submit to Oberlin a detalled invoice containing the following items:

(i} Any Budgeted Operating Expensee paid by Bon Appélil during such Accounting Pariod;
{if} Foes described in Sections 6.1, 6.2 or 6.3 and incurred during such Accounting Period;

i) Any adjustments for any cash paid to and retasined by Bon Appétit in connection with the Food Service Operation during
such Accounting Period, together with sufficient documentation to substantiale sach line item contained in such invoice, including,
without limitation, guest meals, charge sales, and retail sales.

(iv) Oberlin shall pay the invoiced amount within thirty (30) days after the invoice dats.

() Oberlin and its accountants shall have the right, at its expensa and during ordinary business hours, to sudit all Bon Appatit
operaling statements, invoices, and books and records pertairing to the Food Services Operations. Any discrepancies uncovered
by such audit shall ba promptly adjusted between the parties.

{vi) Bon Appétit's Accounting Periods will ordinarily have two four week and one five week accounting months in each quarter
of the year.

6.6 Cash Sales Deposits. Bon Appétit, acting an behalf of Oberlin, shall collect and record all daily recelpts from the Food Senvice
Oparalion and retail concession sales and other sales in the Premisgs and deposit such receipts at Oberin's Student Accounts Office.
Bon Appétil shall at all times observe prudent cash handiing procedures in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,

consistenlly applied.

6.7 Oberlin's Expense Obligations, Oberlins Expenses shall include but are not limited to the following: telephone service, ulilities,
pest contrsl, malntenance and renovation of Premisaes and Food Service Equipment, refuse removal.

8.8 Office Facilities. Oberlin shall provids, at its expense, such offices, furniture and equipment (including facilitlies for safekeepling of
funds and receipts) as are reasonably necessary for lhe Food Service Operailons. Bon Appétit shall, &t its expense, maintain all
non-gtructural, interior portions of any such offices, and repair any damage to such offices arising from the negligent or intentional acts af
Bon Appétlt, its employees and agents. Upon the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, Bon Appétit shall surrender such
offices and office equipment in good condition and repair, subject to casualty loss and reasonable wear and tear.

8.9 Vehicle. Obarlin shall provide two (2) vehicle for use in the Food Service Operation. Bon Appétit shall only permit drivers who

have met Oberlin's Driver Qualifications Standards to operate any such vehicle, and Bon Appétil shall cause such Bon Appétit drivers 1o
operate the Oberlin vehicle in accordance with all applicable laws and in 2 prudent and safe manner. Oberlin shall be responslble for the

vehicle's gas, oil, maintenance, and repair, and automobile liability insurance.
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6.10  Telephone Expenses. Oberlin shall pay all felephone installalion costs, and local and long distancs charmges, incurred in the
discharge of Bon Appélit's obligations under this Agreéement, which £osts shall be paid directly to the supplying utility company. Bon
Appétit shall reimburse Oberlin for the cost of local and long distance calls placed by Bon Appétit personnal not directly related to Bon
Appétit's discharge of its obligations under this Agreement. This provision shall survive the expiration or eartler termination of the

Agreament.

6.11 Taxes Bon Appétit shall bill and collect sales and usa taxes, if applicable, an all meals and services rendered on or from the
Premises. If the parties disagree as to taxability of any meals or services, Bon Appétil shall promptly obtain a ruling from the appropriale
govemnmental authority, If additional taxes are assessed against the Food Service Operations, and any interast and penalties, Qberlin shall
relmburse Bon Appétil for such assessment upon recelpt of an inveice (in the absence of negligence or intentlonal misconduct on the part
of Bon Appetit). If a tax refund is received, Bon Appétit shall return amounis paid by Obenlin, including any interest thereon (if refunded) to
Oberlin. Bon Appétit shall be responsible for ils city, state or federal income taxes including any tax burdens or benefits arlsing from its
operations hereunder. This provision shall survive the expiration or earier termination of the Agreement.

-8-
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ARTICLE VIl
GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

71 Bon Appétit Comprehensive Insurance. Bon Appétit shall, as a charge lo the Focd Service operation, maintain during the term of
the Agreement the following insurance:
a. workers compensation and emplayer's liability insurance and such other insurance as may be raquired by applicabfe
state siatutes.
b. eneral comprehensive liability or commercial general ily injury and damage liability insurance in the

combined single limit of not less than Three Million Dollars ($3,000,000) for each occurrence, including, without limitation, personal
injury fability, broad fonm property damege liability, blanket contractual liability and products liability, covering only the aclivities of
Bon Appétit under this Agreement.

c. motor vehicle fiability insurance with limits of $100,000 per person and $300,000 per occurrence and $50,000 in praperty
damage.

d. i all instances Oberlin shall be named as the loss payee on each policy of insurance,

7.2 Bon Appétit shall provide Oberlin with a carfificate evidencing such policies within 30 days after the execution of this Agreement by
both parfles The insuranae poliofes shall contaln covenants by the issuing company that the policies shall not be canceled without thiry
(30) deys’ prior written notice

7.3 Liability for Non- Bon Appétit Approved Vendors.

{A) Oberlin understands that Bon Appétit has entered into agreements with many vendors and suppliers of products which give Bon Appétit
the right to inspect such vendors’ and suppliers' plants and/or storage facilitles and require such vendors and suppliers to adhere to
standards o ensure the quality of the products purchased by Bon Appéfit for or on behalf of Oberlin,

(B) Oberlin may, howsever, direct Bon Appétit to purchase products from non- Bon Appétit appraved vendors. It such instanices, for the
mutual prolection of Oberlin and Ban Appétit, Oberlin will require each such vendor to obitain from a reputable insurance company
acceptable io Oberlin and Bon Appétit liabiifty insurance {including products lisbillty coverage) and confractual liability insurance in tha
amount of nat less than One Million Dollars {$1,000,000.00) for each occurrence naming Cberlin and Bon Appétit as additional insureds
and whigh insurance shall not exclude the negligence of Oberlin or Bon Appétit. A cerdificate evidencing such insurance shall be provided
to Oberlin and Bon Appétit upon the request of either party. Oberlin shall also require each such vender to sign an indemnity certificate
{acceptable to Oberlin and Bon Appétif) in which such vendor shall agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless Obariin and Bon Appétit
from and against all claims, liabilities, losses and sxpanses, including reasonable costs, collection expenses, and attorneys' fees which
may arise as a result of using such vendor's product, except when such liability arises as a result of the sole negligence of Bon Appétit
and/or Oberkin.

{C} Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in Section 7.3(A), In the event Oberlin does not obtain the insurance certificates
and indemnily certificates required under Section 7.3(A), and Cberlin nevertheless desires thal Bon Appétit purchase products from such
non- Bon Appétit approved venders, Oberlin shall have the right, exercisable by delivering written notice to Bon Appétit, ta direct Bon
Appétit 1o use products from slich non- Bon Appétit approved vendors, in which event Oberiin shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless
Bon Appétit from and agsinst any loss, cost, expense, claim or cause of action arising in cannection with products purchased by Bon
Appétit frem such non- Bon Appétit approved vendor, except to the exten! such liability arises as a result of the negligence of Bon Appétit.

7.4 Indemnity. Except as otherwise expressly provided, Bon Appétit and Oberlin shall defend, indemnify and hold each other harmless
from and against all claims, liability, loss and expense, including, withoul limitation, reasonable collection expenses, atlomeys' fees and
caurt costs, which may arise because of; (x) any negligence, misconduct, or other fault of the indemnifying party, its agents or employees,
during the performance of its obligations under this Agreement, and; (y) any broach of this Agreement by such indemnifying party. Such
obligations shall be aliocated in propartion ta the Idemnifying parfy's fault. Notwithstanding the foregoing, with respect ta property
insurance, for which the parties maintain a system of coverage on their respective property, each party hereto waives its rights, and the
rights of its subsidiaries and affiliates, to recover from the other parfy hereto and its subsidiaries and affiliates for loss or damage o such
party’s buiiding, equipment, improvements and other proparty of every kind and description resulling from fire, explosion cr other cause
narmally covered in standard broad form properly insurance policies. This clause shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of the
Agreement.

0.
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7.5 Leaal Fees. If any actions ar proceeding is necessary 1o enforce the provisions of this Agreemant, including any elaim or demand,
or o interpret this Agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitied 1o reasonable attorney's fees, costs and necessary disbursments In
addition to any other relief to which it may otherwise be entitied, whether or not such action or proceeding is prosecuted to judgement.

7.6 Waiver of Insurance Subrogation Rights. The parties hereby mutually waive any right either rnay have againsi the other on
account of any loss or damage to thelr respective real and personal property arising from any risk which is generally covered by insurance
for fire, exiended coverage perils, vandalism, maficious mischief or sprinkler leakage. The parties shall cause their respective insurers
providing ¢overage for any such losses to walve any rights of subrogation they may have against the other party,

7.7 Trade Secrets and Propristary Information. During the term of the Agreement, Ban Appétit may grant to Oberlin a nonexclusive
right to access cerlain proprietary materials of Bon Appéfit, including recipes, signage, Foed Service surveys and studies, management
guidelines and procedures, operating manuals, software (both owned by and licensed to Bon Appstit), computerized data bases and
simllar compilations and documents regularly used in Bon Appélits business operations ("Trade Sacrets”). Obertin shall not disclose any
of Bon Appéiit's Trade Secrets or other confidenlial information, dirsctly or indirectly, during or after the term of the Agreement. Oberlin
shall not photocopy or otherwise duplicate any such material without the prior written consent of Bon Appétit. All Trade Secrets and other
confidential information shall remain the exclusiva property of Bon Appétit and shall be retumed to Bon Appétit immediately upon
termination of the Agreement. Upen termination of the Agreement, Bon Appetit and Oberlin will establish a depreciated value for ali
Proprietary Materials which were purchased solely by Oberlin and that will be retumed 1o Oberlin at the end of the term of this Agreement.

7.8 Assignment The Agreement may nat be assigned by either party without the written consent of the other, excepl Bon Appétit may,
without pricr approval and without being released from any of its responsibilities hereunder, assign the Agreement to any affillate or
wholly-owned subsidiary of Bon Appétil. Without limiting the generality of the foregeing, Bon Appétit shall not enter into any subeontract
with any third party to perform any of the services required 1o be performed by Bon Appétit without the prior written consent of Oberlin,
which consent may be withheld by Obarlin in its sole discretion.

7.0 Notice, All notices shall be effective when received. Except for any tarmination notice sent by Oberiin pursuant fo Section 2.1, all
written notices or communications required or parmitied ta be given hereunder shall be In writing and served personally, delivered by
courier or sent by United States certified mail, postage prepaid with return receipt requested, addressed to tha other party as follows:

To Oberlin: Qberlin College
Attention: Michele Gross
Director of RL&DS Business Operations & Dining Services
155 N Professor Street
Oberiin, Ohio 44074

To Bon Appetit:  Bon Appetit Management Co.
155 N Professor Streef
Oberlin, Ohio 44074

and/or to such other persons or places as either of the parties may hercafter designate in wriling. Any notice of terminatfon by Oberlin
under Section 2.1 shall be sant la the following addrass, or to such other persons or places as Bon Appétit may hereafter d951gnate in

wrilting.:
To: Emest Collins
Bon Appétit Management Co.

100 Hamilton Avanue, Sufte 300
Palo Alta, CA 24301
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Any notice of termination by Bon Appélit under Section 2.1 shall be sent to the following address, or fo such other persons or places as
Oberlin may hergafier designate in writing. ;

QOberlin Collage

Aflention: Michele Gross

Dlrector of RL&DS Business Operations & Dining Services
1585 N Professor Strest

Oherlin, Ohin 44074

and to; Linda Gates
Acting Dean of Students
105 Wildsr Hall
Oberlin, Ohio 44074

and to: Ronald Watls
V.P. Finance & Admin
173 Wesi Lorain Street i
QOberlin, Ohio 44074 i

7.10  Catastrophe. Nelther Bon Appétit nor Oberlin shall be liable for the failure to perform its respective obligations hereunder when
such failure is caused by fire, exploslon, waler, act of God, ¢lvil disordsr or disturbances, strikes, vandalism, war, riot, sabolage, weather
and energy-related closings, govemmental rules or regulations, or like causes beyond the reasonable control of such party, or for real or i

personal property desiroyed or damaged due to such causes. i

711  Construction and Effact. A waiver of any failure to perform under this Agreement shali neither be construed as nor constitute a
waiver of any subsequent failure. The arlicle and section headings used herein are sclely for convenience and shall not be deemed to imi
the subject of the articles and sections or be considered in their interpretation. Any schedules atlached hereto are made a part of the
Agreement and incorporated herein by refarence, provided that in the event of a conflict hetween the terms of such schedule or any other
document incorporated herein, and the torms of thia Agraement, the terms of the Agreement shall govern. The Agreement may be
executed in several countarparts, each of which shall be deemed an original.

7.42  Severability. If any term or provision of this Agreement or the application thereof o any persons or circumstances shall to any
extent or for any reasons be invalld or unenforceabls, the remainder of this Agreemer! and the application of such term or provision to
persons or circurnstances oihar {hen those as to which it is held invalid or unenforceable shall not be affecied thereby, and each term and
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law.

743 Waiver of Jury Trial. Bon Appétit and Oberlin hereby walvs their rights 1o trial by jury with respect to any dispute or litigation
between them arising under or related to this Agreement.

7.14  Amendments To Agresmeni. All provisions of the Agreement herelo shall remain in effect throughout the term thereof unless the
parties agrae, In a writtan document signed by both parties and attached to this Agresment, o amend, sdd or delete any provision. Any

amendment lo this Agreement shall become affective at the time specified in the Amendment.
7.15 Goveming Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed In accordance with the laws of the State of Ohio.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, (he parties herato have entsred into the Agreement as of the date first signed or the first day of the Term,
whichever is sooner,

OBERLIN COLLEGE -
By: Ronald Watis

Name (printed):
Title: VP Finances & Admin

BON APPETIT MANAGEMENT COMPANY

By:
Name (printed):
Title:

11-
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STATE OF OHIO,

)
} 55:

COUNTY OF LORAIN. )

GIBSON BROS.,

V3.

IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
INC., ET AL., )
PLAINTIFFS, )

) NO. 17CV193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS . )

VOLUME VI

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE

AROVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON WEDNESDAY, MAY 15, 2019, BEFORE

THE HONORABLE

COURT .

JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID
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A. Yes, sir.

Q. Does that help you then?

A, Tes.

Q. Okay. Now, back to then the gquestion. You

would agree with me that 1f the college instituted or
supported a boycott against Gibson's because of that
incident that we just heard about, you would agree with
me that would be wrong, if they instituted or supported
a boycott?

A, No.

Q. And you think it's okay to institute or support
a poycott when it's clear that the students did what
they did and the official position of Oberlin College is
that the students got exactly what they deserved? You
still think it's okay, in the face of that, for the
college to initiate or support a boycott cof a
hundred-year business relationship?

A. No, 1 didn't say that.

Q. Is it ckay, based upon that incident, for the
college to initiate or support a boycott which
terminates a relationship with a hundred-year-old loyal
business partner? TIs it okay to do that?

A. When you say "boycott,™ are you using that
interchangeably with "suspension"?

O. Well, a boycott to me means that you take
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about any of this because it's part of our claims, you
are entitled to seek for defamation, non-economic
damages, pain and suffering, mental anguish. I'm going
very clear. I'm going to tell her time frame of 2016
and '17. That's my guestion.

THE COURT: And he was diagncsed after that.

MR. ONEST: It was in 'l& when he was diagnosed.

THE COURT: Perfect,

MR. ONEST: Whenever I ask these questions, I'll
repealt myself, 201%, 2017.

MS. CROCKER: That's fine, thank you.

W koK

{The sidebar discussion ended.)
* % &
BY MR. ONEST:
0. Mrs. Gibson, I want to talk specifically about
iﬁ the immediate aftermath o¢f the protests, so the fall,
early winter of 2016, okay. Were you able to obhserve
any change in your husband's mental or emoticnal state

at that time?

Al Yes.
Q. And can you tell the jury what you observed?
A He was -- he was upset. Everything pretty much

devastated him. To have the lies being told about him

and the store, it was very upsetting. He, he kind of
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got withdrawn and wouldn't speak to people. He just
really tried to internalize a lot of it. It was a very
upsetting time.

Q. aAnd when did you first start seeing that? I'm
talking in relation to the protests. Was it close in
time of the protests?

A Yeah. 1 mean, it would build. It would -- you
know, 1t started after the protests, and it just seemed
to build. He just kept getting more and more emotional
and upset about it.

Q. And at that same time, so 2016, 2017, did you
observe -- ohserve, you know, any sort of -- more than
usual stress that your husband was exhibiting?

A. Yes. It got to where not only was —-- could he
not -- he wouldn't talk to people or socialize, hs
couldn't eat, he was always sick to his stomach, he
couldn't eat, wasn't sleeping well. He started having
some heart issues, and just completely beside himself.
Q. In that same time, sc we're talking 2016, 2017,
did he ever express anything that you would say 1s, you
knew, feelings of shame or embarrassment?

A. Yeah, he would. He didn't want to hang out with
his friends or socialize anymore because it was just so
embarrassing., He did feel very ashamed in how people

wera Lreating him and just looking at him.
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Q. So can you tell the jury whether or not he
became generally less social in 2016 and 20177

A, He did. He pretty much quit hanging out with,
you know, his friends. They'd go ocut and hang out every
week, He would go out and play golf or we'd have
friends over to Cthe hcuse. And that just all
diminished. We didn't do that anymore.

Q. And during that time period, did his --
everything we just talked about, did it improve in that
time frame?

A. No.

Q. I want to talk a little kit ébout your
father-in-law. Pricr to the protests, c¢an you tell the
jury how often would you interact with your
father-in-law?

A, Oh, you know, he would come over and eat dinner

with us every week or so, and if I went to the store, I

would see him there. So you kneow, we were always in
contact.
Q. And how many vyears had he been your

father-in-law before the protests?

A, Thirty-six.
Q. And when did his wife pass away?
A. She passed away in 1999,

0. And did that affect his work habits at the
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A. No.
Q. And you would agree that your fathetr-in-law,
Allyn Gibson's, mental state is fine, correct?
A. I don't understand your question.
Q. Sure. During your deposition I had asked you,
"How would ycu describe your father-in-law's mental
state?" And you said it was fine. And I could pcint
you to that.
A. Is that at this time or -- I'm sorry.
Q. At the time of your deposition in January of
this year.
A. Well, he's doing well now.
0. And you're not aware of anyvone being arrested in
connection with the fall that Mr. Allyn Gibson, your
father-in-law, sustained, correct?
Al No.
Q. And you aren't aware of anyone being arrested

with the tire slashing that you referenced earlier, are

your
A. No.
Q. And you had alsoc mentioned some property damage

to a door that's connected to your garage at your
residence, correct?
AL Yes.

0. And you den't know who caused that damage, do
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CERTIFICATHE
The State of Ohio, )

y §5:
County of Lorain. )

T, Cathlene M, Camp, Official Court Reporter in the
Court of Cemmon Pleas, Lorain Ccunty, Chio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
May 15, 2019.

T further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name this

16th day of May, 2019.

Chtaa #C G

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Elyria, OH 44035

(440} 328-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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Message

Fram; owner-staffilst@venus.cc.oberlin, edu [owner-staffiist@venus.ce.oberlin.edu]
on behalf of  Oberlin College, Office of the President [presidents.office@ oberlin.edu]
Sent: 1/23/2017 9:31:39 PM

To: stafflist [stafflist@oberlin.edu]

Subject: Message from President Krislov regarding Gibson's 8akery

Dear Students, Faculty, and Staff,

The arrest on November 9, 2016 of three Oberlin College students at Gibson’s Bakery cansed members of the
Oberlin community—locally and elsewhere——to voice a range of opinions and assumptions based on
information reported by individuals and organizations of varying reliebility. Particularly challenging was the
role of outsiders to Oberlin who made apen threats of violence against members of this community on all sides
of the dispute. The legal process is the only authority that can determine whether unlawful behavior occurred,
and the College honors the values of faimess and due process that this system strives to achieve.

Shortly after the incident, the College temporarily suspended its standing baked goods order with Gibson’s in an
effort to deescalate a complicated and very tense situation involving our campus community, our downtown
businesses, local residents, and law enforcement. Since the initial incident, the College has communicated
actively with all parties in an effort to contribute to a restorative resolution for all involved. To that end,
following discussions with Mr. Gibson and local community and spiritual leaders, the College has chosen to
resume its business relationship with Gibson's as a good-faith effort in hopes of positive resolution for everyone
affected as our community explores concerns and questions about how we live, learn, and thrive together.

We understand from our conversations with Mr. Gibson that his family and employees are committed to
providing safe, fair, and respectful treatment of all patrons of their establishment moving forward. In all its
business relationships, the College expects that its vendors will put into practice these core values, and we hope
that this resolution will allow our broader community to envision strategies to resolve conflicts without
violence.

We take these steps in a spirit of mutual respect, a belief in the willingness of all members of our community to
share responsibility for conflict resolution, and & deep and abiding commitment to the safety and dignity of all
Oberlin residents, college and town. Oberlin Callege and Conservatory will continue to work with our students
and community partners to protect the safety of all people, to nurture a diverse and inclusive community, and to
support a thriving local business community that includes the College and our many valued partners.

Marvin Krislov
President

President's Office

Oberlin College

Cox Administration Building, Room 201
Oberlin, OH 44074

Phone; 44(-775-8400

CONFIDENTIAL
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Message

From: owner-stafflist@venus.cc.oberlin.edu [owner-stafflist@venus.cc.oberlin.edu]
on behalfof  Christine Sayler [csayler@oberlin.edu]

Sent: 11/9/2017 4:34:.01 PM

To: stafflist@oberlin.edu

Subject: Gibson's Bakery

Dear Faculty and Staff,

| am writing to inform you that Gibson Bros., Inc. has filed a lawsuit against Oberlin College and Dean of Students Meredith Raimondo
in the Lorain County Court of Common Pleas. The College and Dr. Raimeondo deny and reject all claims asserted in the lawsuit and we ‘
will vigorously defend against them. _ i

Because of the litigation initiated against the College, all College business with Gibson's, i.e., purchases with College funds, is
prohibited effective as of November 10, 2017, and unti! further notice. Orders approved previously that are scheduled to be completed
by Nov 17 will be processed.

Thank you for your cooperation in this matter.

Alan J. Norton

Interim Vice President for Finance and Administration

Christine L. Sayler

Confidential Assistant to the

VP for Finance & Administration

70 North Professor Street, Suite 200
QOberlin, OH 44074

Phone: 440-775-8460

EXHIBIT

217
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STATE OF OHIO, )
) S5:
COUNTY OF LORAIN, )
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS
GIBSON BROS., INC., ET AL., )
PLAINTIFFS, )
VSs. ) NO. 17CVv193761

OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS . )

VOLUME XI
A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE
ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON THURSDAY, MAY 23, 2019, BEFORE
THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID

COURT,

Page 1
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A, Four, five, six months, yes.
Q. And has anyone ever been arrested or charged in
connection with that vandalism?
A. Not to my knowledge.
Q. Aand we've heard, of course, testimony from you
and your father, Mr. Gibson, Sr., about the fall that
took place at his home. And I just want to c¢lear the
air about the timing.

The knocks that he received on his door and the
windows, those occurred about six months after the

protests, correct?

A. Those occurred the following day after my house
was -- what happened at my house, yes.

Q. That would have been about six months —-

A Six months.

Q. -— after the protests?

A Yes.

Q Isn't it true that to this day, many months have

gone by, that to this day no one has been identified as
a suspect?

A, That's correct.

Q. Mr. Plakas the other day showed ycocu a number of
e-mails and text messages involving a number of Oberlin
College officials, including Tita Reed and Ben Jones and

Toni Myers; do you recall that?
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A. Not exactly, but I recall that they were shown,.
I couldn't repeat them.
Q. Sure. And fortunately, I'm not going to ask you
to do that. But you would agree with me that you were
not a party to any of those e~mail communications,
correct?
A. I was not.
Q. Okay. Those e-mails were exchanged between
these various officials at Oberlin College; is that
correchk?
A. I was made aware of them, but I was not a party
to them; that's correct.
Q. And isn't it true -- and you gave some testimony
regarding your opinions and sentiments about those
e-mails. Isn't it true that to this day you have never

talked to Ben Jones regarding any of his e-mails?

A. That's correct.

0. And isn't it also true that you have never
talked to Tita Reed about any of the e-mails that you
were questicned on?

A. I don't believe so.

Q. Isn't it also true that you've never talked to
Toni Myers about any of the e-mails that invélved her or
were authored or gent by her?

A, The e-mails, I have not.

63
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Q. Okay. Would you also agree with me that all of
the e-mails that Mr. Plakas asked you about, that all of
those e-mails involving Toni Myers and Tita Reed and Ben
Jones, those were all e-mails that occurred after the
protests?

A. I believe there were some e-mails concerning

Tita Reed that occurred before the protests, but I'm

not -- I'm not certain.
Q. You are not sure?
A. Yeah, I'm not. That, I was shown, but I was not

a party to it.

Q. Right. But you were not a party to any of
those. And you were not —-- you were not copied on any
of those e-maills, correct?

A, No, that's correct.

Q. During your direct examination by Mr. Plakas,
you testified regarding the flyer; is that right?

A. Testified to the flyer that was handed out, yes.
Q. Yes, okay. And you alsc testified regarding a
newspaper article that was authored by Jason Hawk; he's
the reporter who wrote several articles about the
protests and who took the stand a few days ago. Is that
correct?

A Yes.

Q. Okay. And would you agree with me that Jason
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CERTTIUFICATE
The State of Ohio, )

) 88S:
County of Lorain. )

I, Cathlene M, Camp, Qfficial Court Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
May 23, 2019.

I further certify that this is a complete
transcript of the testimony.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, I have subscribed my name this

23nd day of May, 2019.

Cathlene M. Camp, RPR
Official Court Reporter
Lorain County, Ohio

225 Court Street, 7th Floor
Elyria, OH 44035

(440) 329-5564

My Commission expires August 3, 2020
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STATE OF OHIO, }
} 551
COUNTY CF LORAIN. )
IN THE COURT OF COMMON PLEAS

GIBSCN BROS., INC., ET AL., )

PLAINTIFFS, )
V3. ) NO. 17CV193761
OBERLIN CCLLEGE, ET AL., )
DEFENDANTS , )
* kK
VOLUME VII

A COMPLETE TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS HAD IN THE
ABOVE-ENTITLED MATTER ON THURSDAY, MAY 16, 2019, BEFORE
THE HONORABLE JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID

COURT.
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0. But during your depocsition, Mr. Gibkbson -- this
is page 171, line 20. We had -- we were talking about
your mental health your during deposition, how you were
feeling. And I asked you, I said, "And what I'm trying
to get at is if you could rate it, your mental health,
on a scale of one to ten from the time period before the
fall, how your mental health was." And your response
was, "Oh, my mental health as far as attitude and
whatnot, and so forth, I don't think it's dropped a
birc."

and then I asked you, "So it's the same from
before the fall and after?" And you said "Right."

and then I said "OQkay." And you said, "As far
as that's concerned, yes. My depression -- depression
or scmething of the scort, no way."
A. Uh-huh.
Q. And it's true, you don't see a psychologist or a
therapist, correct?
A. That's right.
Q. And 1 know that you still go to the bakery
sometimes. But your son, David Gibson, he handled the
day-to-day operations at the bakery, right?
A. Correct.
0. And 1it's true that you transferred the majority

of your ownership interest in the bakery to your son,
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CERTIFICATE
The State of Ohio, )

} 85:
County of Lorain. }

T, Cathlene M. Camp, Official Court Reporter in the
Court of Common Pleas, Lorain County, Ohio, duly
appointed therein, do hereby certify that this is a
correct transcript of the proceedings in this case on
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STATE OF QOHIO,

)
} SS:

COUNTY OF LORAIN. )

GIBSON BROS.,
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INC., ET AL., )
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OBERLIN COLLEGE, ET AL., )

DEFENDANTS, )
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JOHN R. MIRALDI, PRESIDING JUDGE OF SAID
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damages hearing.

For instance, if they argue that the
compensatory verdict is sufficient to punish them for
their conduct, we believe that opens the door. If they
argue that the compensatory verdict is sufficient to
deter conduct, we believe it opens the door. If they
talk about their role in the community, being a good
neighbor to the community, we believe it opens the door.

If they say anything, like they learned from
this, they get it, they got the message, once again, we
believe it opens the door, because the letter to
thousands of people, including alumni and faculty,
clearly says otherwise; that they do not get it, they
did not get the message. They believe this jury got it
dead wrong. So we believe it is certainly relevant.

THE COURT: All right. The Court will permit
the punitive damages vhase to relate to all three cliaims
with respect to the jury interrogatory under the claim
for defamation, where the jury did not find actual
malice. That malice was defined specifically as the
malice associated with the publication necessary for a
defamation claim, basically knowledge of falsity or a
reckless disregard. That standard is different than the
common law actual malice that is required for punitive

damages. And this Court finds that the finding by the

Page
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Jury with respect to that interrogatory does not
preclude the plaintiffs from moving forward with the
punitive damage phase as applied to the defamation
claim.

The Court will also note that it granted Lhe
defendants' moticn to bifurcate the trial. And
plaintiffs, I assume you have additional evidence Chat
was not permitted in the compensatory phase that you
will be presenting in the punitive damages phase on that
issue of commen law actual malice; is that correct?

MR. PLAKAS: Yes, Your Honor,

THE COURT: All right. The defense alsc filed a
brief, bench brieft -- I'll give you a chance to
object -- with respect to no mention of attorney fees
during the punitive phase of the trial.

Plaintiffs, were you intending to talk about
attorney fees during the punitive phase? Yes or no?

MR. MCHOGH: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Hang on a second. Defense,
with respect to my ruling on permitting the punitive
damages phase to relate to all three claims, any
objection?

MR. HOLMAN: Absolutely, Your Honor. Yes, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Ycu can have your brief speak for

10
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